Public Document Pack

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission
Agenda
Date: Thursday, 9 January 2020
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: City Hall Meeting Spaces - First Floor - 1P 09 - City
Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:
Councillors: Paula O'Rourke (Chair), Fabian Breckels (Vice-Chair), Harriet Bradley, Mark Bradshaw,
Tom Brook, Martin Fodor, Carole Johnson, Kevin Quartley, Jon Wellington, Mark Weston and
Mark Wright

Issued by: Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 90 36898
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Friday, 20th December 2019

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 5 - 6)

2.

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors. They are asked to
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.

5.

(Pages 7 - 14)

Action Sheet
(Pages 15 - 17)

6.

Chair's Business

To note any announcements from the Chair

7.

Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on Friday 3rd January 2020.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Agenda

Wednesday 8th January 2020.

8.

Work Programme

To note the work programme.

9.

(Pages 18 - 22)

Performance Report Quarter 2
(Pages 23 - 29)

10. Corporate Risk Report (Quarter Two)
(Pages 30 - 64)
11. Update on the Mayor's Climate Emergency Action Plan and
development of the One City Climate Strategy
(Pages 65 - 68)
12. DRAFT Corporate Property Strategy
(Pages 69 - 93)
13. Temple Island Regeneration Approach
Report to follow (please check below or at the top of the webpage to see if it has
been published)

14. Exclusion of Press and Public
That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded
from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Act.

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting
room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or
Democratic Services Section, Brunel House St Georges Road Bristol BS1 5UY. The following
requirements apply:
•
•

The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Please see www.bristol.gov.uk and the ‘How to Have Your Say’ pdf for the parameters of each
individual Committee and what will happen to your submission.
Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a
public record (available from Democratic Services).

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.
Process during the meeting:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission
26 September 2019 at 6.00 pm

Members Present:Councillors: Paula O'Rourke (Chair), Martin Fodor, Kevin Quartley, Mark Weston and Mark Wright
Officers in Attendance:Zoe Willcox (Director: Development of Place), Nuala Gallagher (Director, City Growth, Investment &
Infrastructure), Alex Minshull (Sustainable City and Climate Change Manager), Sarah O'Driscoll (Service
Manager Planning), Mark Wakefield (Service Manager - Performance & Infrastructure) and Johanna
Holmes (Policy Advisor - Scrutiny)

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies for absence were received from:
Cllrs Tom Brook, Carol Johnson, Jon Wellington, Mark Bradshaw and Fabian Breckels
Cllr Harriet Bradley was a substitute Cllr Fabian Breckels

3. Declarations of Interest
4. Minutes of Previous Meeting
The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as true record.
5. Action Tracker
There were some ongoing questions about the Affordable Housing figures in the Quarterly Performance Report.
Members asked the Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor for further information but were told that the
figures were not yet available. ACTION: Further information about the Affordable Housing figures will be
provided to Members as soon as they are available

6. Chair's Business

Page 6

7. Public Forum
The Chair highlighted that the deadline for Public Forum submissions had been extended due to some of the
meeting papers being published late.
A Member enquired if it was possible to put Public Forum on Mod.Gov. in future ACTION: Scrutiny Advisor to make
enquiries about whether this is possible.
Public Forum Questions Received:
1. Question - Agenda Item 12: Update on the Mayors Climate Emergency Action Plan
2. Question/s - Agenda Item 9: Bristol Harbour Review
3. Question/s - Agenda Item 10: Performance Report
4. Question/s - Agenda Item 12: Update on the Mayors Climate Emergency Action Plan
Public Forum Statements Received:
1. Statement - Agenda Item 12: Update on the Mayors Climate Emergency Action Plan
2. Statement - Agenda Item 9: Bristol Harbour Review

8. Scrutiny Work Programme
The Chair said that when the next meeting took place in January 2020 there would be a new Executive Director for
the Growth and Regeneration Directorate. The Chair said she welcomed Members suggestions for agenda items
for that meeting.

9. Bristol Harbour Review
The Director for Commercialisation and Citizens and Shareholder Liaison introduced the item to Members.
The Director said that the Communication/ Consultation project that included Task and Finish Groups were to be
put in place to ensure that they could ‘drill down’ into people’s views. She also stated that the previous timeline
provided for this work had been optimistic, and the plans originally proposed for taking this Review forward lacked
the necessary scope that needed to be broader. An officer workshop had been held in July to identify the aims and
objectives of a comprehensive Harbour Review and amongst other things it had been concluded that the Harbour is
a ‘key historic asset’ for Bristol.
Members were taken through the timeline of next steps and the outline of the individual projects. A strategic plan
and a business plan will be produced that takes the work up until 2022. A Cabinet paper will be presented on 3
December 2019 seeking approval for both the Feasibility/ Case Study and Communication/ Consultation projects,
with the Communication/ Consultation project beginning in January 2020. The Harbour Review will report to
Cabinet in September 2020 on the Harbour Strategy, with the formal launch of the Strategy to dovetail with the
50th Anniversary of the Harbour Festival in 2020.
The Director said she was fortunate to have the support of the cross party Commercialisation and Innovation
Working Group (CIWG). There are a number of challenges that face BCC in creating income growth and achieving
efficiency savings whilst maintaining agreed service standards. She said she is working closely with the Director
Economy of Place to ensure there is a coordinated approach.

Page 7

The following points were discussed with further with Members:
Members said that it had previously been stated that that the Government owns the harbour and Bristol rents it.
The Director said that BCC owned and has oversight and strategic responsibility for the Harbour but she would
double check this point and report back to Members. ACTION: Director for Commercialisation and Citizens and
Shareholder Liaison to clarify ownership of Harbour.
Members commented on the varied nature of the Review and asked if that could make it difficult to manage and
also expensive. The Director responded that a clear process for effective management of the Review had been
established: a full Review had been discussed for many years, and it was important, in order to ensure that the
Harbour was sustainable and an asset for future generations, it was necessary to undertake this now.
Members asked how confident Officers were about the timescales being met. The Director said she was very
confident that the draft Harbour Strategy that is one of the deliverables from the Review would be ready to take to
Cabinet for approval next September 2020, after having completed the consultation exercise and received the
Report on this during the summer. It was reiterated that the Members were given a rather optimistic timeline for
completion of the Review when it was originally brought to Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission in
December 2018. The Chair said she welcomed the new approach and acknowledged that issues were likely to arise
that are, as of yet, still unknown. She also stated that she was somewhat uncomfortable about the ‘cost neutral’
standard that was previously suggested for the Harbour. The Director said that, whilst the Review needed to
ensure that the Harbour was financially sustainable, the principle focus was on the Harbour as an ‘historic asset’ for
Bristol.
It was asked if there were any plans to try and ensure that the Harbour Festival would be cost neutral in future
years. The Director of Economy of Place said that it had been discussed, and action was being undertaken to
ensure it was sustainable going forward.
Members thanked the Officers for their time. It was agreed that further discussions would take place about
if/when this should be brought to the Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission.

10.Performance Report (Quarter 1)
The Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor introduced the report to Members and explained that there was a
new smaller suit of measures. In summary: 12 reported indicators this quarter; 7 were on or above target; 4 were
below target; 10 were performing better than the previous year.


BCP475: Increase the number of passenger journeys on buses (Passenger numbers down 5.3% when
compared to the same period last year): the Members commented that the figures appeared to contradict
what had previously been said i.e. that Bristol was ‘bucking the national trend’ with increased numbers of
passengers. Members asked again about receiving the MetroBus passenger figures. Officers said that
some of the information was commercial and therefore it was problematic to split the passenger data out
for MetroBus only. A Member responded by saying that over £200 million of public money had been spent
on MetroBus and the public therefore had a right to know if the money had been well spent. He said he
doubted he was the only person asking about the figures and couldn’t understand why the information
wasn’t being made available. ACTION: Officers to continue to pursue this information.

Page 8



BCP474: Increase the number of single journeys on Park & Ride into Bristol: A Member commented on this
indicator and said that in her view more people would use the Brislington Park and Ride Service if stopped
a bit more frequently. She said she was concerned that stops were being decreased which would likely
reduce its use further. Officers said they would look into this. ACTION: Officers to see if it’s possible to
look into the frequency of Brislington Park and Ride service bus stops

11.Local Plan Consultation March - May 2019 Summary
The item was introduced by the Director: Development of Place and the Strategic City Planning Manager who
provided a summary of responses received to the local plan review consultation March – May 2019. It was
highlighted that the web-link in the published paper would take Members to all of the comments that had been
submitted during the consultation. This was a 260 page document and which was why it had not been included in
the meeting papers.
A discussion was had about the report the Council had received from the Independent Planning Inspectors after the
review of the Joint Spatial Plan (JSP) had taken place. It was said that the report detailed that there were some
suggested inadequacies in the Plan. Officers said that the four Local Authorities (LAs) were giving due
consideration to this report. Members had asked if this would have some bearing on the Local Plan’s completion.
Officers said yes it was likely this would have an impact on the Local Plan and until they have clarity the process
would be delayed. It was said that the Council had received lots of responses to the consultation process and will
progress this process but it would not be at the pace that had previously been envisaged. It was stated that there
were certain strategic figures that need to be known before the Local Plan can be implemented.
The following points were discussed with further with Members:
It was said that the previous report the Commission had received from officers hadn’t indicated there was likely to
be any problems however it was now clear that the Inspectors were not happy with what had been submitted.
Officers said they had understood when the Inquiry took place that they would have the opportunity to clearly
explain the Plan to the Inspector. However, it became clear when the Inquiry took place that the Inspector had
issues with the Plan. Officers had thought that the issues could be addressed but that wasn’t the case.
A Member said that he had two main concerns about this: 1) the knock-on effects of a delay to completing the JSP.
2) delays in putting policies in to place. These he said were policies that are desperately needed, for example, the
climate emergency, tall buildings and advertising. This was in his view a threat to the future of city.
Members wanted to know when the plan would now be up-dated. Officers said this had yet to be decided but how
to progress this needed to be decided formally by the four LAs because this was a plan that all four had signed up
to. Officers highlighted that the same challenges were still there i.e. transport and the numbers of homes yet to be
built. They said the delay to the Local Plan was likely be about 12-18 months. However, in the meantime they could
still continue to progress sustainability plans. Also the consultation process had raised a variety of issues that they
were looking into.
Officers then summarised some of the key points of interest that had been raised during the consultation process.
They emphasised that consultations such as this one are a ‘moment in time’, for example, over half of the
responses were connected to Stoke Lodge Open Space because this was a big issue for some people at that
particular time. Other key issues raised were:
 the potential relocation of Stapleton Cricket Club (29 against and 27 for)

Page 9






changes in green belt land in South Bristol
Yew Tree Farm
Proposed development at College Road, Fishponds.
Climate Emergency, conservation and environmental issues also come out strongly it was said.

Officers also added that:
 Student accommodation often comes up as a concern
 Comments about outdoor advertising had been timely and valid
 They still needed to scope and clarify some policies but they will ensure Members are up to speed on
everything before they take the work on to the next stage. The Members agreed they would like officers
to keep them well-informed of further developments.
The Members then asked the following questions:
 The Joint Spatial Plan (JSP) and whether the Inspectors been critical of the release of green-belt land? Was
there more information available on this point? The Member said he asked this because he had thought
that the release of green belt land was also included in the Local Plan. Officers said yes the formal release
of land from Green Belt designation is a matter for the Local Plan and delay to the formal process for
examination and adoption of the review of the Local Plan will delay any change to Green Belt designation.
 With the JSP being delayed what does this now mean for the site allocation programme i.e. what happens
now? Officers said this was a good question They said the Local Plan will need to respond to the strategic
housing numbers to be set through the JSP and the extent and form of land allocation will need to reflect
the strategic housing numbers sought. This will need to reflect the appropriate density on sites. It is likely
that a number of the processes related to assessment of demand and capacity will need to be revisited in
the light of the new National Planning policy Frame work. It was asked if this would put a pause on
developments going ahead. Officers said it would not but it would mean that it would be harder to manage
until it was resolved.
 Members said they were not clear if Inspectors were saying the density is high or too low in some places.
Officers said they can help establish that if it would be helpful.
Members said they thought it was concerning how few people responded to Council consultations especially ones
as important as this. Local groups it was said were very helpful but they don’t always exist and it was suggested
that Officers should perhaps consult more with scrutiny in future. Another Member agreed and said that
regrettably many people only find out what’s going on when out it’s too late to influence things.
The Chair said that regrettably there were not any Cabinet Members in attendance at the meeting. Another
Member commented that it was his understanding that Cabinet Members should be in attendance to answer the
Commissions questions because it shouldn’t be left to Officers to answer on their behalf. After a brief discussion it
was agreed that the Chair would write to the relevant Cabinet Members on behalf of the Commission and ask
them to attend scrutiny meetings where possible in future. ACTION: Chair to write to the relevant Cabinet
Members on behalf of the Commission.

12.Update on the Mayors Climate Emergency Action Plan
A Public Forum Statement from Cllr Denyer was read aloud by Cllr Comley and a short discussion ensued about the
scale and pace of the Mayors Climate Emergency Action Plan. Examples were given on how and where investment
is being targeted, for example, the Council is investing in programmes to leverage in further external funding to
deliver on the actions.

Page 10

The Sustainable City and Climate Change Service Manager then went on to present the published slide deck on the
Mayor’s Climate Emergency Action Plan Update which focussed upon:
 Governance Arrangements – to ensure the Council has the right advice and expertise guiding it e.g. One
City Environmental Sustainability Board and Bristol Advisory Climate Change Committee
 Development of the One City Climate Strategy
 Communication and Engagement
 Integration into Council Systems
 Climate Change Training
The following are some of the key points that were highlighted:
 It was said that consultants are currently working on potential heat networks for the future.
 The Council is working with businesses and also community groups by helping to point them in the right
direction and develop a common strategy to work together on.
 The Lottery - Climate Action Fund is coming soon and officers are working with a consortium to prepare
bids for this.
 The Plan is being integrated in to the Councils service planning process. Officers said that it was not just
about environmental assessments on cabinet reports, but rather it needed to be embedded in the
processes much earlier than that.
 There is an identified need to ensure officers are trained in this field so they can ask the right questions of
others including consultants etc. This is about equipping people with the right information to make more
and more changes. It was said that Bristol is one the first councils to be doing this at this level, which
makes it quite difficult.
Questions and comments from Members:
 The Chair said she wasn’t sure why the Advisory Board was only meeting quarterly and not more often.
She therefore hoped there was a lot of work going on outside of the meetings.
 Several Members said they thought the pace of action appeared slow and it also frustrated many other
people outside of the Council. It was suggested that the Council needed to encourage more behaviour
change rather than waiting for it to happen. One Member suggested that the Council should ‘exemplify,
explain, and enable it by removing barriers where they currently exist’.
 It was asked if the Council is asking the Government to remove some of the barriers. Yes it was said this
was part of the process that was currently happening as part of the Strategy. Officers did however
highlight there was a slight conflict between ‘doing things quickly and doing things well’.
 Is the Council working with Core Cities on this? Officers said yes they are working on ‘common asks’ and
there would be a joint declaration the following week. Yes there were barriers and a need for more
funding and skills to be developed; they all need to be in place for things to work at a pace and effectively it
was said.
 Another Member said he believed that the Action Plan should be both ‘top down’ so business can buy in to
it and be encouraged to change their practices and ‘bottom up’ to capture the enthusiasm of young people
.
 The Chair said she was slightly concerned that now there is an Action Plan coming thorough there will also
be some level if complacency when actually there is still so far to go. She said the Strategy ‘would not get
us there’. Officers said no but the Action Plan is what is being done to ‘get us there’ and this this will be
completed in March 2020. The Chair asked ‘whether it would have everything in it that was necessary to
get us to be where we need to be’? Yes it was replied. She asked if behavioural change in there ‘because
without it we won’t get there’. No was the reply.

Page 11

ACTION: It was agreed that Officers would bring a further update on the Mayor’s Climate Emergency Action Plan
in January 2020

13.Property Assets Strategy
The Chair of the Scrutiny Commission began the item by asking officers why the draft Property Strategy wasn’t
being presented to Members at this meeting as she had been led to believe it would be and asked what the
situation was. The Director: Economy of Place said in response that a recruitment process had been undertaken to
fill the post of Head of Property. But she said the process had not been successful because an offer of employment
had not been taken up by the individual it had been offered to. This meant the recruitment process would now
need to be repeated. This had already and would cause further delays.
The Chair pointed out that it had been quite some time ago that the former Scrutiny Assets Task and Finish Group
had highlighted the number of issues being caused by the temporary nature of senior property staff. She also
pointed to the “huge amount of money’ this had cost and was still costing the Council.
The Chair enquired about the whereabouts of the Draft Property Strategy again. The Director said that it was still
being refined and it was currently being socialised across the council by officers who work in other areas as well as
property because of the wider implications across the Council. She said the work hadn’t stood still and had kept
progressing though the correct channels. It had been taken to the Strategic Property Group and the Corporate
Leadership Board (CLB) and that substantial work had already began, including work on the Corporate Landlord
Model.
The Director said she would send the draft version to the Strategy to the Commission Members as soon as she was
in a position to do so. The Property Strategy would be presented to Cabinet in February 2020 and a new Director of
Property would be in post in December. ACTION: for the draft Property Strategy to be sent to the Commission as
soon as is possible
The Director: Commercialisation and Citizens and Shareholder Liaison said that it was clear that they were
addressing some systematic errors that had been there for a long time. They had been addressing a range of issues
over the past 12 months including preparations for the Corporate Landlord Model. The Chair stated that she was
had still expected the Draft Property Strategy to be brought to the meeting as had been agreed and she still didn’t
understand why it hadn’t been, especially when she had just been informed that it was now being socialised
throughout the council.
The discussion then moved on to the Baseline Assessment that had previously been undertaken using the Property
Asset Management Capability Assessment Model (PAMCAM) approach. PAMCAM is a self-assessment tool that was
first developed by the Office of Government Commerce (OGC) and is designed for use by public sector
organisations to measure their corporate property asset management capability and highlight areas for
improvement. The Director: Economy of Place took Members through some slides about the PAMCAM
Assessment and the Councils current position on these (both the Assessment Document and the details of the
Councils current position will be up-loaded with the minutes of the meeting). It was said that if the Assessment
was carried out again today the Council would score higher than it had previously.

Page 12

A Member commented that in his view the results of the assessment were quite shocking and he didn’t feel very
assured that the results would now be better than awful. Some Members suggested that this assessment should
be carried out again and bench-marked against the previous one.
The Chair emphasised that the Assessment Report had also highlighted a lack of leadership in the Council on this
subject. Officers said that was fair point because at that time the officers in question were interim officers.
The Chair said that she had contacted the relevant Cabinet Member for this item and asked that they attended the
meeting to respond to Members questions that evening. She said it was unfortunate they hadn’t attended because
it meant that all of the questions had been directed towards Officers instead, which she said wasn’t really fair.
Another Member commented about how low the assessment rating had been. She said that she had previously
been part of the Scrutiny Assets Task and Finish Group and they had been assured they would receive information
previously such as a data-base or inventory but it hadn’t ever emerged. Officers said the property database
information was now on Pinpoint and they would send the link to Members so they could find it. ACTION:
Property Officers to send the Pinpoint web link so it can be forwarded to Commission Members.
It was highlighted that the majority of the language on the final ‘Progress to Date’ slide of the PAMCAM
presentation was in future tense. The Chair said that she would have preferred to see it written in the present
tense so Members could be confident that things were really happening.
Officers reassured Members that communication on this would improve. Members suggested providing a timeline
in future so they could understand what is happening and when.
The Chair said that she would like this to be brought back to scrutiny in January before it goes to Cabinet.
ACTION: for the Asset Management Strategy is to be added to the January 2020 meeting agenda.

Meeting ended at 8.50 pm
CHAIR __________________

Page 13

Bristol City Council
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission
Action Tracker
9th January 2020
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission Action Tracker 2019/2020
Agenda
Item

Title of
Report/
Description

Action and Deadline

Responsible
Officer /
Member

Action taken and date completed

Strategic
Intelligence &
Performance
Advisor

As above: Performance Report - Quarter 3 and Affordable Housing
figures and Members request for further information:
The Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor will verbally update Members at the Scrutiny Meeting on 26/09/19.

Strategic
Intelligence &
Performance
Advisor

Further information and figures to be provided to Members as soon
as they were available.

Scrutiny Advisor

Have spoken to LF about this – difficulties unless allow it for
somethings and not others. Scrutiny is easy but FC and Cabinet
aren’t. will expand – it may be possible to look at this via
Response from Property Officers: The City Council owns the freehold
of the harbour however the land surrounding the harbour is within
many different ownerships. The harbour itself was initially
authorised for construction via the Bristol Dock Act 1803 and this in
turn created the vehicle for the private Bristol Dock Company to
acquire land and build the floating harbour. The Bristol Dock Act
1848 facilitated the ownership and management to pass to the City
Council.

23rd July 2019
5.

Page 14

Minutes of the
Previous Meeting
/ Performance
Report
26th September 2019
Minutes of the
Previous Meeting

7.

Public Forum

9.

Bristol Harbour
Review

Ongoing question/s on
Affordable Housing figures in
Quarterly Performance
Reports: Members asked for
further information.
Members enquired if it was
possible to put Public Forum
Mod.Gov.
Members requested
clarification of ownership of
Harbour

Director for
Commercialisation
and Citizens and
Shareholder
Liaison

Agenda Item 5

4.

Agenda
Item
10.

10.

Page 15
11.

12.

13.

Title of
Report/
Description
Performance
Report – Quarter
1

Action and Deadline

BCP475 (Increase the
number of passenger
journeys on buses):
Members continue to
request the passenger
figures for MetroBus
services.
Performance
BCP474: Increase the
Report – Quarter number of single journeys on
1
Park & Ride into Bristol: A
Members suggested that the
decreasing number of stops
on the Brislington Park &
Ride Service was affecting
passenger numbers and
asked if this could be looked
into.
Local Plan
It was agreed that the Chair
Consultation
would write to the relevant
Cabinet Members on behalf
of the Scrutiny Commission
and ask them to attend
scrutiny meetings where
possible in future.
Mayor’s Climate
It was agreed that Officers
Emergency Action would bring a further update
on the Mayors Climate
Emergency Action Plan back
to Scrutiny in January 2020
Property Assets
It was requested that the

Responsible
Officer /
Member

Action taken and date completed

Strategic
Intelligence &
Performance
Advisor
and Scrutiny
Advisor

Transport Officers have been in contact with First Bus and they are
happy to provide the total figures on a quarterly basis as follows:
 Q1 19/20 930,265 passengers
 Q2 19/20 978,530 passengers

Strategic
Intelligence &
Performance
Advisor

Councillor
O’Rourke

Members to confirm this information is sufficient
Officers to confirm if this is something that can be addressed.
Further information to follow

Commission Chair to up-date at the January meeting

Sustainable City
The Mayors Climate Emergency Action is on the 9th January 2020
and Climate
meeting agenda.
Change Service
Manager / Scrutiny
Advisor
Scrutiny Advisor
The Draft Corporate Property Strategy is included on the 9th January

Agenda
Item

13.

Title of
Report/
Description

Action and Deadline

Strategy

draft Property Strategy is
sent to the Commission
Members as possible
Property Officers to send the
Pinpoint web link so it can be
forwarded to Commission
Members

Property Assets
Strategy

Responsible
Officer /
Member

Action taken and date completed

2020 meeting agenda
Property Officers /
Scrutiny Advisor

The link below shows all local authority assets on Pinpoint (you may
need to cut/paste this into the browser):
http://maps.bristol.gov.uk/pinpoint/?service=assetinfo&maptype=js&layer=
Partner+organisation+assets;Local+authority+assets+%28areas29&mapo
pts=legend&extent=3324.23164846329&x=358708.3502667006&y=1725
65.0495300991

Page 16

As requested by Commission Members, the Property Officers will
provide further information on this in the New Year.
13.

Property Assets
Strategy

To add the Asset
Management Strategy to the
January 2020 G&R Scrutiny
meeting agenda.

Scrutiny Advisor

The Draft Corporate Property Strategy is on the Commissions 9th
January 2020 meeting agenda

Scrutiny Work Programme 2019 / 2020
People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

July 2019
2pm, Thursday 18th July

2pm, Thursday 24th July

Annual Business Report
Performance Report (Q4)
Transition Support for
Disabled Young People
SEND Standing Item -> SEND
Strategy

Annual Business Report
Performance Report (Q4)
Parks and Green Spaces
Strategy (possibly allotments)
Crime and Disorder - Crime
and ASB performance

Page 17

Better Lives – focus on
working age adults

Waste – recycling and reuse;
waste minimisation; clean
Streets and enforcement
(including graffiti update).

6pm, Tues 23rd July
(WECA Briefing beforehand)
Annual Business Report
Performance Report (Q4)
School Streets and No-idling

6pm, 17th July (MQT 5pm)

Public Transport
including ‘Transport Authority
and Governance’, Bus
Strategy, Bus Deal, real-time
information, and future
mobility
Multimodal Transport
(including mass transit and
rail, interchanges, ticketing)

BREXIT Preparedness Report

Performance Report (Q4)
Risk Report (Corporate)
Clean Air Plan

Work Programme – including
Scrutiny Inquiry Days and
Task and Finish Groups

August 2019
3pm - 14th August
Companies Performance

September 2019
6pm, Thurs, 26th September

4pm, Weds 18th September

Performance Report (Q1)

Annual Business Report

Sept TBC – Post Cabinet
Dispatch
Air Quality (Cabinet Report)

Agenda Item 8

Budget Scrutiny Process
Confirmation
BCC Thematic Boards
Health Sub-Committee Terms
of Reference
Temple Island - update on
proposals and disposal
arrangements

People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Assets Strategy
Update on the Mayor’s
Climate Emergency Action
Plan

Performance Report (Q1)
Finance Monitoring Reports

Local Plan (responses to May
2019 public consultation)

IT Transformation
Programme
To included External Auditor
Financial Debt / Arears across
the council
Commercialisation and
Innovation – general
overview

Bristol Harbour Review

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

Page 18

Investment in Regional
Community Bank and City Fund
– questions only
Annual Business Report

October 2019
5pm, Monday 14th October

5pm, Thursday 10th October

3pm Thurs 31st October

6pm, Wed 30th October

Performance Report (Q1)

Performance Report (Q1)

Finance Monitoring Report

Performance Report (Q1)

SEND Standing Item -> SEND
OFSTED Inspection/
Improvement plan
Contextualised Safeguarding

Libraries - Update

Legal Services - Service Plan
and Draft Strategy

Clean Air Plan

Neighbourhood Enforcement

Strengthening Families
Programme
Risk Report (Corporate)

Risk Report (Corporate)

Collection Fund / Financial
Surplus/Deficit Report
Council Tax Base Report

November 2019

Report from Financials T&F
Group
Risk Report (Corporate)

People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

2pm, Thursday 28th
November
Performance Report (Q2)

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

3pm, Weds 18th December

5pm Weds, 18th December

Performance Report (Q2) - TO
NOTE
Finance Monitoring Report P7
- TO NOTE
University Buildings and
Business Rates
Report of Financial T&F
Group
Commercialisation and
Innovation (Information Item)
Contract Management
Agile Working ICT Report

Performance Report Q2

6pm Thurs, 14th Nov
MEETING POSTPONED

Thrive update
Substance Misuse Strategy
development
Domestic Violence and Sexual
Abuse commissioning

December 2019

Page 19

Risk Report
Housing Company Business
Plan
Energy Company Business
Plan
Bristol Waste Company
Business Plan

January 2020
10am Mon 27th January
Keeping Bristol Safe - new
governance arrangements
and remit. Joint session with
Communities Scrutiny
Commission

10am Mon 27th January
Keeping Bristol Safe - new
governance arrangements
and remit. Joint session with
People Scrutiny Commission

6pm, 9th January 2020
Performance Report (Q2)

10am, Tue 28th January
High Streets Inquiry Day

People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission
Housing Lettings Review
Performance Report (Q2)
Student Impact on
Communities

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Corporate Risk Report
DRAFT Corporate Property
Strategy
Update on the Mayor’s
Climate Emergency Action
Plan (TBC)
Developing the One City
Climate Strategy
Temple Island Regeneration
Approach

5pm, 30th January 2020
One City Plan – annual report

One City Plan – progress
update
Clean Air Zone Update

February 2020
12:30pm, Mon 3rd February

Page 20

OFSTED/CQC report

1:30pm, Mon 3rd February
SEND Evidence Day
10am, Thursday 27th February
Hospital Education
Strategy for Inclusion
Fixed Term Exclusions
SEND Evidence Day
recommendations

February (TBC/ WC 11th Feb
6pm)
(Member visit to Temple
Meads in advance of
meeting)
Temple Meads and St Philips
Master Plan
To include Temple Quarter
Enterprise Zone
Bristol Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy,
including River Avon Flood
Strategy
City Centre Framework

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

4pm, Thurs 6th February

Budget Scrutiny Meeting

Information Management
Strategy (TBC)

10am, Thursday 12th March
Risk Report
Performance Report (Q3)
Community strategy,
including community
partnerships / Area
Committees
Bristol Impact Fund (funding
for the voluntary sector)

Items to be Scheduled

Page 21

Sports Strategy briefing
Community Safety
Partnership / Crime and
Disorder briefing: To inform
for December CSC (new
structure – new governance
arrangements and what is the
remit).
Performance criteria for
waste – possible T&F
Parks commercialisation
Waste

5pm, 2nd March 2020
City Leap
Business Plans

Agenda Item 9
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
9th January 2020

Report of: Stephen Peacock, Growth and Regeneration Executive Director
Title: Quarterly Performance Progress Report, (Quarter 2 2019/20)
Ward: All wards
Officer Presenting Report: Kate Cole, Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9037246

Recommendation
That the performance report be noted, and scrutiny members and directors discuss progress,
and measures to address performance issues are considered and implemented by relevant
services.
The significant issues in the report are:
The directorate is on track with a range of measures contained within Appendix A1 which are
designed to demonstrate our progress towards the delivery of the Corporate Strategy (2018-23).
Of the 14 measures reported this quarter:
- 5 (36%) are on or above target
- 7 (50%) are below target
- 7 (50%) are performing better than at the same time last year
- 2 (14%) have no quarterly target

Page 22

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

1. Summary
Bristol City Council’s Business Plan for April 2019 - March 2020 sets out a wide range of actions
that are contributing to the delivery of the Corporate Strategy 2018–2023, which in turn sets out
our priorities and vision for Bristol. These actions are listed under the four strategic themes of
Empowering and Caring, Fair and Inclusive, Well Connected and Wellbeing.
A number of performance measures have been identified as key measures (KPIs) to demonstrating
delivery, and those for Growth and Regeneration are set out in Appendix A1. All Corporate Plan
performance measures (BCPs) contained here are designed to demonstrate our progress towards
the Corporate Strategy (2018-2023).
2. Context
This report is designed to ensure the scrutiny commission is appraised on quarterly performance in
line with the directorate leadership team and cabinet members in the relevant directorate.
The significant issues in the report are:
The directorate is on track with a range of measures contained within Appendix A1 which are
designed to demonstrate our progress towards the delivery of the Corporate Strategy (2018-2023).
There are 14 KPI results reported this quarter:
• 5 (36%) of those with established targets are performing on or above target
• 7 (50%) of those with established targets are performing below target
• 7 (50%) with a direct comparison from 12 months ago have improved.
Of the remaining measures owned by Growth and Regeneration there are 11 where the data is
annual and not yet due to be reported.
Development of Place
• Key measures across this area are performing well; where performance is below target the
factors that have contributed to this during the quarter, such as vacancies, have been
identified and performance is expected to be back on track during the year. The KPIs in this
area are designed to demonstrate that council activities needed to underpin the delivery of
new homes in the city are progressing at a good rate.
Economy of Place
• Key measures in this division are currently all performing above target albeit at a slightly
lower level than this time last year. This can be directly linked to there being no Gromit
sculpture trail over the summer; this bi-annual event always results in a substantial increase
of visitors to the city overall as well as to Bristol’s museums that host statues.
Management of Place
• The public transport measures are slightly below target, but performing better than at the
same point last year. An in-year adjustment to the annual target is due (and will be
effective in quarter 3); this will reflect a correction in figures for 2018-19 which were
previously over-reported by operators.

Page 23

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

3. Policy
Performance is reported as part of quarterly governance process as soon as possible after gathering
all the necessary data.
4. Consultation
a) Internal
Performance progress has been presented to the Growth and Regeneration directorate
management team and cabinet leads prior to the production of this report.
b) External
Not applicable.
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
5a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to:
- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;
- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);
- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.
iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

5b)

Not applicable

Appendices:
Appendix A1: Performance Progress Update (Q2 2019/20)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None

Page 24

Appendix A1

Growth & Regeneration Scrutiny – Q2 2019/20 Performance Summary
ECONOMY OF PLACE

DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
Title

Below

Title
BCP410: Increase the number of visitors to Bristol Museums, Galleries
and Archives

Above

BCP415: Increase the number of tourists to the city

Below

DGR120: Road Safety: reduce the number of people killed or seriously
injured in road traffic incidents.

Target status

BCP425: Increase the number of affordable homes delivered in Bristol
DGR124a: Percentage of major residential planning applications
processed within 13 weeks
DGR124b: Percentage of non-major residential planning applications
processed within eight weeks
DGR313a: Percentage of major residential planning applications
approved
DGR313b: Percentage of non-major residential planning applications
approved

Below
Below

OVERALL SUMMARY:

Page 25

36% (5) KPIs On / Above target
50% (7) KPIs Better than Q1 last year

MANAGEMENT OF PLACE
Title
BCP474: Increase the number of single journeys on Park & Ride into
Bristol
BCP475: Increase the number of passenger journeys on buses

Target status
Below
Below

Target status
Above
Above
Better than
2018-19

Appendix A1

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny - Quarter 2 (1st April - 30 September 2019) Performance Progress Report
Corp Plan KC
ref

Code

Title

+/-

2018/19
Outturn

2019/20
Target

Q1 Progress

Q2 Progress

Comparison over
last 12 months

Officer Notes

Development of Place
FI1

BCP425

Increase the number of affordable homes
delivered in Bristol

+

260

440

41

148



The figure reported is two affordable homes (AH) less than projected for this quarter as the East St.
scheme has been delivered as private rent properties rather than affordable rent properties.

W2

BCP433

Reduce the total CO2 emissions in Bristol City (k
tonnes)

-

1,547
k Tonnes

1,497
k Tonnes

Data not due

1,491
k Tonnes



This measure is reported at around 18 months after the end of the calendar year so the 2019/20
reported figure is for the calendar year 2017. On track for the target in place at that time.

93.3%

90.0%

100.0%

96.8%



Performance at Q2 not as high as Q2 in 18/19 but still above target and on track to remain above
target.

75.2%

75.0%

71.2%

74.0%



Performance at Q2 is better than at Q2 in 18/19 and is on track to meet target by year end.

FI1

FI1

% of major residential planning applications
+
DGR124a processed within 13 weeks or as otherwise
agreed
% of non-major residential planning applications
+
DGR124b processed within 8 weeks or as otherwise
agreed

Page 26

FI1

DGR313a

Percentage of major residential planning
applications approved

+

88.0%

92.0%

94.1%

90.3%



Currently below target but better than previous year end.

FI1

DGR313b

Percentage of non-major residential planning
applications approved

+

70.1%

68.0%

62.7%

64.1%



Q2 performance is better than at Q2 in 18/19 and on track to meet target by year end.

FI1

DGR338a

% Building Regulation Full Plans residential apps
decided within statutory time limit

+

100.0%

99.0%

100.0%

100.0%

=

Performance for this measure continues to be above target.

Economy of Place



The museums had a very busy summer with high quality exhibitions and events that were popular.
Our Aardman Early Man exhibition at M Shed was not only busy but has reported a very high
satisfaction rate. At Bristol Museum & Art Gallery we had the second of a series of Japanese prints
exhibition which drew high numbers and we also showed a large Banksy painting which was
particularly popular with our national and international visitors. A further positive element of
increased visitor numbers was also strong increase in the commercial activity.
The Quality of Life (QoL) survey ran in Autumn 2019. Headline results will be issued via the QoL
Priority Indicators briefing report in January 2020 followed by a full set of results in March 2020. It
is anticipated that this will all be incorporated into Q4 reporting.



Performance is 4.9% above target after a strong summer season; small to large scale events
continue to take place all over the city and are a mixture of free and ticketed activity. Performance
is slightly down (-1.49%) on the same period in 2018/19 when 2,463,379 visits were reported.



This reporting period covers January to June 2019; there were a total of 25 killed or seriously
injured casualties, of which 3 were fatalities. Data is provided by Avon & Somerset Police and is
currently subject to delay so it is likely that adjustments will need to be made later in the year. This
measure does not have an in-year quarterly target. The full year targets for 2016 onwards are set
on the basis of meeting the longer term Joint Local Transport Plan reduction target.

596,063
W4

Increase the number of visitors to Bristol
BCP410
Museums, Galleries and Archives

+

1,323,783

1,100,000

277,987

(q2 target
550,000)

2,426,671
W4

WC1

BCP415 Increase the number of tourists to the city

DGR120

Road Safety: reduce the number of people killed
or seriously injured in road traffic incidents.

+

-

4,487,329

103

4,625,000

87

1,180,697

15

(q2 target)
2,312,500

25

Corp Plan KC
ref

WOP4

Code

BCP428

Title

Increase annual revenue generated from the
council's investment estate

+/-

2018/19
Outturn

2019/20
Target

Q1 Progress

Q2 Progress

Comparison over
last 12 months

Officer Notes

+

£275,243

£120,000

£19,555

£46,955



An additional £27,400 was realised during the second quarter of 2019-20; when added to the
additional income already consolidated during 2018-19 contributes to the total reported at q2 this
year. There are no standard in-year quarterly targets for this measure as income is determined by
the rent review cycle for the investment estates which is scheduled across the whole year. (The 5year MTFP target for the period 2018/19-2022/23 was set at £523,00 per annum increase in total
rental income; since 2018/19 £600,000+ per annum increase in rental income has already been
added).

-

10.80%

10.00%

n/a

11.70%



Wider economic/market factors give caution to targets ( which were based on Office for National
Statistics data). Data is released annually with a two-year lag i.e. 2019 reported figure reflects 2017
data. Increases in gas/electric prices will also influence this figure.



Although slightly below target overall journeys on park and ride services are up 3.5% on the same
time last year.



Performance is higher compared to the same period last year, up 0.5% from 19.8 million journeys.
There is also generally a strong increase in bus usage during the third quarter of the year at the
start of the new academic year so this should contribute towards bringing future reporting nearer
to target.

Management of Place
Reduce the percentage of the population living
in Fuel Poverty

W3

BCP334

WC1

Increase the number of single journeys on Park
BCP474
& Ride into Bristol

WC1

Increase the number of passenger journeys on
BCP475
buses

841,829
+

1,716,174

1,720,000

427,807

(q2 target
860,000)
19,975,052

+

42,216,084

43,061,000

9,973,872

(q2 target
21,099,890)

Page 27

Progress Key
Well Above Target
Above Target
On Target
Below Target
Well Below Target

Improvement Key



Direction of travel IMPROVED compared to same period in the previous
year

=

SAME as previous same period in the previous year



Direction of travel WORSENED compared to same period in the previous
year

Page 28

Corporate Strategy - Key Commitments
Empowering & Caring
Give our children the best start in life by protecting and developing children’s centre services, being great corporate parents and protecting children from exploitation or harm.
EC1
Reduce the overall level of homelessness and rough sleeping, with no-one needing to spend a ‘second night out’.
EC2
Provide ‘help to help yourself’ and ‘help when you need it’ through a sustainable, safe and diverse system of social care and safeguarding provision, with a focus on early help and intervention.
EC3
Prioritise community development and enable people to support their community.
EC4
Fair & Inclusive
Make sure that 2,000 new homes (800 affordable) are built in Bristol each year by 2020.
FI1
Improve educational outcomes and reduce educational inequality, whilst ensuring there are enough school places to meet demand and with a transparent admissions process.
FI2
Develop a diverse economy that offers opportunity to all and makes quality work experience and apprenticeships available to every young person.
FI3
Help develop balanced communities which are inclusive and avoid negative impacts from gentrification.
FI4
Wellbeing
Embed health in all our policies to improve physical and mental health and wellbeing, reducing inequalities and the demand for acute services.
W1
Keep Bristol on course to be run entirely on clean energy by 2050 whilst improving our environment to ensure people enjoy cleaner air, cleaner streets and access to parks and green spaces.
W2
Tackle food and fuel poverty.
W3
Keep Bristol a leading cultural city, helping make culture, sport and play accessible to all.
W4
Well-Connected
Improve physical and geographical connectivity; tackling congestion and progressing towards a mass transit system.
WC1
Make progress towards being the UK’s best digitally connected city.
WC2
Reduce social and economic isolation and help connect people to people, people to jobs and people to opportunity.
WC3
Work with cultural partners to involve citizens in the ‘Bristol’ story, giving everyone in the city a stake in our long-term strategies and sense of connection.
WC4
Workplace Organisational Priorities
Redesign the council to work effectively as a smaller organisation.
WOP1
Equip our colleagues to be as productive and efficient as possible.
WOP2
Make sure we have an inclusive, high-performing, healthy and motivated workforce.
WOP3
Be responsible financial managers and explore new commercial ideas.
WOP4

Agenda Item 10
Name of Meeting – Report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
9th January 2020
Title:

Corporate Risk Report

Recommendation:
The Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission are asked to consider the
following Quarter 2 Corporate Risk Report that was presented to Cabinet on the 3rd
December 2019.

Page 29

Decision Pathway Report
PURPOSE: For reference
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 03 December 2019
TITLE

Corporate Risk Management Report (CRR)

Ward(s)

City Wide

Author: Jan Cadby

Job title: Risk and Insurance Manager

Cabinet lead: Councillor Cheney

Executive Director lead: Mike Jackson / Denise Murray

Proposal origin: BCC Staff
Decision maker: Cabinet Member
Decision forum: Cabinet
Purpose of Report: Managing risks are an integral element to the achievement of the Bristol City Council’s (BCC)
Corporate Strategy (CS) deliverables. The report provides an update on work completed to improve risk management
at BCC and sets out the council’s current significant risks and summarises progress in managing the risks as at Quarter
2 2019-20. The Q2 Corporate Risk Management Report will be presented to Cabinet in December 2019.
The Corporate Risk Report (CRR) is a key document in the council’s approach to the management of risk; it captures
strategic risks set out in the Corporate Strategy 2018-2023. It also provides a context through which Directorates
construct their own high level risk assessments and is used to inform decision making about business planning,
transformation and service delivery.
The CRR provides assurance to management and Members that Bristol City Council’s significant risks have been
identified and arrangements are in place to manage those risks within the tolerance levels agreed. It should be noted
that ‘risk’ by definition includes both threats and opportunities, which is reflected in the CRR.
The CRR summary of risks is attached to this report at Appendix A is the latest formal iteration following a review by
members of the council’s Corporate Leadership Board (CLB) on October 15th 2019.
Evidence Base: The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the council to have in place effective arrangements
for the management of risk. These arrangements are reviewed each year and reported as part of the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS).
Ensuring that the Service Risk Registers (SRR), Directorate Risk Reports and the Corporate Risk Reports (CRR) are
soundly based will help the council to ensure it is anticipating and managing key risks to optimise the achievement of
the council’s objectives and prioritise actions for managing those risks.
The registers and reports are a management tool. They need regular review to ensure that the occurrence of
obstacles or events that may put individual’s safety at harm, impact upon service delivery and the council’s
reputation are minimised, opportunities are maximised and when risks happen, they are managed and
communicated to minimise the impact.
Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations That Cabinet note the report and progress on embedding Risk
Management arrangements within the Council.
Corporate Strategy alignment: Managing risks are an integral element to the achievement of the BCC Corporate
Strategy (CS) deliverables.
City Benefits: Risk Management aims to maximise achievement of the council’s aims and objectives by reducing the
risks to those achievements and maximising possible opportunities that arise.

Page 30
1
Version April-2018

Consultation Details:
1. Corporate Risk Report- Summary of Corporate Risks:
The CLB reviewed the CRR in October 2019 and accepts it as a working summary report of the critical and significant
risks from the Service Risk Registers.
The CRR sets out the significant critical and high rated risks both threats and opportunities. All other business risks
reside on the Service Risk Registers and reported in through the Directorate Risk Reports and the Corporate Risk
Report.
The Corporate Risk Report (CRR) as October 2019 contains:
Threat Risks








0 critical threats
17 high rated
6 medium
1 new risk
3 improving
0 deteriorating
0 closed

Opportunity Risks







1 significant opportunity
2 high
1 medium
1 improving
0 deteriorating
0 closed

External / Contingency Risks





2 high threats
0 improving
0 deteriorating
0 closed

A summary of the progress of new, improving, deteriorating and closed risks for this reporting period are set out
below.
There is one new threat risk:


CRR30: Clean Air - Failure to deliver Bristol City Council's wider Clean Air Plan (excluding traffic clean air
zone). Communication /engagement with stakeholders do not result in sufficient behavioural change.
The risk rating being 3x5= (15) high risk. This risk is managed and monitored within the Growth and
Regeneration Service Risk Registers.

There are three improving threat risks:


CRR3: Asbestos - Failure to manage the asbestos management plan for properties. The risk rating being
2x7= (14) high risk. This risk is managed and monitored within the Resources Service Risk Registers.



CRR4: Health, Safety and Wellbeing - If the City Council does not meet its wide range of Health & Safety
requirements then there could be a risk to the safety of employees, visitors, contractors, citizens and BCC
corporate body. The risk rating being 2x7= (14) high risk. This risk is managed and monitored within the
Resources Service Risk Registers.



CRR5: Business Continuity and Council Resilience - If the council has a Business Continuity disruption and
is unable to ensure the resilience of key BCC operations and business activities, then the impact of the
event may be increased with a greater impact on people and council Services. The risk rating being 2x5=
(10) medium risk. This risk is managed and monitored within the Growth and Regeneration Service Risk
Registers.

There is one improving opportunity risk:


OPP1: One City - The One City Approach will offer a new way to plan strategically with partners as part of
a wider city system. The risk rating being 3x7= (21) high risk. This risk is managed and monitored within
the Resources Service Risk Registers.

The risks BCCC2/OPP4 - Brexit is an unpredictable external threat and opportunity, and because of this the reporting
for these entries may already be out of date. This is being managed within the Resources Service Risk Registers via a
council-wide Brexit Project Board (for general preparedness) and Brexit Coordination Group (a tactical response
group to manage any immediate issues presented in a ‘no deal’ scenario).

Page
31
All risks on the CRR have management actions in place.
The CRR
will continue to be subject to a refresh during 2019.
2
Version April-2018

As with all risks, it is not possible to eliminate the potential of failure entirely without significant financial and social
costs. The challenge is to make every reasonable effort to mitigate and manage risks effectively, and where failure
occurs, to learn and improve.
Further details are contained in Appendix D: The summary of the threat risks are set out on pages 1 to 22,
opportunity risks pages 23 to 24, and external and civil contingency risks on page 25 and 26 all including controls and
management actions. A summary of risk performance on pages 27 to 28 by level of risk, the risk matrix on page 29
and the risk scoring criteria on page 30. More detail is available on request.
2. Risk Management Framework
Risk management is the culture, process and structures that are directed towards effective management of potential
opportunities and threats to the council achieving its priorities and objectives and a key element of the council’s
governance framework. The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) declaration for 2018-19 highlighted a number of
opportunities to enhance Risk Management. Areas for improvement include:







Increasing the level of engagement and ownership by Service Managers.
Enhancing the engagement of Members in the risk management process.
Refreshing the Corporate and Directorate Risk Registers.
Risk Management training and awareness.
Risk Management within Business Case approvals, Project Management and Procurement Frameworks.
Maintaining the focus of the process on reducing risk against the council’s Corporate Plan 2018-23.

The risk management process continues to be developed over the year. During this quarter we have:





Risk Management has been integrated into the Service Planning Process to aid decision making and will
inform on the annual Budget Risk Register.
Refreshed the SharePoint page to include a Service Risk Register guidance document.
The Risk and Insurance Team have overseen a Risk Review of the Highways which received a good rating from
the Councils Insurers Zurich Municipal.
An additional resource has been sourced to assist the Risk and Insurance Manager to further embed Risk
Management principles and practices within the council.

Revenue Cost

£0

Source of Revenue Funding N/A

Capital Cost

£0

Source of Capital Funding

One off cost ☐

Ongoing cost ☐

Saving Proposal ☐

N/A

Income generation proposal ☐

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:
1. Finance Advice: The CRR is a live document refreshed regularly following consultation across the organisation, and aims to
provide assurance that the council’s main risks have been identified and appropriate mitigations are in place to ensure they are
managed within agreed tolerances. This includes, as set out in the annual budget report, measures to ensure appropriate
financial provision is made through the budget planning process and reserves.
Finance Business Partner: Michael Pilcher, Chief Accountant, Deputy Section 151 Officer 15th November 2019.
2. Legal Advice: There are no specific legal implications in the report. The CRR enables the council to monitor and manage
identified risks and mitigations to ensure good governance and compliance with its statutory and other duties.

Legal Team Leader: Nancy Rollason, Head of Legal Service and Deputy Monitoring Officer 15th November 2019.
3. Implications on IT: The CRR contains a number of references to IT as well as other areas of the Council. These IT elements
are being managed and addressed as stated within the register. The accountable Directors for IT and Information Security Risks
are working together developing a training plan and new processes to accelerate the necessary changes.

IT Team Leader: Simon Oliver, Digital Transformation Director 15th November 2019.

Page 32

3
Version April-2018

4. HR Advice: It is essential that staffing resources are appropriately deployed to manage these risks that are highlighted. There
are no HR implications arising from the CRR report.

HR Partner: Mark Williams, Head of Human Resources 15th November 2019.
EDM Sign-off
Cabinet Member sign-off
CLB Sign-off
For Key Decisions - Mayor’s
Office sign-off

Denise Murray
Cllr. C. Cheney
Denise Murray
Mayor’s Office

2/10/19
14/10/19

15/10/19
28/10/19

Appendix A – Further essential background / detail on the proposal:
Q2 2019/20 Corporate Risk Report (CRR) The corporate risk summary report sets out the risks on
pages 1 to 26 including controls and management actions, a summary of risk performance on
page 27 and 28, the risk matrix on page 29 and the risk scoring criteria on page 30.

YES

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out - internal and external

NO

Appendix C – Summary of any engagement with scrutiny

NO

Appendix D – Risk assessment

NO

Appendix E – Equalities screening / impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix F – Eco-impact screening/ impact assessment of proposal

NO

Appendix G – Financial Advice

NO

Appendix H – Legal Advice

NO

Appendix I – Exempt Information

NO

Appendix J – HR advice

NO

Appendix K – ICT

NO

Page 33
4
Version April-2018

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

We have reviewed Capital Governance arrangements and have established the Capital and Investment
Board in order to improve capital programme governance and accountability arrangements. The Board is
overseen by the Delivery Executive to make improvements to capital project business cases, taking
account of whole life costing principles and improving capital monitoring arrangements.

A review of the medium term financial plan and capital strategy to develop
a longer term financial planning horizon including sensitivity and scenario
analysis. This will allow the Council to better manage and understand its
long term investments.

The first meeting of the CLB / Capital and Investment Board was held on 2 July 2019. Terms of reference
and governance arrangements for the Capital Board were agreed, and the Board meets on a monthly
basis. The Board will ensure that there is greater rigour and control, including Risk Management, of the
Council's Capital Programme.

The Growth and Regeneration Board meets monthly to continue to
improve project, programme and portfolio risk management and to ensure
robust arrangements are in place and there is challenge against
deliverables. We will maintain a balanced portfolio of investment assets so
that exposure to particular classes of risk can be minimised.

Page 34

Key potential causes are:
 The cost is higher than
expected.
 The project is delivered later
than planned.
 The operating and
maintenance cost of the asset
exceeds expectations.
 Strategic, geographic, social,
financial and economic
conditions changing over time.
 Oversight of Project
Interdependencies not well
managed.

Risk
Rating

CRR1: Long term commercial
investments and major projects
capital investment.
BCC’S long-term commercial
investments and major projects
may require greater than
anticipated capital investment.

What we are doing
Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

We are understanding, monitoring and reporting the cost-determining factors, and seeking relevant
professional advice to ensure Value for Money (VfM) by undertaking due diligence which covers the
economic, financial, social and environmental case. This is ongoing.
The Growth and Regeneration Directorate is responsible for delivery of major infrastructure projects.
Some of the key projects include:
Harbour Strategy
We are looking to secure capital funding to commence in 2019/20 through a robust capital business case
to make commercial improvements across areas such as new pontoons, and boaters facilities,’ both of
which will generate income and make the area more attractive economically.
3

7

We are constructing a plan around our commercial offering, fees & charges, leases etc. to ensure we are
maximising income that can be used to invest in the area.
Temple Quarter
For contracts we ensure that robust contingencies are built into the project costs, and secure consultant's
advice relating to appropriate risk allocation and reward, and other contractual arrangements.

7

7

Colston hall: Following the instigation of the 10 point plan and the
subsequent discussion and negotiation with the preferred contractor
engaged through the SCF, Willmott Dixon, BCC successfully entered into a
building contract with a contract sum of £36,722,948 on the 28th May
2019 with a revised project budget standing at £52,204,947 ( this figure will
form the actual project envelope).

Cattlemarket Road
Cabinet approved reallocation of existing budget in January 2019 to enable demolition of the former
sorting office to ground level.
Colston Hall
Consultants were engaged last year to undertake an options appraisal to verify the project in its current
format i.e. the scope of the works and ensuring that the correct option has been chosen to make the hall
financially sustainable. Cabinet has approved the underwriting of the project to a maximum of £48.8m.
The project is progressed through the Southern Construction Framework (administered by Devon County
Council).

Risk Owner: Executive Director
Growth and Regeneration,
Executive Director Resources and
S151 Officer.

21

Harbour Condition Survey: A robust asset management planning
framework. We are carrying out condition surveys on the docks walls to
produce a future maintenance schedule as part of the BCC Asset
Management Plan.
Cattlemarket Road: Further funding may be required to discharge the
obligations of the City Council under the terms of the sale agreement to
the University of Bristol (UoB). Discussions are underway between
Commercialisation and Citizens and Property colleagues with the UoB to
reach a resolution.

Carrying out condition surveys to assist with the development of a robust maintenance schedule.

Energy
In the last 2 years Bristol Energy has grown significantly however the energy market is extremely complex
with strong competition from new and existing energy retailers with high volatility in wholesale prices
and the industry is currently subject to price scrutiny from Industry regulators.
Action Owner: Executive Director Growth and Regeneration, Director Finance, Director
Commercialisation and Citizens.

1

Harbour Strategy: Colleagues across Growth & Regeneration and
Resources Directorates are working together to ensure we have a joined up
approach to delivering a new Harbour Strategy. This falls in to three main
work streams Assets, Design and Harbour/Marina activity. Whilst these 3
pieces of work are in differing project stages, an umbrella group to act as a
steering and governance forum is being established. This is progressing and
remains under discussion across Resources and Growth and Regeneration
Directorates, with the Commercialisation and Citizens Division leading on
the Harbour Estate Review.

Governance arrangements are in place for the council as a Company Shareholder.

We have completed a commercial benchmarking exercise in terms of charges and commercial offering
using similar marina sites across the UK.

Risk
Rating

Tolerance
Risk Level
Impact

Current Risk
Level

Likelihood

Performance

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

The said figure of £52,204,947 being made up from the £48,800,000
Cabinet approval plus £3,404,947 WECA funding for Project inflation
Work commenced on site 3rd June 2019 with an agreed Contract
completion date of 25th October 2021.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Empowering and Caring, Fair and Inclusive, Well
Connected, Wellbeing.

1

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

The Asbestos policy, termed as the ‘Asbestos Arrangement’ is owned by Corporate Health
and Safety services and was introduced in February 2013, it was again reviewed in June
2018.

Property CHASM project is underway, to ensure all premises
report on compliance this was planned for completion end
September.

An internal review was carried out on asbestos management arrangements in Housing in
2018.

The structure of the new team is currently being formulated
by the newly appointed Construction Safety Manager. Jan
2020.

Failure to manage the asbestos management plan for
properties.
Key potential causes are:
 Staff availability to carry out work plans in a safe way.
 Lack of appropriate training.
 Lack of oversight and control by local management.
 Lack of information on the potential or known risks.
 Inadequate contract management arrangements.
 Lack of effective processes and systems consistently being
applied.
 Policies are not kept up to date.
 Budget pressures.

An action plan is in place within Housing and being governed on a regular basis by the
Safety, Health and Wellbeing Team. To date, all actions have been completed and 4 remain
outstanding.

1

7

7

The terms of reference for the new Team are being
developed, it is envisaged that the team will take working
responsibility for the Keystone asbestos management
software and for leading other asbestos improvement
strategies. Jan 2020.

Reportable exposures (RIDDOR reportable) have reduced. Progress has been made to raise
the risk profile of asbestos amongst managers and operatives, introduction of more robust
strategies for managing staff and contractors, asbestos good working practice is also
regularly communicated.
Staff and operatives have attended asbestos training.
A management directive has been made this training a mandatory requirement for staff at
every level with Housing and Landlord Services.

What we are doing

Risk Rating

CRR3: Failure to Manage Asbestos.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Risk Rating

Performance

Current Risk
Level

2

7

14

Page 35

There is a process for reporting Asbestos exposure incidents to the HSE via F2508 form.
Asbestos incidents are reported via the Corporate health and safety accident/incident
process.
We have an ongoing plan for properties to be surveyed prior to any work being undertaken
by Asbestos Consultants plus an ongoing programme of surveys is being carried out.

We are holding regular ‘Asbestos working group’ meetings to
progress the management of Asbestos across the authority.
Ongoing.
Now that progress has been made with the plan, a second
detailed review will be carried out by the Safety Health and
Wellbeing Team and the Construction Health and Safety
Manager to re- assess the effectiveness of all action that has
been taken to date and to ensure the Asbestos Management
arrangements are continually improving. Jan 2020.
Mandatory asbestos staff training within Housing and
Landlord Services is in progress.

Asbestos incidents are investigated in-house and appropriate actions taken.
Property Services have improved the contract management arrangements with MSS, the
surveyor to ensure that all inspections are carried out according to required timescales.
A new dedicated safety Team based within Housing and Landlord Services has been
created.

Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service and Corporate Leadership
Board (CLB) / Director HR, Workforce and Organisational
Design, John Walsh

Action Owner: Director of Commercialisation and Citizens (for Corporate Estate) and
Director of Housing and Landlord Services (for Social Housing).

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

2

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Owner: Head of Paid
Service and Corporate
Leadership Board (CLB).

1

7

7

A revised electronic accident /incident local reporting
database is being developed. Product specification has been
scoped and assessment made for feasibility to use Itrent. This
was planned for October and has been delayed to Feb 2020.

BCC has a Corporate Health and Safety Management System (CHaSMS) to identify and monitor hazards, risks and appropriate
actions. Each manager (with staff and /or premises responsibilities) have an action plan which is completed by all Managers on
a quarterly basis. Once completed the HS&W team check the returns and give relevant feedback to the individual Managers
and report the overall results to Senior Management.

Project plan in place to update and improve all elements of
the health and safety management system. This plan is being
governed quarterly by Statutory and Policy Board. Ongoing.

The accident/Incident reporting procedure is in place to monitor injury to colleagues and is communicated. All incidents are
subject to the investigation procedure to reduce the potential for any recurrences.

Business partnering arrangements plan to be put in place by
October 2019 to strengthen Director level support for Health
and Safety (within existing resources). Working with the
Director teams in each Directorate, quarterly reports will be
expanded to cover CHASM returns and themes, incidents,
training provision compliance. Directorates will be supported
to develop action plans.

Corporate procedures and a risk assessment pro-forma exist for core safety functions including arrangements for fire risk
assessment of all workplaces. A register is in place for potential asbestos exposures. We have reviewed and further invested in
statutory health surveillance equipment and training and a programme of work in place within council housing post Grenfell.
BCC has a programme of e-learning and personal face to face course delivery available to all staff and members. Ongoing
specific training on H&S and excessive pressure/ personal resilience is also available. Stress management training and stress
risk assessment training is available for managers and employees.

All policies and procedures plan to be reviewed and refreshed
by April 2020.

An independent occupational health support (NHS Avon Partnership Occupational Health Service) is in place to provide advice,
employee support, management medical opinion and advice to support managers dealing with employee ill-health and
absence. A pre-employment health screening service is in place to ensure reasonable adjustments are identified to support
employees and also an HGV driver medical support service.
A confidential Employee Assistance Programme, Wellbeing telephone helpline operates (24hrs / 7 days a week); this
programme also includes a range of Wellbeing information via a website. Partnerships with external providers of counselling
and physiotherapy services are in place to provide fast-track access to these services. The council is routinely monitoring these
services.

Risk Rating

Page 36

Key potential causes are:
 If services do not have
sufficient staff numbers
to carry out work plans
in a safe way.
 If services are not able
to order appropriate
equipment required for
staff safety.
 Lack of appropriate
equipment.
 Lack of appropriate
training.
 Lack of oversight and
control by local
management.
 Lack of information on
the potential or known
risks.
 Inadequate contract
management
arrangements.
 Lack of effective
processes and systems
consistently being
applied.
 Policies are not kept up
to date.
 Budget pressures.

What we are doing

Impact

If the City Council does
not meet its wide range of
Health & Safety
requirements then there
could be a risk to the
safety of employees,
visitors, contractors,
citizens and BCC
corporate body.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

The Corporate Health & Wellbeing (HS&W) team is in place to support the council and provide advice and guidance. The
Corporate Policy Statement, service specific policies, procedures and systems of work and safety arrangements are in place
and routinely reviewed.

Risk Rating

CRR4: Corporate Health,
Safety and Wellbeing.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

CHASMs will be expanded to include a greater focus on
property risk, with a new arrangement for those "persons in
charge" for reporting and discussing premises risks.
2

7

14

A review of training will be carried out to ensure that all
relevant and required training is available. Linked to CHASM
review by April 2020.
Arrangements for controlling risks of Hand Arm Vibration,
Noise and respiratory sensitizers will be carried out, with a
supporting Occupational Health Surveillance programme
where required by December 2019.

The Intelligence network including the Corporate Safety Information System is in place to share details of the addresses to the
Citizens of Bristol considered to present risks to staff.
BCC also has a system of Trade Union Consultation with Health and Safety trained Representatives.

A refreshed focus on wellbeing and health is in progress with
a plan in place within the Organisational Improvement Plan to
focus on mental health by April 2020.

Benchmarking and annual reports are provided to BCC along with the annual performance report.
All contracts set up with external providers include checking their relevant Health and Safety competency.
The council’s audit programme monitors compliance with statutory duty and best practices.

Time to Change action plan is planned for April 2020 which
will be monitored.

A review of the Health and Safety Management arrangements was carried out and an improvement plan in place.
CHASMs have been in October 2019 to ensure it is risk based; enabling priority to be given to risk areas identified and create a
clearer line of sight for Directors on the risks being managed in their business areas.

Action Owner: Director of Workforce Change.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

3

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Page 37

1

7

7

The Business Continuity Policy and the Corporate Business
Continuity Plan is planned to be reviewed once Business
Continuity Officer recruited.
Business Continuity refresher training - workshops held at
100TS and City Hall.

A number of Policies and procedures are in place including the Business Continuity Policy
communicated to relevant staff. The Incident Response Plan updated in July 2017.

A review of Service Level Business Continuity Plans will be
carried out in early 2020. We are introducing a quality
assurance approach for our business continuity plans to
emphasise service accountability.

Service Business Continuity Plans were in place for January 2018, the plans have undergone
‘refreshing by services’ annually.
An Incident Management Team training session was carried out October 2018.
A Senior Management on-call rota has been devised agreed and is regularly monitored.

Risk Rating

Key potential causes are:
 Strikes (People, Fuel).
 Loss of key staff (communicable diseases and
influenza epidemics).
 Loss of suppliers.
 Loss of accommodation to deliver key services.
 Loss of equipment.
 Any event which may cause major disruption.
 Unavailability of IT and/or Telecoms.
 Loss of staff /staff availability.
 Knowledge loss.
 Reduced chances of preventing/ responding to
incidents due to a lack of forward planning or
investment.
Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and
Regeneration / Head of Paid Service.

What we are doing

Impact

If the council has a Business Continuity disruption
and is unable to ensure the resilience of key BCC
operations and business activities, then the impact
of the event maybe increased with a greater impact
on people and council Services.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

The council has a Corporate Resilience Group (CRG) supported by directorate representatives who
meet quarterly to oversee the council’s Business Continuity arrangements and to receive significant
risks outside council’s Control which are reflected on the Local Resilience Forum Community Risk
Register.

Risk Rating

CRR5: Business Continuity and Councils Service
Resilience.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

2

5

10

A successful annual recovery exercise Day Two was carried out 25th May 2018 and relevant
improvements are being built into the wider council arrangements and will be briefed to the CRG.
CLB accepted growth bid for extra staff on Civil Protection Unit (CPU) team.

The Businesses Continuity Working Group will be refreshed
within the year and we are currently drafting a plan for future
exercises to test different elements of BCC Business
Continuity arrangements with partners.

A Business Continuity Officer recruited.

Action Owner: Director Management of Place and Civil Protection Manager.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Wellbeing.

4

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

We are continually improving the comprehensive system of control which aims to prevent fraud and increase the
likelihood of detection. This includes a strong and robust policy on anti-fraud, corruption and bribery. A Bribery and
Corruption review has been completed which concluded that controls in the services most at risk of corruption are in
place. However it highlighted that work is required to strengthen the declarations of interest processes and the gifts and
hospitality register and approvals.

We are monitoring fraud indicators (warning signs
and fraud alerts) to ensure anti- fraud approach is
correctly targeted.

We take a strong stance when fraud is found and seek financial recovery through a strong and effective counter fraud
team.

Work is underway with legal services to ensure
maximum recovery with minimum resource.
Analysis of how much 'recoverable' overpayment is
actually 'recovered' is currently underway to ensure
resources are targeted most effectively.

Failure to prevent or detect acts of
significant fraud or corruption against
the council from either internal or
external sources.

Page 38

Key potential causes are:
 Failure of management to implement
a sound system of internal control
and/or to demonstrate commitment
to it at all times.
 Not keeping up to date with
developments, in new areas of fraud.
 Insufficient risk assessment of new
emerging fraud issues.
 Lack of clear management control of
responsibility, authorities and / or
delegation.
 Lack of resources to undertake the
depth of work required to minimise
the risks of fraud / avoidance.
 Under investment in fraud
prevention and detection technology
and resource.

Employees are aware of probity standards expected of them via an Employee Code of Conduct, improving awareness of
fraud and compliance through a process of reminders about ethics and conduct, fraud awareness training and other
publicity, continual maintenance of Counter Fraud information on Web pages and monitoring and review of the
effectiveness of the Counter Fraud Arrangements.

2

5

10

The Fraud Policy is currently being reviewed and
updated.

The counter Fraud and Investigations team concentrates on areas of high fraud risk, investigates fraud promptly where
suspected and sanctions appropriately. By investing in specialist fraud prevention and detection software and utilising
cross organisation data will minimise the council’s exposure to fraud risk and aid early detection / prevention.
An accessible route to report suspected fraud is available to both the public and employees via a Whistleblowing Policy
Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and web page. Whilst awareness of the whistleblowing process has been
raised, there remains work to be done to enhance employee confidence in reporting concerns. Options are being
considered for this.

What we are doing

Risk Rating

CRR6: Fraud and Corruption.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Risk Rating

Performance

Current Risk
Level

3

5

15

Project to develop a data hub, potentially regionally
is in early stages. Plan and dataset matrix are
currently being finalised. Available hub software is
currently being researched. Ongoing exercises to
establish proof of concept are under way. Business
case to be completed.
Council wide fraud and avoidance initiatives
including:
 NNDR Small Business Rate Relief
 National Fraud Initiative
 Personal Budgets
 Bribery and Corruption Risk Assessment
 New Fraud Case Management System

Key Counter Fraud Objectives were defined for 2019/20. Counter Fraud Performance is monitored by Audit Committee
via the Annual and half yearly Counter Fraud Update, periodic Internal Audit Updates and the Annual review of
arrangements against CIPFA Count Fraud Assessment Tool. Improvements are highlighted in an action plan which is
monitored by Audit Committee.
An initiative to provide an amnesty period for tenancy fraudsters to return keys to Council properties has been
completed.
Revised structure of Counter Fraud team approved and HRA funding source agreed for tenancy fraud work.
Regular meetings taking place with Legal services to ensure cases progress swiftly.
Data sets submitted to National Fraud Initiative and output received for review.

Risk Owner: Executive Director
Resources and Director of Finance
(S151 Officer).

Action Owner: Director of Finance and Chief Internal Auditor.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

5

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Page 39

Risk Owner: Senior Information Risk
Owner (SIRO).

Risk Rating

1

5

5

The Council is starting to use a SIRO checklist to capture and escalate cyber security risks.
The Council is procuring an Information Security Management System which will review and enhance
the Council’s policies and strategies for information management. The Information Assurance Service
is working closely with the Council’s ICT Department to improve the approach to all aspects of
Information Assurance (including adoption of ISO27001).

Independent full security assessments have been carried out November
2018.
Increased training - Phishing attacks November 2018.
An Information Governance Board has been established to provide
oversight of information security and an escalation point to the Council’s
SIRO.
Head of Information Assurance commenced in post September 2019.

What we are doing

Impact

Key potential causes are:

Lack of investment in
appropriate technologies.

Reliance on in-house expertise,
and self-assessments (PSN).

Lack of formal approach to risk
management (ISO27001).

Historic lack of focus.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Budget provision for Cyber Security was allocated within the Future State
Assessment Plan (FSA) as approved by Cabinet June 2018.

The Council's risk level in regards to
Cyber-security is higher than should
be expected.

Risk Rating

CRR7: Cyber-Security.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

3

7

21

The ITTP (formerly FSA Programme) currently has plans to implement technology platforms to move
the Council from file storage to document storage platforms, increase team collaboration without
use of email, implement file retention policies, introduce document marking and rights management,
implement data classification and improve federated search across structured and unstructured data
stores.
The ITTP (formerly FSA Programme) will align with the new Information Assurance approach and the
strategy set by the Council’s SIRO.
As well as technical controls, the Council continues to carry out regular Phishing attack exercises
where we are sending emails to staff to see how users react to this type of Cyber Attack. Anyone
clicking on links is directed towards targeted training.
The Information Assurance and ICT team will continue to work together to support the SIRO to
develop appropriate targeted training for all Council staff relating to cyber security.

Action Owner: Director, Digital Transformation.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

6

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Owner: Executive
Director, People

Risk Rating

Impact

The Safeguarding Children’s Board provides independent scrutiny of children’s safeguarding arrangements in the city and
holds BCC and partner agencies to account.

7

7

Reviewing and reassessing information sharing arrangements
with the aim of improving our ability to understand and
respond to children at risk of criminal exploitation and going
missing following CSE/Missing National Working Group
recommendations.

There has been a review of arrangements to meet the Prevent Duty and the Safer Bristol Board has adopted an
Improvement Plan to deliver better outcomes in service provision quality and safety.
BCC works with partners to effectively identify victims and perpetrators of CSE and take action to disrupt and protect.
Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements are in place (MAPPA) with BCC contributors at every level to support family
safeguarding.

Working with University of Bedfordshire as part of the
Contextual Safeguarding Scale Up Project to develop
improved responses to contextual safeguarding risks.

The Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Service has been remodelled to secure additional capacity (Independent Reviewing
Officer and Child Protection Chairs) and has the Local Authority Designated Officer for allegations against people who work
with children.
Comprehensive training and development offer, together with publication of Bristol’s policies and procedures and monthly
professional supervision help ensure safe practice and adequate control of risks. This is monitored and tested through a
performance and quality assurance framework.

2

7

14

The Strengthening Families Programme is coming to the end
of its phase as a form project - however, work continues to:
 Work with families from the earliest point of need and
reduce caseloads of social care practitioners
 Ensure purposeful practice that supports children to live
safely within their families and provide local authority
care for those who need it.
 Ensure effective management oversight is evident on all
children’s records.
Delivering new career progression and pay arrangements to
recruit and retain highly skilled Social Workers (June 2019).
In response to an identified and increasing risk of serious
youth violence and criminal exploitation a multiagency plan is
being implemented under a 'Gold' Exec Group (Feb 2019):
 Bristol is taking a Public Health Approach and focussing on
primary, secondary and tertiary prevention.
 Safer Options Team established and working to profile and
reduce SYV in East Central (April 2019)
 Investment secured to extend reach of Safer
Options/Meet citywide demand pressures (Jun/Jul 2019)
 Investing in systemic practice approach and training staff
members at all levels of Children and Families Services.
 An improvement plan for 2019-20 is being implemented
to address areas identified for improvement during our
ILACS Inspection and incorporating other actions in
response to learning from other Inspections, Peer Review,
Serious Case Review, complaints and other feedback
received.

Bristol’s Strengthening Families transformation programme is taking a whole system approach to meeting the needs of
children and families at the earliest point. In this way we aim to manage demand and maintain capacity within the system.
Universal services may be supported by early help and targeted services, including a team around the school offer.
Bristol's workforce strategy is in place to attract, recruit and retain social workers with a particular emphasis on recruiting
and retaining excellent, experienced social workers. The Management Team monitors social work vacancies and agrees
strategies for urgent situations. Competent agency social workers and managers are used on a temporary basis to fill
vacancies.
A robust social worker caseload monitoring framework is in place.
Information sharing protocols are in place with services taking action to comply with GDPR where sensitive data is
stored/processed.
Children’s strategic commissioning team have a priority work plan in place and are working to increase placement
sufficiency through regional framework arrangements. BCC commissioners work closely with operational services to identify
need and ensure appropriate service commissioning. Due diligence and quality checks of all commissioned services for
vulnerable children are in place.
Bristol Multiagency Safer Options Team established for East Central Bristol (April 2019) tackling Serious Youth Violence and
Criminal Exploitation of Children taking an intelligence led preventative approach.
Action Owner: Director Children’s and Families Services.

1

New Keeping Bristol Safe Arrangements submitted to DfE and
published end June 2019. New arrangements in place
September 2019 with place based life course approach to
children, adult and community safety holding BCC and
partners to account.

Regular analysis of performance and reports to Cabinet Members and Directors regarding safeguarding performance and
progress. A children's safeguarding assurance report updates senior leaders on a quarterly basis.

September 2018 Ofsted ILACS single inspection identified that, ‘services have improved substantially for care leavers,
children in care and children in need of help and protection.’ However, there is more to do to ensure all children and
families receive a good service.

Risk Rating

Page 40

Key potential causes are:
 Safeguarding
arrangements do not
meet the requirements of
the Children Act and
associated legislation,
guidance and regulations.
 Inadequate controls
result in harm.
 Poor Management and
operational practices.
 Demand for services
exceeds its capacity and
capability.
 Inability to recruit/retain
social care staff in a
competitive market.
 Poor information sharing.
 Strategic commissioning
arrangements do not
meet identified need and
our ability to commission
safe care for children is
impaired.
 Increase in complex
safeguarding risks,
criminal exploitation,
serious youth violence
and gang affiliation.

What we are doing

Impact

The council fails to ensure
that adequate safeguarding
measures are in place,
resulting in harm or death to
a vulnerable child.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

CRR9: Safeguarding
Vulnerable Children.

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

Portfolio Flag:
Children and Young
People.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Empowering and Caring, Wellbeing.

7

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

The Adults Safeguarding Board has now been reconstituted into the Keeping Bristol Safe Board which also includes responsibility
for Children and Community Safety. The Board has senior executive representation and will ensure a strong focus on strategic
matters of concern. The constitution for the Board has been confirmed and it will meet regularly and have oversight of
safeguarding priorities.

Social workers working with Multi-agency
partners supporting Adults and elderly people
to live safety within their families and
communities.

Safeguarding improvement plans are in place for Older People, Physical Disability and Disabled Children and the Capability
framework for safeguarding and the mental capacity act have been introduced. The Adult Change Programme ‘ Better Lives’ Transforming Care Programme has been established to implement policy objectives of moving people into more suitable care
settings.

We are increasing capacity this year in the
commissioning team to lead on monitoring
quality in the care sector. Improving the quality
services for those who need it and ensuring
effective management oversight.

The council fails to ensure adequate
safeguarding measures are in place,
Adults at risk.

Page 41

Key potential causes are:
 Adequacy of its controls.
 Management and operational
practices.
 Demand for its services exceeded
its capacity and capability.
 Poor information sharing.
 Lack of capacity or resources to
deliver safe practice.
 Failure to commission safe care for
adults at risk.
 Failure to meet the requirements
of the “Prevent Duty” placed on
Local Authorities.

Risk Owner: Executive Director,
People

We have an active strategy in place to attract, recruit and retain social workers through a variety of routes with particular
emphasis on experienced social workers. The Adult South West Recruitment and Retention Strategy has been drafted, the risks
and costs identified. The strategy will be presented through the Decision Pathway. Regular strategies and campaigns support the
recruitment and retention of high calibre social workers and managers, with competent agency social workers and managers
used on temporary basis to fill vacancies.

What we are doing

Risk Rating

CRR10: Safeguarding Adults at Risk
with Care and support needs.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Risk Rating

Performance

Current Risk
Level

1

7

7

Review of the Safeguarding Pathway
Transforming the Safeguarding Adults Board.
2

7

14

All key staff working with people directly at risk are trained in the essentials of safeguarding and BCC has an ongoing awarenessraising ‘Prevent’ training programme.
Regular reporting on safeguarding is taking place quarterly for Directors and Cabinet Members, with an annual report for elected
Members to allow for scrutiny of progress. The quality assurance framework and performance framework is routinely monitored
and reported on.
Focused work is being undertaken to address the backlog in safeguarding referrals and good progress has been made in bringing
the number outstanding down to more manageable numbers.

Action Owner: Director Adult Social Care.

Portfolio Flag: Adult
Social Care.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Empowering others and
Caring, Fair and Inclusive, Well connected, Wellbeing.

8

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and Regeneration.

Action Owner: Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

The Strategic Property Group (SPG) was established in January 2018 and meets
on a monthly basis. The SPG identified the need for an Operational Property
Group in March 2018. Remit and membership of both groups was reviewed and
re-launched in April 2019.
Corporate Leadership Board identified the need to re-establish a Capital Board
which existed until December 2016.
The first meeting of the CLB / Capital and Investment Board was held on 2 July
2019. Terms of reference and governance arrangements for the Capital and
Investment Board were agreed, and go-going forward the CLB / Capital and
Investment Board will meet on a monthly basis. The Board will ensure that
there is greater rigour and control, including Risk Management, of the Council's
Capital Programme.

2

7

14

Bristol Transport Board established in January 2019 and Bristol Transport
Strategy. The latter sets the framework and will hold us to account for delivery.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

The Operational Property Group (OPG) as a sub-group to the Strategic
Property Group (SPG) was launched in September 2018 to unlock the
value of assets, seek efficiencies through joint arrangements with
public sector partners and maximise private sector investment. Actions
are now being progressed through the work of the SPG and (from
April/May 2018) through OPG which will adopt a Corporate Landlord
role to ensure the ownership of an asset and the responsibility for its
management; maintenance and funding are transferred to a
centralised corporate crosscutting group.
Recruitment of specialist Asset Management Plan resource was agreed
in April 2018. Work on outline business case for the Asset
Management Plan is progressing, and on-going.
Develop strategies and Implementation plans that ensure the property
portfolio remains a major asset in supporting the achievement of
corporate aims and objectives will be well advanced by end March
2019.
Development and implementation of a Property Asset Management
Strategy - DWG decision (04/04/2018) to recruit specialist Asset
Management Plan (AMP) resource to develop the outline business case
by July/August 2018 and to inject pace into the production of the AMP.
The current estimated timescale for completion of the AMP is by end
March 2020 Property Strategy work is on-going as at 30 September
2019, and progress with this and delivery of the AMP is subject to
regular discussion at the Strategic Property Group (SPG) which meets
monthly. This is a standing item at the monthly SPG Meetings.
We are proactively supporting the development of a local
development strategy to appropriately reflect Bristol's Infrastructure
needs.
Recruitment of sufficient resources, to ensure the capacity and skills
required are available to enable the objectives from the estate to be
delivered.
A key action arising from the first meeting of the CLB / Capital and
Investment Board is for Growth and Regeneration Directorate to hold
workshops to review its Capital schemes with a view to pausing /
stopping / reprioritising where appropriate. The first workshop was
held in July 2019 to review all Capital schemes and there will be
another workshop in October 2019 to make decisions based on the P6
budget forecast.
Review of Areas of Growth and Regeneration and agreement on new
priorities is on-going by the Growth and Regeneration Board.
Strategy Theme: Our Organisation

Risk Rating

AGR is regularly reviewed and re-prioritised by the G&R Board.

Page 42

Key potential causes are:
 No clear strategic direction and objective set for the
Property estate.
 Services and resources (human and financial) are not
fully aligned and/ or controlled to deliver the objectives.
 Failure to deliver the level of anticipated Capital
Receipts.
 Leadership capacity, engagement and capability are
insufficient to drive change and transformation within
the council.
 Resources are poorly managed, short term approach
being adopted or are not contributing fully to council
priorities; resulting in agreed outcomes and objectives
not being fully achieved.
 Ineffective collection, integrity and use of data and
information.
 Infrastructure Condition and suitability of overall asset
base is not being used or managed efficiently or
effectively.
 Lack of joined up planning, decision making and
effective project management.
 Ineffective collection, integrity and use of data and
information.
 Reduced public sector funding impacting on the
resources available.
 Currently a more uncertain future due to Brexit.

What we are doing

Impact

The G&R Board identified a number of areas of growth and regeneration (AGR)
across the City during Q4. 2017/18 to enable place shaping including
contributing to regeneration activity, affordable housing, community building
and the financial sustainability of the Council.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Governance arrangements have been established through the Growth and
Regeneration (G&R) Board and the Strategic Property Group both launched in
Q4. 2017/18 to enable the integration of thinking about property with financial,
regeneration and other considerations and enhance reporting of asset disposal
plans and progress.

If the council fails to prioritise infrastructure investment
and resources, has inconsistent policies and attitudes, and
has no bargaining power regionally or with central
government; there is a risk that inward investment will be
reduced. It makes it difficult for the council to realise its
strategic priorities, ensure assets are efficient and fit for
purpose in meeting current and future demand and
support development of the local area.

Risk Rating

CRR11: Bristol City Council (BCC) Infrastructure Delivery.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

1

7

7

9

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

The Bristol Operations Centre capacity to support multi-agency operations has been tested.

Risk Rating

(Previously Civil Contingencies and
Council Resilience).

Page 43

Emergency planning training has been rolled and a multi-agency exercise is regularly conducted to test
different elements of BCC emergency arrangements with partners. The most recent exercises being Day
Two May 2018, Dark Zodiac April 2018, Saxon Resolve November 2017 and major COMAH training
exercise in November 2018 (Operation Spitfire).

1

7

7

An ‘Introduction to Emergency Planning’ e-learning package is in
progress.
An Emergency Centre live exercise was planned for November 2018.
This was postponed, although smaller training exercises have been
completed. The corporate exercise is now planned for Nov 2019.
Emergency Planning College (EPC)-led Strategic Incident
Management Training sessions planned.
Voluntary agency capacity to support incidents will be reviewed by
through the LRF.

Bristol is working with Avon and Somerset Local Resilience Forum (LRF) together with personnel as an
integrated and co-located team to deliver enhanced emergency planning and business continuity along
with Avon and Somerset Local Health Resilience Partnership to ensure a coordinated health services and
Public Health England and planning, response is in place.

Key potential causes are:
 Critical services unprepared or
have ineffective emergency and
business continuity plans and
associated activities.
 Lack of resilience in the supply
chain hampers effective response
to incidents.
 Lack of trained and available
strategic staff.

What we are doing

Impact

If the City has a Major Incident,
Contractor Failure or the council
inadequately responds, then the
impact of the event may be increased
with a greater impact on people and
businesses.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

The Avon and Somerset Local Resilience Forum (LRF) is a legally required multi-agency partnership of all
the organisations needed to prepare for an emergency in the LRF area. It includes the emergency
services, health services, Maritime and Coastal Agency, Environment Agency, volunteer agencies, utility
companies, transport providers and the five councils of Bath and North East Somerset, Bristol, North
Somerset, Somerset and South Gloucestershire. The Avon and Somerset LRF to drive work identified by
risk and impact based on Avon and Somerset Community Risk Register. Key roles of the group includes:
Intelligence gathering and forecasting, regular training exercises and tests, Task and Finish groups
addressing key issues, procedure, plan writing and capability building, and a multi-Agency recovery
structure is in place.

Risk Rating

CRR12: Failure to deliver suitable
emergency planning measures and
respond to and manage emergency
events when they occur. (Civil
Contingency and Resilience)

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

Training for ABS staff to support incident response and recovery
(admin, logging and logistics) is ongoing.
We are embedding lessons from Exercise Day Two, particularly
around housing capacity, community engagement and mutual aid. A
report is planned for the Corporate Resilience Group (CRG).

A system is in place for ongoing monitoring of severe weather events (SWIMS).
2

7

14

A review and exercise of the COMAH (Control of Major Accident
Hazards) Plan is planned.

A senior management on-call rota has been devised, agreed and is monitored. Emergency Reservists have
been recruited to aid emergency responses.

BCC took receipt the South West’s share of the National Emergency Mortuary Equipment in July 2018.
A progress paper on Civil Contingency is scheduled to go to Strategy and Policy Board July 2018.
Review of Excess Deaths capability and plan is planned for September 2018.
Recruitment and training of additional Emergency Centre Managers and Emergency Volunteers is
ongoing

Risk Owner: Executive Director
Growth and Regeneration.

Action Owner: Director Management of Place.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Wellbeing.

10

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Rating

Impact

BCC manages its financial risks through a range of controls including budget preparation, budget
setting and a Budget Accountability Framework. Roles and responsibilities for managing, monitoring
and forecasting income and expenditure against approved budgets have been updated.

Review of the medium term financial plan, capital
strategy and developing a financial sustainability
strategy by December 2019.

The council has developed a strong rolling Medium-term financial planning process to enable the
strategic objectives and the statutory duties are met. We are working to ensure a rigorous structure
exists to oversee the budgetary control process from budget setting through to monitoring, oversight
and scrutiny including:
 The maintaining of the evolving financial model that reflects in a timely manner changes in national
and local assumptions.
 The level of reserves and balances are regularly reviewed to ensure that account is taken of any
financial /economic risk and the adequacy of general reserves is determined as part of this exercise.
 Financial Regulations and Financial Scheme of Delegation is in place.
 Regular in-year monitoring and reporting, review of future financial plans and assessment of
financial risks and reserves are undertaken to ensure the financial plans are delivered.
 Changes to savings in year are monitored by delivery executive.

A review will be ongoing to identify a programme of
propositions that exceed the forecasted budget gap
to provide members with options and headroom for
variations in financial estimates.

Restructured the finance team and planned skills development remains a key priority which will include
commercial and business acumen. This will be an ongoing and aligned with professional development.

2

5

10

Risk Rating

Page 44

Key potential causes are:
 Failure to achieve Business Rates income- appeals/
general economic growth/loss of major sites (in
budget setting).
 Economic uncertainty impact on locally generated
revenues - business rates and housing growth,
impacting on council tax, new homes bonus and
business rate income.
 Brexit - the general uncertainty affecting the financial
markets, levels of trade & investment.
 Governments spending review 2019.
 Inadequate budgeting & budgetary control/Financial
Settlements & wider fiscal policy changes:
 The potential for new funding formulas such as
fair funding, business rates retention to
significantly reduce the government funding
available to the council alongside possible
increase in demand for council services.
 Embedding of the new national funding formula
for schools and High Needs.
 Political failure to facilitate the setting of a lawful
budget.
 Unable to agree a deliverable programme of
propositions that enable the required savings to
be achieved.
 Insufficient reserves to mitigate risks and
liabilities and provide resilience.
 Rising inflation could lead to increased costs.
 Judicial review.
Risk Owner: S151 Officer and Director of Finance.

What we are doing

Impact

Failure to be able to reasonably estimate and agree the
financial ‘envelope' available, both annually and in the
medium-term and the council is unable to set a balanced
budget.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

CRR13: Financial Framework and MTFP.

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

1

5

5

Ensuring that Bristol City Council are engaged with or receiving timely feedback from the range of
Government working groups exploring future local funding.

Action Owner: Section 151 Officer, Executive Director Resources and Director of Finance.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

11

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Rating

Impact

BCC’s Financial framework ensures that we have in place sound
arrangements for financial planning, management, monitoring and
reporting. New spend decisions and borrowing is only supported where the
source of revenue resources to meet the costs is clearly identified and
availability confirmed by Finance.

A review of robustness of forecasting in light of expenditure and income run
rates and other associated evidence.

Corporate Revenue Monitoring Reports with identified risks are reported
to Cabinet, overspending departments prepare action plans with
responsible Directors identified.

Working with external advisors to undertake due diligence of commercial
investments to provide the council with Assurance and further opportunities to
explore.

The ongoing review and due diligence of all budget savings by Delivery
Executive, Corporate Leadership Board and the Executive. The pipeline of
propositions to be incorporated into the tracker, due diligence undertaken
and subject to DE governance and assurance process.

Incorporate additional key cost driver activity information within our regular
budget monitoring processes.

Risk Rating

Page 45

Key potential causes are:
 A failure to appropriately plan and deliver savings
unscheduled loss of material income streams.
 Increase in demography, demand and costs for key
council services.
 The inability to generate the minimum anticipated
level of capital receipts.
 Insufficient reserves to facilitate short term
mitigations, risks and liabilities.
 Interest rate volatility impacting on the council’s debt
costs.
 Impairments in our commercial Investments are
realised.

What we are doing

Impact

The council’s financial position goes into significant
deficit in the current year resulting in reserves (actual or
projected) being less than the minimum specified by the
council’s reserves policy.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

CRR15: Financial Deficit.

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

1

5

5

We will carry out a re-assessment of service delivery risks and opportunities and
risk and other reserves.

The ongoing regular monitoring reports to Corporate Leadership Team and
Cabinet. Setting out progress on delivery of savings and other risks and
opportunities in addition to the forecast expenditure.
Implemented budget improvement processes– The executive will review
service recovery/delivery plans, options for mitigation and their viability,
risk and priority outcome implications - both immediate and the wider
MTFP impact.

2

5

10

Where viable in year recovery/delivery plans cannot be achieved, Executive
Directors will report to the Mayor and Cabinet seeking a supplementary
funding approval in accordance with the council’s delegated executive
approval powers (up to £1,000,000 for an area of activity).
Where viable in year recovery/delivery plans cannot be achieved, Executive
Directors will report to Full Council (in accordance with the Budget & Policy
framework) to seek agreement to a supplementary estimate (> £1,000,000
for an area of activity).
We will seek agreement from the Executive of the alternative measures
held in abeyance across other General Fund services e.g. which will be
offset and advise all associated Executive Directors appropriately.
We have continual oversight and ongoing management of the council’s
financial risks.
Internal audit also undertakes a number of reviews of our financial
planning and monitoring arrangements.

Risk Owner: S151 Officer and Director of Finance.

Action Owner: Section 151 Officer, Executive Director Resources and
Director of Finance.

Portfolio Flag:
Finance, Governance
and Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

12

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Page 46

Key potential causes are:
 Not enough planning applications submitted
 Not enough permissions granted
 Inability of the housebuilding industry to deliver
at this level.
 Increased uncertainty in the market due to Brexit
 Lack of capacity within the council’s delivery
system and the local market.
 Insufficient housing land identified in Planning
documents
Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and
Regeneration.

Risk Rating

2

5

10

We are addressing all areas of provision including: Community Led Housing
(CLH), Registered Providers (RPs) and Direct Delivery, (New Council Homes).

Secured additional grant funding for infrastructure.

We are carrying out a Service Review of Housing Delivery Team commencing
October 2019 – December 2019.

Releasing land.
Issuing grants to Registered Providers (RPs).

Significant land release programme to Registered Partners (RPs).

Established Local Housing Company (Goram Homes).

We are looking at opportunities to fund the acquisition of additional units in
developments on site.

Secured funding from Homes England under HIF and Accelerated
Construction and Community Development in order to release further
housing land.
Established a grant funding programme to subsidise the delivery of
affordable homes.

What we are doing

Impact

Strategies and delivery models designed to further
stimulate growth in the housing market and deliver
diversity of the housing offer across the city prove
to be ineffective and do not attract and retain
economically active residents.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Secured planning permissions.

Risk Rating

CRR18: The risk of failing to deliver the range of
housing to meet Bristol's needs and not realise the
ambition to deliver 2000 homes, of which 800 are
affordable, per annum by 2020.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

External funding bids have been made to secure infrastructure funding to
accelerate delivery.
2

5

Introduced the Affordable Housing Practice Note.

10

Revised the Affordable Housing Grant Funding Policy to ensure it is relevant
and assist the delivery of new affordable homes.
Working Closely with Homes England to ensure additional subsidy is secured
Identifying opportunities to acquire additional affordable homes off the shelf.

Working collaboratively with Homes England to maximise subsidy in
schemes to provide as much affordable housing as possible.
Requiring a minimum of 30% affordable housing on land released by
the Council.

Action Owner: Director Development of Place.

Portfolio Flag: Housing.

Strategy Theme: Fair and Inclusive.

13

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

1

5

5

Analysis continues on trees potentially at risk. Desktop
mapping is completed and trees will need to be
assessed.

Cabinet report in June was agreed including re-procuring the tree management contract to create
additional capacity to manage all off the councils trees. The cost of this will be covered by the
departments on whose land the trees are situated - more finance work is needed on this.

 The Council has 100,000 trees. Severe weather
conditions and / or disease can leads to tree
failure.
 Lack of maintenance of trees can result in tree
failure.
 Some council trees are not being managed or
inspected, increasing the chance of failure.

Risk Rating

Key potential causes are:

What we are doing

Impact

Analysis work on trees is underway by the tree team and Desktop mapping is complete.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Analysis of all trees is the main task and this takes time to complete.

Risk of trees and tree limbs falling and causing harm
to people or property due to unfavourable weather
conditions and tree diseases.

Risk Rating

CRR19: Tree Management.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

Contract has been extended for tree maintenance
Budget for 18/19 has been protected, work is
commencing to identify budget for 19/20.
Budget for 19/20 is available to continue tree analysis
and maintain trees on the existing contract.

3

5

15

Budget uplift for new contract is proposed to be taken
from land owning departments but this needs to be
confirmed by finance and departments. Not yet
agreed.

Page 47

Carry out in-depth audit of non-managed sites to
identify costs to service areas
Cabinet report approval means that additional
personnel resource can be recruited to undertake the
work. Finance work to identify budget to pay for tree
maintenance works from landowning departments
still needs to be done. Departments will be alerted
initially in October 2019.
New tree management contract going through
procurement process - on track. QTRA system being
rolled out via tree audits and tree group ID.

Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and
Regeneration.

Action Owner: Director Management of Place.

Portfolio Flag:
Communities.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Wellbeing.

14

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

2

3

6

We have made significant progress on compliance with
the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).
We are embedding a new Information Governance team,
which has brought together existing specialists into a
central team to provide advice guidance and support on
all related aspects in a more coordinated manner.

A newly formed Office of Data Protection has been established, led by a dedicated
Statutory Data Protection Officer (SDPO) who was appointed August 2018 to ensure
the City Council maintains and further enhances its policies and procedures and to
provide ongoing advice, guidance and support to service areas. Additional Data
Protection specialists have also been appointed to support the SDPO.
A Steering Group and Working Group is in place and regular reports continue to be
provided to Executive Directors Meetings (EDM’s) to ensure that the high-level of
engagement and buy-in across all levels of the organisation is maintained.
Improved data breach reporting for EDM's from December 2018.
Information Assurance Service established January 2019.
Updated guidance on GDPR compliance and breach reporting published on the
Council’s intranet (Source) pages in January 2019.

Risk Rating

Page 48

Key potential causes are:
 Failure to invest in the required systems, equipment and posts
required to implement these regulations.
 Failure to adequately train staff in the requirements of the
regulations.
 Lack of resource (capacity or expertise) to manage Subject
Access Requests.
 (This risk replaces CRR14 Introduction of the General Data
Protection Regulation).

What we are doing

Impact

If the Council fails to maintain a defensible and compliant
response to the Data Protection Act 2018 and General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) then it will fail to fully comply with
its statutory requirements.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

The GDPR Project was started in November 2017 and has put in place a comprehensive
council wide package of changes for the introduction of the new regulation. It included
awareness training, data audits, updated contracts, retention policy and privacy
notices and improved processes for responding to subject access requests and
completing data protection impact assessments. Support has also been provided to
elected Members, Schools and the Bristol Companies. The GDPR Project completed its
objectives and deliverables and was formally closed July 2018.

Risk Rating

CRR21: General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) compliance.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

2

5

10

Improved PIA process and PIA register in February 2019.

Continuing delivery of prioritised objectives to embed
GDPR compliance, in this quarter we are working on:
 New starters induction and awareness training
 Training for offline staff
 Reviewing procurement templates
 Reviewing data protection policies
 Progressing the business case for a privacy
management system (with Head of Service and
Director)
 Implementing a case management system
 Team training plan.
 Targeted training for data protection champions
within the Council

Business Continuity plan produced and updated to reflect new IG Service in March
2019.
The Council provides e-learning training for new starters on data protection.
The purchase of a privacy management system is being considered as part of service
and budget planning for 2020/21.
Data protection staff have attended training courses to maintain up to date knowledge
and expertise.

Risk Owner: Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO).

Action Owner: Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and Statutory Data Protection
Officer (SDPO).

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

15

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

BCC has close involvement of Elected Mayor and Members in key partnerships. Regular
review and evaluation of the current position by CLB.

We are reviewing and refreshing the Partnership Policy
and Toolkit by August 2019.

Leads have been defined for recommendations to develop partnership working which
were received by the Audit Committee in April 2016.

Creating a central Partnership Register including
Service Level Agreements (SLAs), Terms of Reference
(Terms of reference) and contracts where appropriate.

If the council does not maximise (or cannot quantify) the benefits
of partnership working and/or experiences negative or counterproductive results may arise from partnership working.

Page 49

Key potential causes are:
 Failure to establish and/or manage contracts, Service Level
Agreements and/or Terms of Reference in relation to
partnerships.
 Not maintaining a central register of partnerships,
membership, governance arrangements and performance
measures.
 No identified lead officer to progress development of
partnership working as in proposals presented to the Audit
Committee in April 2016.
 Outdated partnership policy and toolkit (last iteration 2010).
 A broad range of partnerships with variable degrees of
formality.
Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service.

BCC has mechanisms in place for regular dialogue including formal partnerships.
The role of Director: Policy and Strategy has been expanded to include oversight of
partnerships and a permanent appointment to this post has been made.
A refreshed Partnerships Policy has been drafted. (June 2019).

What we are doing

Risk Rating

CRR22: Partnerships Governance

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Risk Rating

Performance

Current Risk
Level

2

3

6

Creating a template terms of reference.
3

3

9

Scoping and reviewing the need for Commercial Training for relevant managers as part of
Procurement and Commercial Strategy.

We are scoping and reviewing the need for
appropriate procurement training for relevant
managers as part of Procurement Strategy.

Created a central partnership register.

Action Owner: Head of Delivery Support Unit.

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

16

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

We have moved in to a new phase of the Better Lives Programme,
focused on delivering the programme vision at pace. This includes
activities to deliver further changes which are required around Older
People's services and an increased focus on Adults of Working Age and
Preparing for Adulthood and Preparing for Adulthood.

The Programme Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) regularly attends key internal
governance meetings e.g. ACE Scrutiny Commission, Delivery Executive.

Delivering new technology and working practices to our Social
Workers.

We have introduced a trajectory management approach to define and track key
performance metrics across all areas of the programme, which are shared with the
Programme Board and ASC DMT on a monthly basis. This identifies any areas of
particular risk and allows the programme to put mitigating actions in place.

Deliver new technology and ways of working to our Home First and
Reablement teams. Continue to increase the capacity of the
Reablement service to the required level.

Page 50

Key potential causes are:
 Increased demand and complexity of Service
Users' needs.
 The Provider Market is unable to meet needs in
the required way and/or we suffer relationship
breakdown.
 Other Directorates within the organisation are
unable to support the Programme in the way
required.
 Statutory requirements of Adult Social Care
(ASC) mean resources have to be diverted away
from Programme activity.
 Changes to the priorities of the wider health
system and/or the National context, requires us
to divert resources/focus away from the
Programme's objectives.
 There is a lack of sufficient skills and capacity
within Adult Social Care (ASC) to deliver the
required change at the required pace.
 Focus on savings, demand management and
specific areas of the service creates risk in other
areas of adult social care where we have a
statutory duty to deliver.

We have delivered and are planning to deliver a number of key interventions to
improve the diversity of provision and the Provider Market's ability to respond to
changing requirements and needs e.g. Bristol Price introduced for residential and
nursing care June 2018; Market Position statement provider event held .We are
actively increasing opportunities to work with us in shaping the future market as well
as investing in key areas such as Home Care (Cabinet approved rate rise and
innovation fund July 2018).

What we are doing

Risk Rating

We have a Programme Board in place that meets monthly and has a key governance
role for the Programme in terms of managing risk. The Board membership contains the
Cabinet Lead for Adult Social Care, The Executive Directors for ACE and Resources, the
Director of Adult Social Care and representation from both Bristol Hospital Trusts and
the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). They are provided with a verbal update and
written monthly highlight report that contains key risks and issues. Any actions and
decisions arising are minuted with completion tracked through a log.

Failure to deliver the required outcomes and
savings from the Better Lives Programme, whilst
delivering against our statutory duties and
maintaining quality services.

Risk Rating

CRR23: Better Lives Programme.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Performance

Current Risk
Level

1

7

7

Piloting provider reviews to ensure that people are receiving the right
care and support and freeing up capacity in the Market.

Introducing a further rate increase for Home Care.
Developing a new Preparing for Adulthood service.
Social workers working with Multi-agency partners supporting Adults
and elderly people to live safety within their families and communities
2

7

We are working closely with other areas of the Council we have a dependency on to
help us deliver the programme outcomes e.g. Change Services, Housing, Communities,
Information Communication Technology (ICT) and Procurement colleagues.

14

It is planned to make a one off retention payment to all social workers
as part of the council's retention policy. A wider review of the
remuneration package for social workers is planned to improve
recruitment and retention.
Transforming the Safeguarding Adults Board.

We have a specific area of the Programme dedicated to strengthening partnership
working and integration with Health.
We have workstreams focussing on practice which ensure we are meeting statutory
requirements and that people receive the correct care and support, including a
Reviews workstream.
We have introduced a number of interventions that are impacting new demand and
enabling individuals to maximise their independence e.g. the introduction of the
Bristol Price (June 2018); increased capacity and investment in Home Care (July 2018);
increased capacity in the Reablement Service; Introduced a new Home First Service
(October 2018).
Developing proposals for a new Technology Enabled Care offer (Cabinet approval
gained May 2019).

Risk Owner: Executive Director, People

Action Owner: Director Adult Social Care.

Portfolio Flag: Adult
Social Care.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Empowering others and Caring, Fair and Inclusive,
Well connected, Wellbeing.

17

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

In 2018/19 BCC adopted a Category Management
approach and revised the structure of the procurement
team to reflect the principles and methodology

Following the alignment of CSRM and Procurement work is underway to review the Service Offering for the
Procurement Service.

A PFI contract management specialist has been
appointed to support the council and other stakeholders
in the management of the contracts, undertake due
diligence to ensure maximum value is delivered from the
councils PFI contracts. Ongoing.

 Further developing and embedding of Social Value Policy and associated toolkit;
 Developing and embed complimentary strategies that support sustainable procurement and supply chain
practice,
 Active commercial engagement at a strategic level on third party contracts and commercial arrangements.
 Improving stakeholder engagement around forward planning and solution focus around commercial and
procurement opportunities that are driven by the wider Council Objectives,
 Maximising resources through effective approaches of commercial arrangements
 Further develop an expert team of competent commercial professionals supported by fit for purpose tools,
systems and processes, and where appropriate suitable strategic partner arrangements to compliment
resources and add value around any identified gaps.
 Embedding robust commercial processes and systems including clarity on the approach around Category
Management
We are developing an improvement action plan which will include the following:
 Further development of the contract register to ensure that all contracts over £5k are captured.
 Training and development plan for the procurement staff and the wider organisation.
 Systems and processes to standardise and improve the monitoring of procurement performance.
 Procurement efficiencies are to be tracked in delivering agreed savings targets.
 Further reviewing and where appropriate streamlining key processes, for example the Commissioning
Procurement Group (CPG).
 Seeking external support to both advance contract reviews to deliver savings and efficiencies as well as
support knowledge transfer and upskilling within the service.
 Implementing the new Social Value Policy and toolkit for measuring, monitoring and reporting additional
benefits.
 Improving engagement within and across Services to enhance forward planning and driving down reliance
on use of waivers.

Page 51

Failure to ensure that BCC:
 Achieves value for money when
purchasing goods and services.
 Complies with legislation (including
the risk of legal challenge), quality
and cost.
 Meets social value requirements
for contract awards.
 Ensure orders for goods / services
are efficiently placed and observes
agreed terms.
 BCC do not take into account long
term view with regards to TCO
(Total Cost of Ownership) & Life
Cycle Costs.
 High incidence of non-contracted
spends.
Key potential causes are:
 Poor / weak pre procurement
forward planning and tender
specifications.
 Over reliance and inappropriate
use of waivers.
 Skills / knowledge gaps.
 Ineffective Supply chain and
market engagement.
 Poor / weak contract monitoring.
 Supplier failure and missed
opportunities of warning signs.
 Resourcing and personnel gaps in
the Procurement Service.
 Failure to properly embed
Category Management
Risk Owner: Section 151 Officer,
Executive Director Resources.

Whilst the current Council procurement rules were
revised and agreed by Full Council in May 2018 there is a
further review being undertaken to ensure that the rules
support robust commercial governance whilst at the
same time support and enable proportional approach to
managing commercial risks. This is also undertaking a
fundamental review on how the functioning of the
Commissioning and Procurement Group operates to
ensure commercial decision making is proportionate to
risks.

1

5

5

The draft service plan for 2019/20 includes

3

5

15

From 2 September the Commissioning Supplier
Relationship Management Service (CSRM) has been
aligned with Corporate Procurement Service, to better
align resource and capacity to deliver both required
levels of procurement support coupled with improved
strategic management of contracts. A formal review of
the service is currently underway.
More in-depth performance Data is being collated to
give greater visibility of compliant and non-compliant
procurement activity and delivery of objectives e.g.
Social Value. Ongoing.

Tendering processes are being reviewed to eliminate non-value added activity and support the appropriate
route to market.

A pilot tracker system has been developed with Social
Care Commissioners within the business to monitor
performance to capture early warning signs linked to
supplier failure to enable early intervention and business
resilience.
Action Owner: Director Finance (Section 151 Officer).

What we are doing

Risk Rating

CRR24: Procurement and Contract
Management Compliance

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Risk Rating

Performance

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.
Current Risk
Level

The early warning system pilot will be reviewed with a view to wider rollout.
This is not an exhaustive list and once the improvement plan has been endorsed it will inform on next steps –
end of Qtr. 4.
Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

18

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Page 52

Risk Owner: Senior Information Risk
Owner (SIRO) for Cyber Security
Service Areas for BCP/DR.

2

5

10

Planning for the roll out Windows 10, ICT are undertaking a review of the Council’s application
portfolio to check compatibility with the new operating system. This has resulted in a widening
of the review to look at a number of other aspects, such as cost, contract status, security and
whether the functionality could be delivered through other products/solutions.
We will continue to assess functionality and compatibility of LOS systems as part of the roll out
of Windows 10. This will continue through to mid-2020.
4

Action Owner: Director, Digital Transformation.

Risk Rating

Key potential causes are:
 Lack of desire to change; systems.
 Significant transition activity leads
to systems being.
expensive/complex to change
 Lack of understanding of
consequences of not changing
systems on ICT.
 Lack of adherence to Procurement
rules in relation to reprocurements.

What we are doing

Impact

The Councils reliance on legacy
systems.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

IT Services continue to highlight risks and shortcomings with systems
(in an informal manner) to Heads of Service and Senior Leadership
whilst the on-going formal review continues. We continue to work
with Information Assurance colleagues in regards to those systems
which may perpetuate a Cyber Security or Information Management
risk.

Risk Rating

CRR25: Suitability of Line of Business
(LOB) systems

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

5

20

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

It is the intention of ITTP to produce a report against the Council’s line of business review which
places the applications into groups which can be considered by stakeholders for
replacement/removal/upgrade.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

19

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Resilience has been implemented within the Corporate Network to
ensure that the network remains active and available in the event of a
building becoming unavailable or a circuit being interrupted. Work to
date.

The Council has a contract with a third party to provide DR capability. The Council is working to
undertake a full end to end test of the services it procures however, this has been challenging.
The Council continues to engage with the third party supplier and have recently received a quote
to undertake a full DR test, which is under review.

Backups are held within, and external, to the corporate network to
ensure availability. Work to date.

The small scale tests undertaken to date have taken far longer and have been more complex
than was envisaged. This has reduced confidence in the ICT service.

The ITTP (formerly FSA Programme) has the movement to more
resilient hosting as part of a core deliverable. Utilising cloud hosting
improves resilience and recovery and enables access to key systems
from outside of the corporate network, and if necessary, from noncorporate devices. As approved by Cabinet June 2018.

It is our intention to undertake a full DR test on an annual basis. However, as the small scale
tests have been problematic, this has not been possible to date.

The Councils ability to deliver critical
and key services in the event of ICT
outages, and be able to recover in the
event of system and/or data loss.

Page 53

Key potential causes are:
 Poor BCP planning and
understanding of key system
architecture.
 Untested DR arrangements
including data recovery.
 Untested network reconfiguration
to alleviate key location outage.
 Untested recovery schedules in
terms of order and instructions
 Lack of resilience available for
legacy systems (single points of
failure – people and technology).
 Services undertaking their own IT
arrangements outside of the
corporate approach.
Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service and
Service Area Leads.

2

7

14

The FSA Programme includes the review of future DR arrangements
with the move to cloud for most services, and a move to crown
hosting for remaining, servers. As approved by Cabinet June 2018.

What we are doing

As part of the project to replace the Council’s on premise SAN, the Council is improving the
resilience of hosted services by extending our replication of data. Our on-going move of service
to Cloud infrastructure will reduce the Council’s risk profile over time.

Risk Rating

CRR26: ICT Resilience

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Risk Rating

Performance

Current Risk
Level

2

5

10

The FSA Programme includes work to aid with the survivability and
recovery of Cyber Security Incidents which will aid the resilience of key
Council systems. As approved by Cabinet June 2018.

Action Owner: Director, Digital Transformation.

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

20

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

2

5

10

Transport department split which could endanger
work done to date working on ways to mitigate this.

Shared paperwork and highlight reporting process initiated.
Regular briefings and reporting to senior management and cabinet members.
5 year capital programme mapping process underway.

Key potential causes are:
 Overspend on individual schemes leading to
uncontainable cost pressures.
 Underspend on annual profile.
 Lack of coordination and programme
management across divisions.

Page 54

Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and
Regeneration.

Risk Rating

Transport Delivery Board set up.

What we are doing

Impact

Management of the overall transport capital
programme is key to ensuring we deliver against
mayoral priorities in the most cost and time
efficient way possible. Failure to do so negatively
impacts the council's reputation and finances and
makes the council less likely to reduce congestion,
air pollution and inequality.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Transport Programme Team set up.

Risk Rating

CRR27: Capital Transport Programme Delivery

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

3

5

15

Work ongoing to ensure that recent progress is not
lost and that positive direction of travel is not lost.
Working with Transport Planning Team (TPT) and
other managers to develop systems further engaging
with Directors of Economy of Place and Management
of Place, to develop proposals for overall improved
management of capital programme and recruitment
of appropriate resource levels.
We continuing to develop Transport Planning Team
(TPT), Transport Development Board (TDB) and
highlight report processes which are governed by the
Growth and Regeneration (G&R) Board (monthly
meeting).
5 Year mapping ongoing, 19/20 programme mapped
and ongoing.

Action Owner: Director Management of Place.

Portfolio Flag:
Communities.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Wellbeing.

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Owner: Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO).

Impact

Risk Rating

4

Action Owner: Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and Statutory Data Protection Officer (SDPO).

What we are doing

1

5

5

Information Assurance are continuing to work with
ICT and IGB on implementing an Information Security
Management System.

The Information Assurance Team have started a procurement process to design and deliver a new
information security management system during ?

Key potential causes are:
 Ineffective Information Security Management
System, inadequate resources to create and
maintain an ISMS, management buy in and
support to operate an ISMS

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

We have worked with Information Governance Board (IGB) and ICT on introducing and/or designing an
ISMS aligned to ISO 27001.

Risk Rating

CRR29: Information Security Management System.
There is a risk that if the council does not have an
Information Security Management System then it
will not be able to effectively manage Information
Security risks.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

5

20

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

21

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Threat Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Threat Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Rating

What we are doing

Impact

Risk Rating

Impact

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

CRR30: Failure to deliver Bristol City Council's
wider Clean Air Plan (excluding traffic clean air
zone) Communication/engagement with
stakeholders does not result in sufficient
behavioural change.

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

1

1

1

Measures have been finalised and implementation
plans are being developed.

Measures have been developed and will form part of the Clean Air Plan. Mayors Speech June 2019
announced some of these as policy commitments (Mayors Office).

A proposal for funding from Reserves have been
produced and now approved.
Staff being allocated to complete the work.

We are unable to deliver actions committed to by
Mayor in the wider Clean Air Plan (excluding Traffic
Clean Air Zone) - which is addressed in MoP service
area.

New

3

5

15

Key potential causes are:

Staff capacity.

Procurement risks.

Page 55

Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and
Regeneration, Colin Molton

Action Owner: Climate Change & Sustainable City Manager

Portfolio Flag:
Strategic Planning and
City Design

Strategy Theme: Wellbeing

22

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report Q2 2019/20

Opportunity Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Opportunity Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

 Work to date has produced outline plan and
engaged partners in the long-term vision and
necessary work to complete the plan.

We have appointed to the Head of City Office role, with post holders to take up jobshare position in July/Aug 2019.
We have established the majority of One City Boards, with Environment and Economy
to Launch in the next quarter.

3

7

21

The City Office has engaged a sponsorship expert to scope potential
opportunities for future funding. Project activity will also be supported
by the 100,000 Euros awarded to One City as a prize-winner for
European Capital of Innovation.

7

28

The office is now staffed with 2x Operational and Stakeholder
Engagement Managers, a SDG Coordinator and with a sequence of
interns, work experience and external offers of resourcing to support
the initiatives.

We have agreed the top three priority One City projects for 19/20 and are actively
supporting these.

Page 56

Action Owner: Director Policy, Strategy and Partnerships.

4

Have implemented the citywide governance structure including
establishing the Economy Board, Environment Board and the
associated city Climate Advisory Committee. All boards have now met
and are refreshing their contributions to the One City Plan.

Aligned internal resourcing for One City Plan development with our review of
Partnership Policy (see CRR21) to ensure a joined-up approach.

Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service.

Risk Rating

Key potential causes:
 Mayoral aspiration and widespread partner signup to the principle.

What we are doing

Impact

We have funded the core City Office staff team for 2019/20 (April 2019).

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

We have Launched the One City Plan v1 in January 2019.

The One City Approach will offer a new way to plan
strategically with partners as part of a wider city
system.

Risk Rating

OPP1: One City Approach

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

Planning work to iterate the One City Plan for v2 in January 2020.

Portfolio Flag: Mayor.

Establishing the leadership framework with a regular meeting pulse
and associated governance mechanisms
Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Opportunity Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Impact

Risk Rating

Key potential causes:

Approved Corporate Strategy provides the
foundation and direction for the organisation.

What we are doing

4

7

28

Running an integrated business planning approach for 2020/21, linking
financial planning, and service planning and performance management
more closely and from an earlier starting point.

Re-launched and completed 'My Performance' reviews for all colleagues including
annual objective setting linked to the Corporate Strategy and Business Plan 18/19.
Designed and launched an integrated business planning approach for 2019/20, linking
financial planning, service planning, Risk Management and performance management
more closely and from an earlier starting point.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

We have approved and adopted the Corporate Strategy, Business Plan 18/19 and
Performance Framework 18/19 through appropriate Decision Pathways.

The approved Corporate Strategy presents an
opportunity to fundamentally refresh and
strengthen our business planning, leadership and
performance frameworks.

Risk Rating

OPP2: Corporate Strategy

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

Following up roll-out of iTrent for performance.
4

7

28

The LGA Corporate Peer Challenge completed, providing fresh learning opportunities
to improve our approach.
Leadership Framework introduced and senior management posts recruited against it.

Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service.

Action Owner: Director Policy, Strategy and Partnerships.

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

23

Appendix A: Bristol City Council – Corporate Risk Report Q2 2019/20

Opportunity Risks

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Opportunity Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Key potential causes:
 Potential development of second devolution
deal.
Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service.

Risk Rating

Risk Rating

Impact

3

7

21

We will continue to engage with WECA at strategic level.

We have continued engagement with WECA; but with recognition that focus has been
placed more on a proposed housing fund. The national uncertainty around long term
government funding and approach has decreased the opportunity slightly (Q1 19/20),
but this has recovered given the opportunity around a potential 'powerhouse' for the
West of Britain, which has early positive momentum. (Q2 19/20)

We will launch the ‘Powerhouse for the West’ report at the House of
Lords on 8 July and continue development of the concept.
3

We have commissioned work to investigate the potential for a Western Powerhouse, a
cross-border, cross-sector partnership akin to the Northern Powerhouse or Midlands
Engine.

Action Owner: Director Policy, Strategy and Partnerships.

What we are doing

Impact

Should the potential arise for opportunities from a
region’s devolving, second devolution deal that
could lead to an opportunity to align the Council’s
corporate priorities and strengthen regional
partnership working.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

OPP3: Devolution

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

5

15

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

We will continue to engage with HM Government following suggestion
that more devolution opportunities may be available following Brexit,
including specific spending review asks and engagement on the
Western Powerhouse proposal.
We are establishing a Secretariat for the proposed western
powerhouse and will continue to engage partners and HM
Government on this project.
Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 – Opportunity Risks to the achievement of Bristol City Councils Objectives.

Risk Rating

1

5

5

We are monitoring the issue on an ongoing basis. We have further
meetings of Bristol Brexit Response Group and Brexit Project Board.
Continued monitoring of external environment and government
relations.

Established a city Brexit Response Group and met since 2016.
Met Michel Barnier in Brussels with the Core Cities.

Promoting a potential powerhouse for the West of Britain as a postBrexit opportunity to invest in the region and city.

Been monitoring the environment; including news of threats from large local
employers of leaving UK.
Collaborated on draft Inclusive Economic Growth Strategy and Local Industrial
Strategy.

What we are doing

Impact

Key potential causes for enhancing and exploiting:
 Exiting the European Union.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

Undertaken an internal assessment of threat and opportunities following an
externally-provided workshop, publishing our No Deal Scenario Assessment and
updated it in Q2 2019.

If exiting the European Union provides benefits,
such as increased domestic concentration of power,
this may lead to opportunities for this to be
harnessed at a local or regional level.

Risk Rating

OPP4: Brexit.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Page 57

Current Risk
Level

1

5

5

Participating in MHCLG events and national working group of local authority
representatives.
We continue to work with Core Cities and M8 leaders on concerted joint efforts.
We have formed a Brexit Project Board for internal preparedness and provided
fortnightly updates to all Members on preparedness work.
We have agreed terms of reference for a Brexit Coordination Group to manage daily
operations in the event of a No Deal exit.
Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service.

Action Owner: Director Policy, Strategy and Partnerships.

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

24

Appendix A: Bristol City Council - Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2018/19
Key External Risk and Civil Contingency Risks to note - Flooding and Brexit

External Risk and Civil Contingency Risk

Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 - External and Civil Contingency Risks

3

7

21

Continue to implement actions identified through No Deal Brexit
Scenario Assessment. Ongoing.
Continued internal Brexit Project Board to oversee BCC preparedness
and respond with agility to changing circumstances. Ongoing.

Working with Core Cities and M8 leaders on concerted joint efforts.
Monitored environment; including news of threats from large local employers of
leaving UK.

Continued monitoring of external environment and government
relations. Ongoing.

Collaborated on draft Inclusive Economic Growth Strategy and Local Industrial
Strategy.

Continue engagement with all relevant government departments and
partners to ensure sectoral/organisation risks are communicated and
mitigations proactively suggested. Ongoing.

Developed a BCC Brexit No Deal Scenario Assessment to inform action planning focusing on workforce, supply chain, city economy, legal, data & regulatory, finance &
funding, core operations, civil contingencies and housing. Tested this with partners,
Resources Scrutiny and OSMB.

Revisiting our No Deal Scenario Assessment to check it against
refreshed evidence base.
Continue to meet with neighbouring Brexit Lead Officers and plan
further actions together, including shared initiatives.

Participation in MHCLG events and national working group of local authority
representatives.
Formed Brexit Project Board to take forward preparedness actions and met
consistently to drive progress.

Risk Rating

Page 58

Key potential causes are:
 Exiting the European Union.
 Lack of majority view on draft agreement with
EU.
 Unprecedented and complex national /
international process.
 Lack of planning by the authority.

What we are doing

Impact

With Core Cities, met Michel Barnier in Brussels.

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

We have established Bristol Brexit Response Group.

The risk that Brexit (and any resulting 'deal' or 'no
deal') will impact the local economy, local funding
and delivery of council services, and that
uncertainty around Brexit could impact our ability
to accurately assess or plan for potential positive or
negative outcomes.

Risk Rating

BCCC2: Brexit

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

3

7

21

Agreed funding for key areas for mitigation work.
Provided fortnightly update emails to members.
Established TOR for a Brexit Coordination Group to manage daily activity in a No Deal
scenario (Jan 2019) and tested (Mar 2019).
Updated No Deal Scenario Assessment in line with national planning assumptions and
ASLRF risk assessment. (Sep 19).
Taken forward a range of actions set by Brexit Project Board, including hiring
additional capacity in procurement, communications and civil contingencies.
(Ongoing).
Established regular meeting of Brexit Lead Officers from neighbouring authorities and
WECA to share approaches and best practice. (Sep 19).

Risk Owner: Head of Paid Service.

Established additional formal updates to CMB (Cllr Cheney) weekly and to Cabinet
(information items) (Sep 19).
Action Owner: Director Policy, Strategy and Partnerships.

Portfolio Flag: Finance,
Governance and
Performance.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation.

25

Appendix A: Bristol City Council - Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2018/19

External Risk and Civil Contingency Risks

Key External Risk and Civil Contingency Risks to note
Corporate Risk Register as at September 2019 - External and Civil Contingency Risks

Page 59

Risk Owner: Executive Director Growth and Regeneration.

Bristol is working with the Avon and Somerset LRF to construct new sea defences around
North Somerset, Bristol and South Gloucestershire. Working with emergency services, local
authorities and other agencies to develop flood response plans and procedures, investigating
instances of flooding, training specialist staff in swift water rescue techniques, communicating
with housing and business developers to incorporate flood protection into new
developments. It provide guidance to members of the public about flooding, including flood
warnings and what people can do to help themselves, regular maintenance and clearing
programs of gullies and culverts, especially in the event of storm warnings.

3

3

9

There is sustained resourcing and delivery of all
actions in LFRMS over life of strategy. Strategy
includes the following key projects:

3

5

15

Bristol has in place a local Flood Risk Management Strategy approved at Cabinet in December
2017 which comprises of 5 keys areas and 43 separate actions in line with Environment
Agency's national strategy.

Action Owner: Director Management of Place, Flood Risk Engineer.

Risk Rating

 Tidal surge, heavy rainfall, river and groundwater flood events.
 Impact of climate change.
 Lack of effective flood defences and preparedness for major
incidents.

What we are doing

Impact

Key potential causes are:

Tolerance
Risk Level
Likelihood

The Avon and Somerset Local Resilience Forum (LRF) is a partnership of all the organisations
needed to prepare for an emergency in the LRF area. It includes the emergency services,
health services, Maritime and Coastal Agency, Environment Agency, volunteer agencies,
utility companies, transport providers and the five councils of Bath and North East Somerset,
Bristol, North Somerset, Somerset and South Gloucestershire.

There could be a risk of damage to properties and infrastructure
as well as risk to public safety from flooding which may be caused
by a tidal surge, heavy rainfall and river and groundwater flood
events.

Risk Rating

BCCC1: Flooding.

Impact

What we have done

Likelihood

Risk title and description

Performance

Current Risk
Level

Portfolio Flag: Energy,
Waste and Regulatory
Services.

 Working in partnership with the
Environment Agency to develop a Bristol
Tidal Flood Risk Management Strategy to
protect the city centre, including climate
change.
 Working in partnership with South
Gloucester and the Environment Agency to
deliver a flood scheme to help protect
Avonmouth Village and the Enterprise Area
from tidal flooding, including climate
change.

Strategy Theme: Our Organisation, Empowering and Caring, Fair
and Inclusive, Well Connected, Wellbeing.

26

Appendix A: Bristol City Council - Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20
Quarter 4
Jan – Mar 19/20

Corporate Threat Risk Performance Summary
Page

Performance Summary

Risk ID

Risk

6

CRR7

Cyber-Security(Previously Cyber-Attack)

Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO)

Risk Owner

1

CRR1

Long Term Commercial Investments and Major projects
Capital Investment

Executive Director Growth and Regeneration,
Executive Director Resources and Section 151 Officer

Rating

Travel

Quarter 1
Apr – Jun 19/20
Rating

Travel

Quarter 2
Jul - Sept 19/20
Rating

3x7=21

3x7=21

3x7=21

3x7=21

3x7=21

3x7=21

3x5=15

4x5=20

4x5=20

CRR25

Suitability of Line of Business Systems (LOB)

Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO)

21

CRR29

Information Security Management System.

Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO)

21

CRR27

Capital Transport Programme Delivery

Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

14

CRR19

Tree Management

Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

18

CRR24

Procurement and contract management compliance

5

CRR6

Fraud and Corruption

22

CRR30

CRR3

Failure to deliver Bristol City Council's wider Clean Air Plan.
Communication/engagement with stakeholders does not
result in sufficient behavioural change (excluding traffic clean
air zone).
Asbestos Management

Executive Director Resources and Director of Finance
(Section 151 Officer)
Executive Director Resources and Director of Finance
(Section 151 Officer)
Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

Head of Paid Service and CLB

3x7=21

3x7=21

2x7=14

CRR4

Corporate Health, Safety and Wellbeing

Head of Paid Service and CLB

3x7=21

3x7=21

2x7=14

CRR26

Head of Paid Service, service area leads

3x7=21

2x7=14

2x7=14

Executive Director, People

2
3
20

Page 60

19

4x5=20
3x7=21

New

New

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

17

CRR23

2x7=14

2x7=14

2x7=14

7

CRR9

Safeguarding Vulnerable Children

Executive Director, People

2x7=14

2x7=14

2x7=14

8

CRR10

Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults

Executive Director, People

2x7=14

2x7=14

2x7=14

9

CRR11

BCC Infrastructure Delivery

2x7=14

2x7=14

2x7=14

10

CRR12

Failure to deliver suitable emergency planning measures,
respond to and manage emergency events when they occur.
(Previously Civil Contingencies and Council Resilience)
Business Continuity and Council Resilience

Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Executive
Director Growth and Regeneration
Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

2x7=14

2x7=14

2x7=14

3x5=15

3x5=15

2x5=10

2x7=14

2x5=10

2x5=10

CRR5

13

CRR18

Head of Paid Service / Executive Director Growth and
Regeneration
Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

Rating

Travel

Quarter 4
Jan - Mar 20/21
Rating

Travel

4x5=20

ICT Resilience
(Previously IT infrastructure CRR2)
Better Lives Programme

4

Travel

Quarter 3
Oct - Dec 19/20

11

CRR13

The risk of failing to deliver the range of housing to meet
Bristol's needs and not realise the ambition to deliver 2000
homes, of which 800 are affordable, per annum by 2020.
Financial Framework and MTFP

Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)

3x5=15

2x5=10

2x5=10

15

CRR21

Information Governance (Replaces CRR14)

Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO)

3x5=15

2x5=10

2x5=10

12

CRR15

Financial Deficit

Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)

1x5=5

2x5=10

2x5=10

16

CRR22

Partnerships Governance

Head of Paid Service

3x3=9

3x3=9

3x3=9

New

27

Appendix A: Bristol City Council - Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20
Corporate risk performance summary for closed / de-escalated risks
Status

Risk ID

Risk

Risk Owner

Closed

CRR8

Service Review

Head of Paid Service

De -escalated

CRR16

Leadership

Head of Paid Service and CLB

De -escalated

CRR17

Strategy Management

Head of Paid Service

Corporate Risk Performance Summary for Opportunity risks

Performance Summary

Quarter 4
Jan – Mar 18/19

Quarter 1
Apr – Jun 19/20

Rating

Travel

Rating

Travel

2x5=10

Closed

2x5=10

2x5=10

Closed

1x7=7

1x7=7

Closed

Quarter 4
Jan – Mar 18/19
Risk Owner

Corporate Strategy

Head of Paid Service

4x7=28

4x7=28

4x7=28

23

OPP1

One City

Head of Paid Service

4x5=20

4x5=20

3x7=21

24

OPP3

Devolution

Head of Paid Service

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

OPP4

Brexit

Head of Paid Service

1x5=5

1x5=5

1x5=5

Quarter 1
Apr – Jun 19/20

Quarter 2
Jul – Sept 19/20

Page 61

Risk

OPP2

Rating

Rating

Travel

Quarter 2
Jul – Sept 19/20

Risk ID

Quarter 4
Jan – Mar 18/19

Rating

Travel

23

Corporate Risk Performance Summary for External and Civil Contingency risks

Rating

Rating

Page

24

Travel

Quarter 1
Apr – Jun 19/20

Quarter 2
Jul – Sept 19/20

Travel

Rating

Page

Risk ID

Risk

Risk Owner

Travel

Rating

25

BCCC2

Brexit

Head of Paid Service

4x5=20

3x7=21

3x7=21

26

BCCC1

Flooding

Executive Director Growth and Regeneration

3x5=15

3x5=15

3x5=15

Travel

Travel

Quarter 3
Oct - Dec 19/20
Rating

Travel

Quarter 4
Jan - Mar 19/20
Rating

Travel

Quarter 3
Oct - Dec 19/20
Travel
Rating

Quarter 4
Jan - Mar 19/20
Rating
Travel

Quarter 3
Oct - Dec 19/20
Travel
Rating

Quarter 4
Jan - Mar 19/20
Rating
Travel

28

Appendix A: Bristol City Council - Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Risk Matrix

Risk Scoring Matrix

Page 62
Current and Tolerance risk ratings: The ‘Current’ risk rating for both threats and opportunities refer to the current level of risk taking into account any
strategies to manage risk - management actions, controls and fall back plans already in place. The ‘Tolerance’ rating represents what is deemed to be a
realistic level of risk to be achieved once additional actions have been put in place. On some occasions the aim will be to contain the level of the risk at
the current level.
Positive Risks (Opportunities): Where the risk is an opportunity, a cost benefit analysis is required to determine whether the opportunity is worth
pursuing, guided by the score for the matrix, e.g. an opportunity with a score of 28 would be pursued as it would offer considerable benefits for little
risk.
Positive Risks (Opportunities)

29

Appendix A: Bristol City Council - Bristol City Council - Corporate Risk Report (register of risk summary) Q2 2019/20

Risk Scoring Criteria

LIKELIHOOD AND IMPACT RISK RATING SCORING
Likelihood Guidance
Likelihood
Description

Likelihood Ratings 1 to 4
1
Might happen on rare occasions.

Numerical Likelihood

Less than 10%

2
Will possibly happen, possibly on several
occasions.
Less than 50%

3
Will probably happen, possibly at regular intervals.

4
Likely to happen, possibly frequently.

50% or more

75% or more

Severity of Impact Guidance (Risk to be assessed against all of the Categories, and the highest score used in the matrix).
Impact Category
Service provision

Impact Levels 1 to 7
1
Very limited effect (positive or
negative) on service provision.
Impact can be managed within
normal working arrangements.

3
Noticeable and significant effect (positive or
negative) on service provision.

Page 63

Effect may require some additional resource, but
manageable in a reasonable time frame.

5
Severe effect on service provision or a Corporate
Strategic Plan priority area.
Effect may require considerable /additional resource
but will not require a major strategy change.

A more severe but manageable impact (positive or
negative) on a significant number of vulnerable
groups / individuals which is not likely to last more
than twelve months.
Serious local discharge of pollutant or source of
community annoyance that requires remedial action.
Between £3m - £5m

7
Extremely severe service disruption. Significant
customer opposition. Legal action.
Effect could not be managed within a reasonable time
frame or by a short-term allocation of resources and
may require major strategy changes. The Council risks
‘special measures’.
Officer / Member forced to resign.
A lasting and noticeable impact on a significant number
of vulnerable groups / individuals.

Communities

Minimal impact on community.

Environmental
Financial Loss / Gain

No effect (positive or negative) on
the natural and built environment.
Under £0.5m

Noticeable (positive or negative) impact on the
community or a more manageable impact on a
smaller number of vulnerable groups / individuals
which is not likely to last more than six months.
Short term effect (positive or negative) on the
natural and or built environment.
Between £0.5m - £3m

Fraud & Corruption Loss

Under £50k

Between £50k - £100k

Between £100k - £1m

More than £1m

Legal

No significant legal implications or
action is anticipated.

Tribunal / BCC legal team involvement required
(potential for claim).

Criminal prosecution anticipated and / or civil
litigation.

Criminal prosecution anticipated and or civil litigation (>
1 person).

Personal Safety

Minor injury to citizens or
colleagues.

Significant injury or ill health of citizens or
colleagues causing short-term disability / absence
from work.
Slippage causes significant delay to delivery of
key project milestones, and/or budget
overspends.

Major injury or ill health of citizens or colleagues may
result in. long term disability / absence from work.

Death of citizen(s) or colleague(s).

Slippage causes significant delay to delivery of key
project milestones; and/or major budget overspends.

Significant issues threaten delivery of the entire project.

Programme / Project
Management
(Including developing
commercial enterprises)

Reputation

Minor delays and/or budget
overspend but can be brought back
on schedule with this project stage.
No threat to delivery of the project
on time and to budget and no
threat to identified benefits /
outcomes.
Minimal and transient loss of public
or partner trust. Contained within
the individual service.

No threat to overall delivery of the project and
the identified benefits / outcomes.

Significant public or partner interest although
limited potential for enhancement of, or damage
to, reputation.
Dissatisfaction reported through council
complaints procedure but contained within the
council.
Local MP involvement.
Some local media/social media interest.

Lasting effect on the natural and or built environment.
More than £5m

Significant long-term disability / absence from work.

Could lead to project being cancelled or put on hold.

Major threat to delivery of the project on time and to
budget, and achievement of one or more benefits /
outcomes.

Serious potential for enhancement of, or damage to,
reputation and the willingness of other parties to
collaborate or do business with the council.
Dissatisfaction regularly reported through council
complaints procedure.

Highly significant potential for enhancement of, or
damage to, reputation and the willingness of other
parties to collaborate or do business with the council.
Intense local, national and potentially international
media attention.

Higher levels of local or national interest.

Viral social media or online pick-up.

Higher levels of local media / social media interest.

Public enquiry or poor external assessor report.

30

Agenda Item 11
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Climate Emergency Update

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
9th January 2020
Report of:

Zoe Willcox, Director: Development of Place

Title:

Update on the Mayor’s Climate Emergency Action Plan and
development of the One City Climate Strategy

Officer Presenting Report: Alex Minshull,
Sustainable City and Climate Change Manager
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 922 4453

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Scrutiny Commission are asked to:
* note the progress of the key actions in the Mayor’s Climate Emergency Action Plan
* note the work being undertaken to develop the One City Climate Strategy

Page 64

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Climate Emergency Update

1. Summary
The Mayor published his Climate Emergency Action Plan in July 2019. This set out a range of
activities taking place in the Council and how the Council was contributing to the wider action
in the city. This report provides an update on the Key Actions in that plan.
The key area of activity has been the development of the One City Climate Strategy. This is
being led by the One City Environmental Sustainability Board, involving a range of
stakeholders and delivery partners. The strategy is due to be considered for approval by the
Environmental Sustainability Board on 26th February and by the City Council Cabinet on 3rd
March 2020.
The work on the evidence base and strategy is progressing rapidly and a verbal update will be
provided at the meeting through a presentation.
2. Policy Context
The UK Government has set a statutory target for the UK to be net-zero carbon by 2050.
The Mayor of Bristol has declared a Climate Emergency and set the Goal for Bristol as a city
to be Carbon Neutral by 2030 for all emissions, both direct energy and transport (Scope 1&2)
emissions and consumption based (Scope 31) emissions and become a climate resilient city.
The Mayor has also created the One City Approach and the City Office with its thematic
boards, including the Environmental Sustainability Board.
The Mayor has committed to developing a One City Climate Strategy.
2. Update on the Mayor’s Climate Emergency Action Plan
The Mayor reported to Full Council in July on the action being taken in response to the
Climate Emergency. Initial progress on the implementation of this plan was reported to
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission in September 2019. The following table
provides an further update for the Commission.

1

The Scope of emissions are defined in the Greenhouse Gas Protocol and further details are given in

the Mayor’s Climate Emergency Action Plan.

Page 65

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Climate Emergency Update

Key Action
Call on government for increased powers
and resources and to lead through
national policies, taxation etc
Call on government to review the societal
impacts of achieving net-zero carbon
Develop and deliver a One City Climate
Strategy, working with City Office
Partners
Deliver a climate change public
engagement programme

Urge all public sector organisations in
Bristol to commit to at least 30% of their
fleet using non-fossil fuel by 2026

Commit to the Council being carbon
neutral for our direct (Scope 1 & 2)
emissions by 2025
Quantify the Council’s indirect (Scope 3)
emissions

Train city leaders, councillors and council
staff in climate change to enable them to
respond to the climate emergency in
everything they do

Deliver significant low carbon energy
infrastructure in the city

Update
The Mayor is the Climate Change portfolio holder
for the Core Cities Cabinet and has led the
production of the Core Cities Climate Emergency
Declaration. LINK
The Mayor has provided resources for the
development of the One City Climate Strategy
which is being led by the Environmental
Sustainability Board – see later in this paper for
details.
Work is underway to develop a new website to
provide citizens with useful information and an
engagement plan is being developed. This
includes supporting the Bristol Green Capital
Partnership to develop a bid to the National
Lottery Community Fund: Climate Action Fund
along with a range of community partners.
This request has been made and we are collating
the information on the public sector fleet at the
moment. Currently 5% of the BCC are EV, more
are on order and plans are being developed to
increase the proportion of EV vehicles as further
suitable models become available and charging
infrastructure can be installed.
This commitment has been made and a plan is
being developed to ensure it can be delivered in
the most sustainable way possible.
Consultants have been commissioned to
undertake a high level estimate and to work with
colleagues to develop a plan to reduce it. This
work is on-going and a verbal update will be
provided at the meeting.
BCC is participating in a UK pilot project with
Government and the Carbon Disclosure Project to
create materials which can be used by local
government across the UK. Training materials
have now been provided to us and BCC will be
testing them in the new year and designing a
programme of training to follow.
The key to this is the City Leap Energy
Partnership and procurement is progressing well
and is being reported to scrutiny separately.

Page 66

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Climate Emergency Update

3. Development of the One City Climate Strategy
Creating a Carbon Neutral and Climate Resilient City will require action by the whole city,
therefore a One City Climate Strategy is being developed. The Environmental Sustainability
Board set the objectives for the strategy to:
 Stimulate action
 Widen ownership
 Build capacity
 Inspire and develop over time.
The One City Climate Strategy needs to be based on sound evidence. The Mayor has
therefore invested council resources to create this evidence base. It includes:
1. Baseline study – anticipated reductions in future carbon emissions to 2030 – published
July 2019.
2. An analysis of what would need to happen for Bristol to be net-zero greenhouse gas
emissions for energy and local transport (Scope 1 and 2) by 2030.
3. An analysis of the indirect/consumption based (Scope 3) emissions.
4. An assessment of the Climate Resilience of the city.
This work has been contracted to consultants who are working to a very tight timetable and it
will be completed in January. A verbal update will be provided at the meeting.
The Councillor Cross Party Working Group will also be reviewing the evidence base and
contributing to the development of the Council’s contribution to the One City Climate Strategy.
The evidence base will be reviewed by the Independent Bristol Advisory Committee on
Climate Change. This committee is made up of experts from academia, business,
communities and the public sector.
The One City Climate Strategy will be a strategic document which brings together a wide
range of city partners to face the climate emergency together and provide a clear framework
for detailed action planning. This more detailed action planning will be through the statutory
and non-statutory plans of a wide range of agencies, such as the City Council. This will
ensure that we embed climate action across the city.

Page 67

Agenda Item 12
Name of Meeting – Report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
9th January 2020
Report of:

Director of Economy of Place

Title:

Corporate Property Strategy

Ward:

All

Officer Presenting Report: Nuala Gallagher
Contact Telephone Number: 0117
Recommendation:
That Scrutiny Members consider the draft Property Strategy, attached at Appendix 1, and provide their
comments.
The significant issues in the report are:

Bristol City Council has a significant property portfolio, made up of both property that is used to deliver
services from and property that is held to provide an income or other benefits. An effective property
strategy with its foundations of consistent standards and decision making and robust strategic asset
planning, is critical to achieving an effective and efficient property estate.

Page 68

Name of Meeting – Report

1. Summary
Cabinet will be asked to approve and adopt a Corporate Property Strategy in March 2020. The
strategy provides a high-level framework for the way the Council holds, transacts and maintains its
property estate, and outlines the principles for the preparation of a Corporate Asset Management
Plan which will set out the options and strategic objectives around individual properties.
2. Context
1. Bristol City Council is the owner and occupier of a diverse and valuable property estate with a
book value of over £1b .
2. The effective and efficient use of that extensive estate is fundamental to delivering exemplary
public services and supporting and driving the achievement of the Council’s corporate
objectives.
3. An effective property strategy with its foundations of consistent standards and decision making
and robust strategic asset planning, is critical to achieving an effective and efficient property
estate.
4. A fundamental element of the Property Strategy is establishing and embedding a Corporate
Landlord approach to managing property assets. Corporate Landlord is designed to enable a
local authority landowner to utilise its assets to deliver better, more efficient services to
communities. It is endorsed by both CIPFA and the RICS and many local authorities have moved
away from a departmental approach and adopted this model.
5. The concept of Corporate Landlord is that governance, decision making and budget
management around property assets, as well as the management and maintenance of those
assets, is carried out at a corporate strategic level, rather than at a service or occupier level.
6. The Property Strategy sets out the objectives, policies and process for managing the estate in
order to ensure that all property transactions are legal and in accordance with best practice. It
aims to deliver :


A fully operational corporate landlord which centralises all property functions.
A revised system of governance that is understood by all and improves the current
decision making processes.
 Consolidation of existing policies around property.
 Ensure that all property transactions take account of social value in assessing their
impact.
 Ensure that there are clearly defined responsibilities and mechanisms for all property
matters.
 A complimentary financial framework which recognises the need for budget
centralisation and adjustments to ensure all property spend is managed corporately
and is adequately reflected in appropriate cost centres.
7. The Property Strategy also sets out the principles and framework for developing an asset
management plan, which will drill down into more detail on the options around individual
properties through a series of property reviews and will consolidate the results of working with
services to understand and develop their property requirements into service asset
management plans.
8. A clear governance structure is will be developed to underpin this new corporate approach to

Page 69

Name of Meeting – Report

decision making and budget management around property assets.

3. Policy
The Property Strategy contributes towards all four of the Strategic Themes in Bristol City Council’s
Corporate Strategy 2018-2023, as it is concerned with the provision and use of land and buildings both
in connection with the delivery of services to communities and in facilitating new developments
including housing. One of the six key principles set out in the Corporate Strategy is:“Use our assets wisely, generating a social and/or financial return. Raise money in a fair but business
like way.”
Bristol City Council is a major landowner in the City and the Property Strategy provides the framework
for ensuring those assets are used in the most efficient and effective way. The Strategy promotes a
joined –up way of working both internally between Council services and externally with partners and
stakeholders throughout the City. This will in turn result in a more socially, environmentally,
economically and financially sustainable property estate, for the benefit of everyone in the City.
4. Consultation
a)Internal
The Property Strategy principles have been considered by officers at Strategic Property Group, G&R
Board, CLB and G&R EDM and by Cllr Cheney The Strategy will be on the agenda for Leadership
Forum in January and drop in sessions have been planned following that for further discussion
b)External
N/A
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
5a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

Page 70

Name of Meeting – Report

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
5b)

The Equalities Relevance Check indicates that a full Equalities Impact Assessment is not
required at this stage.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Draft Corporate Property Strategy
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None

Page 71

DR
AF
T
Bristol City Council
Corporate Property Strategy
2020–2023

Page 72
1

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Contents

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Foreword by sponsor

3

Foreword by sponsor

Bristol City Council is the owner and occupier of a diverse and valuable estate. Land and
buildings are used to support purposes including:

4		

Vision

•• Delivery of core and non-core council services

7		

Introduction

11	Equalities impact
Background and context

18
		

Data systems and managing
information

20
		

Barriers to effective estate
management

22

Corporate landlord

27

Page 73

Asset Management Plan

31

Modern workplace objectives

32

Glossary

33

Appendix 1

35

Appendix 2

DR
AF
T

12

•• Development including new housing
•• Investment to support the revenue budget
•• Community resilience and sustainability
Bristol recognises that the effective and
efficient use of its extensive property estate is
fundamental to delivering exemplary public
services and that an effective strategy including
detailed asset management planning is key to
achieving this in order to preserve its financial and
social value for future generations.

The strategy applies to all property except for
housing which is part of a separate piece of
work by the council’s Housing Service. It does
not include Transport operational property (i.e.
roads, traffic lights, parking meters, street lights
etc.) nor does it include docks infrastructure
including moorings, pontoons, harbour walls.
It does however cover buildings such as offices,
warehousing, etc. that are occupied or traded by
these services.

DR
AF
T

6		Executive summary

through the development and adoption of a
corporate landlord methodology and the benefits
of such an approach. This methodology will
support the development of more effective
corporate governance for property assets and
create a more integrated approach to asset
management and partnership working.

This strategy is designed to set out the objectives,
policies and process for managing the estate
effectively and meeting the council’s corporate
objectives.

The strategy emphasises the importance
of translating service objectives into asset
management plans and sets out the principles
for the creation of an overall Corporate Asset
Management Plan which sets out the options and
objectives around individual properties.

This document sets out the way in which effective
asset management planning will be sustained

It is expected that once adopted, in the absence of
major policy change, the strategy will be reviewed
in three years’ time to identify any opportunities
to review arrangements or processes.
Councillor Craig Cheney
Designated Deputy Mayor with responsibility for
Finance, Governance and Performance

If you would like this information in another
language, Braille, audio, large print, easy
English, BSL video or plain text please contact
equalities.team@bristol.gov.uk
2

3

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Vision

This strategy sets out our objectives for the way we hold, transact and maintain Bristol
City Council’s property estate as custodians for all of the city’s residents and stakeholders.
It sets out how we will achieve an efficient and adaptable estate, which will:
•• Provide the right property, in the right place,
that is fit for purpose and economic to occupy.
•• Deliver value for money property services to
support service needs whilst meeting the
council’s corporate objectives.

•• Fully implement a Corporate Landlord model.

•• Ensure that the Estate is compliant with
statutory and regulatory codes

•• Ensure that in developing new properties and
maintaining or improving our existing estate
that we have regard to their environmental
impact.

•• To take advantage wherever possible of the
opportunities offered by initiatives such as City
Leap to support our proposals to be a Carbon
Neutral City by 2030.
4

•• Ensure that development or restructuring
within our estate is fully compliant with the
objectives and requirements of the Local
Plan and thereby meets the council’s growth
agenda.
•• Optimise the value of our investment portfolio.
•• Use our assets to support regeneration, to
deliver our housing objectives and deliver
vibrant and sustainable communities through
the opportunities outlined in our Community
Asset transfer policy detailed later in this
report.
•• Work with Public and Third Sector partners to
achieve opportunities to deliver “joined up”
services from shared buildings.

WHAT

Fit for Purpose
Estate

Value
for
Money

Supporting
service
delivery

WHY

Assets are in the
right place, in the
right condition
and comply with
legislation

Costs are
minimised and
use or return
from assets is
maximised

Sufficient and
suitable assets to
deliver services
from

Understanding
service
requirements
and undertaking
regular property
reviews.

Corporate
Landlord approach
to provide

Development
of maintenance
and property
compliance plans.

•• Clear decision
making
framework

Working with
services through
Property
Partnering
approach to
understand
requirements

Supporting
City Growth
& Communities

To use the
estate to deliver
BCC corporate
objectives

DR
AF
T

Page 74

DR
AF
T

An efficient and adaptable estate that supports service delivery

HOW

Robust
management
information

•• Centralised
management

•• Corporate
process and
policies
•• Uniform
standards

Developing
service asset
management
plans

Utilising
council land to
bring forward
development in
the city
Engagement with
major projects

Adoption of
corporate
decisions

Working with
public sector
partners and
other stakeholders
within the city to
identify shared
opportunities

Improved
feedback from
services and
service users

Successful
partnerships with
key partners and
the community.

Service asset
management
plans in place

Use of assets to
demonstrate best
practice

Understanding
of the estate and
how it performs

Rationalisation of
the estate

KPI

Improved
utilisation %

Reduce running
costs

Increase in shared
buildings

Reduce size of the
estate

Reduce required
maintenance

Increased capital
receipts

5

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Executive Summary
This strategy sets out the methodology as to how Bristol City Council will actively review,
manage and transact property going forward.

Outcomes are therefore:
1 A
 fully operational corporate landlord which
centralises all property functions

Page 75

The strategy will review the current system of
Governance for Property matters and will detail
where within the organisation this governance
responsibility sits. It will propose revisions to the
current process in an effort to speed up, codify
and simplify the process going forward. This is
illustrated using the revised decision pathway
map.

The strategy ensures that the council fully
adopts the corporate landlord system of working
and strengthens the governance around its
implementation. This document provides the
mandatory procedures that will be adopted for
transacting council owned property.

Finally the report sets out the approach to the
preparation of a detailed Asset Management Plan
that with the help of service partners will define
the Estate in terms of emerging service priorities
going forwards.

3 C
 onsolidation of existing policies around
property.
4 E
 nsure that all property transactions take
account of social value in assessing their
impact.
5 E
 nsure that there are clearly defined
responsibilities and mechanisms for all property
matters.
6 A
 complimentary financial framework which
recognises the need for budget centralisation
and adjustments to ensure all Property spend
is managed by Property and is adequately
reflected in appropriate cost centres

DR
AF
T

2 A
 revised system of governance that is
understood by all and improves the current
decision making processes.

DR
AF
T

It is written having regard to current statutory
and corporate priorities and requirements in order
to ensure that all property dealings meet best
practice, as described by both the RICS and CIPFA.
In this way we will ensure that all transactions
comply with current and best practice, and
provide the best outcomes for the council and its
stakeholders.

Introduction

Bristol City Council’s Property Strategy sets out the framework for Review, Management
and Transacting a Corporate Estate that excluding housing, transport and docks
infrastructure is valued at approaching £1bn(1) and has an annual revenue spend of
almost £20m(2) .
The strategy respects our Strategic Themes and
Key Commitments as set out in the Corporate
Strategy 2018–2023. These Themes are
summarised below and further detail may be
found at: www.bristol.gov.uk/policies-plansstrategies/corporate-strategy

Well Connected:

Empowering and Caring:

Create healthier and more resilient communities
where life expectancy is not determined by wealth
or background.

Work with partners to empower communities and
individuals, increase independence, support those
who need it and give children the best possible
start in life.

Fair and Inclusive:

Improve economic and social equality, pursuing
economic growth which includes everyone and
making sure people have access to good quality
learning, decent jobs and homes they can afford.

(1)

6

(2)

Total Estate
Excludes Housing Properties and Schools.

Take bold and innovative steps to make Bristol a
joined-up city, linking up people with jobs and with
each other.

Wellbeing:

One of the six key principles for the council as
set out in the Corporate Strategy is that we will
“Use our assets wisely, generating a social and/or
financial return. Raise money in a fair but business
like way.”

7

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Medium Term Financial Plan:

What comes within the ambit of
the strategy?

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/
documents/20182/138089/
Medium+Term+Financial+Plan.pdf/8c63db70473c-bfd6-ed07-49a323a71547 and;

All property related activities are covered by the
strategy including but not restricted to:

Capital Strategy:

•• Property disposals (including sub-letting)

https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/documents/
s27694/Appendix%20A4%20-%20Capital%20
Strategy.pdf

•• Change of Use
•• Accommodation moves and space allocation
•• Sharing with, or use by, other users/third
parties

DR
AF
T

This strategy aligns the council’s business and
property strategies to support its key goals and
inform its spending decisions. It will incorporate
and codify several additional policies and
strategies where they touch upon, or are touched
by property. These existing strategies and policies
have been reviewed prior to incorporation. They
include:

•• Property acquisitions, both leasehold and
freehold

•• The Surplus Property Policy

•• Carrying out alterations or improvements
•• Entering into contracts relating to property
e.g. telecoms contracts

•• Granting Access/Wayleaves or Easements
•• Agreeing rent reviews and/or lease renewals
•• Asset challenge and property review

•• The Modern Workplace Programme

•• Asset performance analysis and reporting

•• Investment Property Strategy

•• Strategy development

Page 76

•• The Community Asset Transfer Policy

•• Asset performance standards, including space
and design standards

Bristol City Council recognises that as the largest
land-owner in the city it is in a unique position to
work with partners to lead and deliver strategic
regeneration.

However, in the face of continual financial pressure,
the council needs to review the size and efficiency
of occupation of the estate and this Strategy sets
out a framework for the preparation of a detailed
asset management plan, which will give effect
to this review and facilitate effective ongoing
management of the estate.

The strategy sets out the high level aspirations for
an effective property operating model the detail
of which will be set out in the asset management
plan which will be developed in 2020. An effective
Corporate Landlord requires Estates teams to work
closely with FM teams, particularly the Building
Practice to offer a joined up property service, as
well as working closely with service heads and
building occupiers to understand their strategic
property requirements.
8

•• Supporting service occupiers to identify their
strategic asset requirements
•• Property will be declared surplus in accordance
with the council’s surplus property protocol.
Once declared surplus the proposal will follow
the decision pathway set out below.
The key objectives of this strategy are to
ensure that:

•• There is a mechanism in place to examine the
justification for the retention by the council of
each property that forms part of the estate. The
council will only retain property that is used to
deliver services or for which there is a clearly
defined reason to retain, e.g. the investment
estate or land held for development. In this
case there will be a statement recorded on the
property database that will also define a date
for review of this reason.

•• Unless there is a demonstrable reason for
retention (either in its existing use or for repurposing) then steps will be taken to declare
the property surplus and available for disposal
in accordance with the surplus property
protocol, where viable.

In order to deliver these objectives, the council will:

•• The estate is an appropriate size from which to
deliver services, and is financially sustainable.

c. Work with services and partners to understand
their needs.

•• Buildings are in the right place and are
affordable to meet the needs of the council and
support service delivery in the most efficient
way possible.

d. Improve, release, adapt or replace properties to
meet council needs and to regularly review as
these needs evolve.

•• The investment portfolio is well managed to
provide an adequate and appropriate return on
capital employed and minimise voids.

a. Fully implement a corporate approach to
property.
b. Raise the profile and reputation of the Property
Service within the Corporate Structure.

e. Continue to carry out regular valuations
(including those for accounting purposes) of
our property assets.

DR
AF
T

Other key reference documents are:

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

•• Where there is clear rationale, to add to the
investment portfolio to increase net income in
support of the council’s revenue account.
•• That the Development/Regeneration portfolio
is utilised to support corporate priorities,
particularly those in relation to increasing
the supply of affordable new homes and the
aspiration to cut emissions by 65% by 2020
from the 2005 baseline and to run entirely on
clean energy by 2050.

•• That buildings are fit for purpose, well
maintained and the cost of occupation and the
environmental footprint is minimised
(see below).
•• To ensure that council services are readily
accessible for their users.

•• To work with partners to maximise the efficient
occupation of the Public-Sector Estate.

•• To ensure that communities are supported with
suitable and sufficient property from which to
deliver local services, in accordance with the
CAT policy.

f. Ensure consistency of approach by centralising
property decision making and budgets
and reviewing pathways to ensure that all
decisions involving the use of assets are made
for the good of the council as a whole and its
stakeholders.
g. Ensure that there is a strong rationale for the
ownership and retention of property and that
any disposals achieve best value and have regard
to the obligations set out in Section 123 LGA.
h. Undertake regular property reviews as part of
the asset management planning process to
ensure that the portfolio is efficiently used and
meets the needs of services.
i. Challenge Services and partners to
demonstrate the need for the property that
they occupy and to work with them to achieve a
value for money Public Sector Estate.
j. Ensure that decisions fully take account of their
environmental impact and wherever possible
to take advantage of opportunities offered by
initiatives such as City Leap to improve our
carbon footprint.
k. Achieve the adopted Carbon Neutral target.
l. Will take account of Social Value in all of its
property dealings by using the nationally
recognised Social Value Toolkit that is currently
being trialled. This may result in a lower price
being secured in certain transactions where
the non-financial benefits of the transaction
justify this.
9

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Environmental Impact

The council will as part of the Asset Management
Process, continue to monitor and improve where
possible, council owned / occupied buildings
environmental impact and it will work with
partners including Bristol Energy and the City
Leap initiative to ensure the use of the most
environmentally friendly systems of energy.

DR
AF
T

•• A commitment for all our properties to
meet applicable Minimum Energy Efficiency
Standards

•• On any new letting of council owned property
we will point out to incoming tenants the
availability of benefits arising from switching
energy supplier to Bristol Energy and of any
associated benefits available under the City
Leap initiative.

•• Offer to actively facilitate discussions between
the City Leap Energy Partnership with longterm tenants of our properties with regard to
installing renewable energy generation and
energy efficiency measures on these sites

Page 77

10

DR
AF
T

The environmental impact of everything that
we do is becoming more significant as time
goes by. There are a multitude of opportunities
to reduce this impact when it comes to owning
and managing property. The council will do
everything that it can to take advantage of these
opportunities including;

Equalities Impact

Bristol City Council has a Public Sector Equality
Duty which requires us in the exercise of our
functions to have due regard to the need to:
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;
advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it; and foster good
relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it.

Implementing a corporate approach to property
will increase our oversight of the potential impact
of decisions on citizens and staff with protected
characteristics, socio-economic inequality, and
sources of inequality that are not specifically
covered by the Equality Act. This will allow us to
embed analysis of equality impact into property
policy and strategy development so decisions
are made on the basis of the deepest possible
understanding of their implications for equality
and inclusion.

11

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Operational properties comprise:
•• 733 buildings
•• c. 2,600 hectares of land
•• Value c. £540m
•• Property types include offices, libraries, schools, museums, parks, depots, crematoria, waste sites,
docks, day care, etc.
•• This includes 323 operational indirect (within this are c.106 long leases and c 104 Concessions – see
note below)
•• 410 properties support direct service delivery as shown in the following table.

Background and context
Page 78

Bristol City Council owns a significant amount of property and, by area, owns
approximately 40% of land in the city although a significant part of this is controlled by
third parties under long term leasing arrangements. They are therefore not within the
direct control of the council but do produce income in support of the revenue account.(3)
the portfolio, excluding council dwellings and infrastructure, consists of circa 3,840 assets.
The portfolio is divided between Operational and Investment assets:-

OPERATIONAL
PROPERTY

Value 539M
2,880 assets
2,637 ha site area

INVESTMENT
PROPERTY

Value 249M
730 assets
Income £13m

DEVELOPMENT
ASSETS

Sites not required for
service delivery and
suitable for development
>100ha

The total asset value for the operational properties is mainly based on depreciated replacement cost. It is
not an indicator of potential sale value/prices.
Some community buildings do not provide financial support to the revenue account.

(3)

12

Number

Education (schools, children’s centres)

1211

Residential (inc. service tenancies)

522

Offices

383

Store/Depot/Warehouses/Waste Facilities

42

Community, Youth clubs

11

Sports facilities/Playground

7

Social Care

21

Libraries

274

Museums

11

Cemeteries/Church buildings

11

Public Conveniences

22

Children’s Homes

8

Car Parks/Multi-storey

3

Misc.

37

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

Property Type

1.

Note – Schools are responsible for their own buildings management. However, they may “buy back” some repairs and
maintenance services from the council.

2.

These are residential properties that do not form part of the normal housing stock. They include caretakers, park keepers
and cemetery lodges that are let on service tenancies.

3.

A significant piece of work is already underway in the form of the modern workplace programme. The Asset Management
Plan work to follow this strategy will take account of and build upon the MW work. A project team comprising officers from
both Property and Facilities Management will be established to advance the work detailed in the AMP section.

4.

Following community engagement a Library Strategy with pilot projects around the city is in production. Any opportunities
to co-locate services will be considered.

13

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

The CPIP is split within the council finance
function into two areas: the majority of assets
and income defined as Commercial Trading
Estate (CTA) and the balance comprising the City
Docks estate. The City Docks estate is currently
managed by the property team as property
manager, but the income received is remitted to
City Docks as a service. Going forward, this service
including budgets will be amalgamated into the
Corporate Landlord and separate arrangements
for recharging management fees will no longer be
required.

DR
AF
T

Subject to the above, and going forward, unless transactions fall
within the Community Asset transfer policy (attached), or there
is appropriate Cabinet authority to vary this requirement, then
all disposals of property will be at best consideration. (Best price
obtainable in the open market).

The CPIP comprises two main asset groups: long
leasehold Investments and standard investments.
The portfolio is unusual by comparison to typical
UK institutional property investment portfolios for
two reasons. Firstly, the majority of the portfolio
assets by value and income are long leasehold
investments, and secondly the portfolio is limited
to land and buildings within the boundary of The
City of Bristol.

Investment Property

Page 79

The information below gives an overview of the
investment estate and current management
arrangements. The Team dealing with this
portfolio are in the course of preparing a separate
strategy going forward and this will be presented
to Cabinet in due course.

Portfolio summary

The Commercial Property Investment Portfolio
(CPIP) is a portfolio of non-operational property
held by the council to generate income to
support the council’s revenue budget. The estate
has been acquired and built up over many years
and includes a wide range of property types of
varying quality.

14

It should be noted that there are circa 4,000 other
property interests on the Uniform Database – for
example wayleaves – that are not investment
assets and produce only nominal income. This
often leads people to assume – incorrectly – that
the number of properties capable of generating
revenue or capital receipts within the investment
estate is much larger than it actually is.

Long Leasehold Investments
Freehold land assets over which long leases (typically >100 years) have been granted to an investor at a
percentage (gearing) of the market rent; the investor grants a further lease to an occupier of the land or
building at the prevailing market rent.
Description

Value

% of whole
investment portfolio

Capital Value

£190m

76%

£9m

70%

5%

N/A

98 years

N/A

Gross Annual Rental Income
Yield
Average Weighted Unexpired Lease Term
(AWULT)

DR
AF
T

Some assets are leased at below commercial
rents to voluntary and community organisations
and social enterprises (Community Assets).
These assets are used by “not for profit
organisations” to deliver services and benefits to
their local residents, that would in some cases
otherwise be provided by the council. Benefits are
not necessarily seen as a financial contribution,
but rather in terms of social value or indirect
savings to council services (see Community Asset
Transfer Policy).

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Number of Properties

441

70%

Advantages

Disadvantages

✔ High security of income;

8	Income growth can be sporadic, depending on
rent review periods, and building age;

✔ Long term income;

✔	Capital receipts can be unlocked during the
lifetime of the lease.

8	Long leasehold interests on their own; do
not enable the council to exercise a proactive
influence over redevelopment activity unless
they are able to “buy out” the head tenant and
any occupational leases.

Standard Investments

Land or buildings let directly to the occupier of the land or building at the prevailing market rent.
Description

Value

% of whole
investment portfolio

Capital Value

£60m

24%

Gross Annual Rental Income

£4m

30%

7%

N/A

7 years

N/A

Yield

Average Weighted Unexpired Lease Term
(AWULT)

Advantages

Disadvantages

✔	Rental growth more immediate (negatives do
also apply);

8	Tenant covenant risk – particularly in secondary
and tertiary locations;

✔	Rental growth closely aligned to prevailing
market conditions and more easily captured.

8	Income security – weak in secondary and tertiary
locations (where the council holds the majority
of these assets);
8	Management and holding costs high (compared
to long leaseholds).
15

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

KEY OBJECTIVE 1

To grow and improve long-term revenue income
•• The council uses the rental income from the portfolio to support its revenue
budget.

DR
AF
T

•• The council sets annual revenue income performance targets for the portfolio and
these are included in the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which is
monitored on a monthly basis with Finance.

•• The current MTFP sets a target increase in annual revenue of £0.5m per annum for
the period 2018-2022.
•• The council’s primary means of increasing income is by prioritising and completing
all rent reviews, lease renewals and opportunities to re-gear long leases.

Page 80

•• Because the majority of the portfolio is held as long leasehold investments there
are no comparable market benchmarks to measure income performance against
other similar funds.
•• The running yield on the portfolio (net income relative to total capital value
invested) is currently +5% which is considered strong performance given the low
level of overall portfolio risk.

KEY OBJECTIVE 2

To reduce income risk

•• The portfolio is low income risk because the majority of assets are long leasehold,
which present no material risk of default (due to lease structure and income cover).
•• Long leasehold investments have no risk in terms of liability for building repair and
condition.

•• The balance of the portfolio, comprising standard investments, has higher income
risk in terms of tenant default.
•• Standard investments also carry income risk in terms of building condition and
repair at the point that leases expire; the long-term approach to managing
standard investments is to try and replace as many as possible with a smaller
number of high value/quality assets (see Future portfolio management strategy
below).

16

Current limitations on rental growth
Long-term income growth is limited at present by
two key factors
•• Lack of new capital to enable poorer performing
assets to be traded, and
•• Lease provisions in some (older) leases may
limit rental increases at review.

Future portfolio management
strategy
Following recent work, supported by external
consultants, a Cabinet Paper will be brought to
Cabinet in 2020 (subject to Finance support)
requesting a new capital allocation to improve
existing CPIP income performance.

The property development activities are
contributing extensively towards achieving these
residential development objectives as well as
delivering commercial property development that
creates further economic benefits, different types
of temporary and permanent jobs, significant
levels of revenue and capital income as well as
increases to business rate receipts.
The property development strategy is to maximise
the long term benefits to the council, Bristol’s
economy and local communities, thereby
enhancing the financial and social benefits from
its development property portfolio. To enable this,
the council contracts with development partners
to ensure its risks are minimised and benefits
maximised.

DR
AF
T

Existing portfolio management
approach

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

The proposal will outline the concept of how new
capital can be used to:

•• Reposition the portfolio by selling smaller poor
quality secondary assets and replacing these
with fewer higher quality assets of higher value
and

•• Support wider city growth (job creation and
increased business rates) and increased council
revenue income in the medium/long term.

Development Property

The council has a significant on-going
development programme with potential for more
than an additional 100ha to be brought forward
in future years generating many jobs, capital and
revenue income receipts.

Securing property developments by utilising
the councils property estate also delivers wider
regeneration opportunities within communities
creating additional opportunities for jobs
economic prosperity and improved social value.
As the Corporate Landlord model is implemented,
more surplus property within the councils
estate will be identified and from this, further
development and regeneration opportunities will
arise.

Surplus Assets

When assets are no longer required for service
delivery they will be declared surplus to the
council’s requirements and disposed of or
redeveloped for alternative uses.eg affordable
housing. Details of this process are given at
Appendix 1 “The Surplus Property Procedure”

The council’s property estate which includes land
and buildings suitable for regeneration is a mix of
residential and commercial uses including offices,
hotels and retail.
The council’s residential development objective
is to deliver 2000 new homes by 2020 with 800
being affordable homes.

17

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Property Data and Systems

Current projects impacting this area:

Property data is mainly held in two separate
systems. IDOX Uniform is used for core property
data (acquisitions and disposals, HMLR registration
and ownership, interests including leases
and licences etc. [granted and held] and their
associated rents), and CIPFA Asset Manager for
valuations and capital accounting information,
and for some property asset management
data including condition survey data, asbestos
survey data, and the existence of other surveys
(e.g. glazing surveys, legionella surveys, fire risk
assessments etc.).In addition to these systems
property information is also held in an MS Access
database and on a variety of spreadsheets.

•• The award of a single maintenance contract will
change the way building maintenance data is
stored.

Page 81

Bristol City Council holds data on its assets but in
some cases this requires updating and there is also
data that has not been collected in the past that
will be collected as part of the asset management
planning process. This piece of work will need to
be specified and resourced as we move forward.

•• The recent re-tender of the Asset Manager
system for transport assets

DR
AF
T

•• Going forward existing data will be checked
and missing data recorded as part of the asset
management planning process. It is hoped that
eventually a suitable system will be identified
so that information currently held in a number
of databases will be bought together into a
single place.

Some of the issues associated with data and
systems are:
1. The disparate nature of the datasets,

2. The need to obtain data not currently collected
and to obtain updated data where necessary.
3. There is some degree of duplication of dataentry as we have two separate systems for our
core data and our capital finance data.

4. The lack of integration and the complexity
involved in merging data from the two datasets

Data Collection

Data Type

Status

General Info on:
location, type, service user, tenure,
site area, lease info,

Complete

Cost Information:
capital expenditure, repairs and
maintenance, annual running costs

Incomplete

This information exists in the BCC
Finance system but historically has been
difficult to retrieve and link to a specific
property. Changes to the Finance system
for the 2018/19 year will enable property
staff to access this information.

Condition Information:
current condition, required
maintenance, projected spend
requirements

Incomplete

Condition surveys will be required
for some of the estate. These should
identify current condition and required
maintenance together with projected
spend over a five year period.

Valuation Information:
Capital Value (Book Value),
reinstatement value, Market Value

Complete

Book Values (where required) and
reinstatement values are complete. Open
market values are not available for all of
the estate and will be carried out as and
when required.

Occupancy information:
vacant / occupied and whether
surplus to requirements

Complete

This information is complete (for
buildings) subject to a review of assets
noted as surplus.

Utilisation Information:
Hours of use, space used / vacant,
type of service delivery undertaken

Incomplete

This information exists for some parts
of the portfolio (e.g. schools and offices)
but will require collection for parts of the
portfolio where it is missing.

Suitability Information

Incomplete

This information exists for some parts
of the portfolio (e.g. schools and offices)
but will require collection for parts of the
portfolio where it is missing.

Statutory Compliance info:
Fire, Asbestos, Legionella, Gas safety,
Electrical, Safety lighting and glazing
etc.

Incomplete

This information is not currently held
centrally and an exercise is being
undertaken to bring the information into
one place and identify and remedy any
gaps if they exist.

At this stage it is not intended to propose any new
systems for data retention. It is believed that the
existing Uniform system can be used to better
effect and we will not be able to give an informed
opinion as to future requirements until the Asset
Management Plan work has been completed.
18

Action required

DR
AF
T

Data systems and managing
information

This work will identify shortfalls in available
information, will cleanse existing information to
ensure accuracy and will inform the requirements
of any new system going forward.

19

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

The Estates Service
For 2017/18, there was a level of property-related expenditure on the General Fund portfolio of
c.£48.6M. (Including schools) 58% of this spend relates to the FM Service in the Communities Directorate
– although it should be noted that a significant sum is re-charged to other Service Areas.
In addition, the three property sectors secured capital receipts and revenue income as follows.

Currently, the Property Teams fall under the
responsibility of the Director of Economy of Place.
Below the Director there are teams and managers
dealing with three areas of responsibility being:
•• Asset Delivery and Strategy

2018 / 2019 (£)

•• Property Development

Capital Receipts1

14,155,000

8,600,000

•• Property investment

Revenue Savings2

556,000

3,893,000

In addition, asset management activity occurs
throughout the council within the various teams
with responsibility for service delivery.

1. Excludes HRA receipts
2. Income reported against MTFS

Page 82

Barriers to effective estate
management
•• Property currently does not feature highly
within the council’s still developing, corporate
structure. Responsibility for property functions,
excluding Facilities Management, sits within
the responsibility of the Executive Director of
Growth and Regeneration, whose portfolio
is extensive in addition to property. The FM
team currently sit within the responsibility of
the Executive Director of Resources. Facilities
Management covers a large number of services
(including Fleet, Print and Mail) as well as
repair and maintenance of property. However
Repair and Maintenance is primarily a property
function and therefore the property elements of
the FM service should be bought together into a
single Property Function under the supervision
of a single Executive Director and Head of
Property.

20

•• The current governance structure for the
council’s property function is split across
directorates.
•• Some operational and strategic decisionmaking on property matters is taking place
within directorates and service departments
without advice of the property team.
•• There is insufficient oversight and input from
the Property Services teams. Consequently,
there is no single point of responsibility with a
strategic role to manage the Corporate Estate
i.e. a Head of Property.
This can cause issues that are outlined in the
section marked Corporate Landlord.

The Property Team will continue to monitor
opportunities to secure external funding from
Central Government and other initiatives e.g. One
Public Estate and City Leap. Suitability of schemes
for inclusion in these initiatives will be assessed by
the relevant Senior Officers and applications will
be submitted promptly to ensure compliance with
deadlines. These applications will be project driven
to ensure that there is capacity within the teams
to deliver the objectives of the grants.

DR
AF
T

2017 / 2018 (£)

DR
AF
T

Financial year

There is a wide range of skills sitting within
the existing property function; the staff are
appropriately qualified to cope with issues that
arise. However, the increased workload created
by moving all property functions may impact
resourcing and this is considered later in the report.

This strategy proposes to confine property activity
solely to the Property and FM teams as set out
under the heading “Corporate Landlord”.

21

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Corporate landlord
Why a Corporate Landlord

The concept of a Corporate Landlord is that
the governance, decision making and budget
management around all property assets and
the responsibility for their management and
maintenance is carried out at a corporate and
strategic level, rather than at a service level. Under
this model each service department are relieved of
the responsibility and accountability for both the
strategic and day to day decision making around
land and property assets that they occupy or use
in delivering their service.

The Corporate Landlord approach is designed to
enable a local authority landowner to utilise its
assets to deliver better, more efficient services
to communities.

The function of the Corporate Landlord is to
ensure that service departments are adequately
accommodated, to ensure that the future asset
requirements for each service are identified
and procured and to maintain and manage the
property assets in accordance with corporate
strategic priorities and standards and relevant
property and health & safety legislation.

Corporate Landlord is endorsed by both CIPFA and
the RICS.

Page 83

DR
AF
T

Corporate Landlord is the predominant model
in larger private sector organisations having
significant property holdings due to its efficiency
in delivering corporate outcomes. Many Local
Authorities have recognised the benefits and
already adopted this model.

Current position

Bristol City Council has recognised the necessity
of operating a Corporate Landlord model as this
will ensure the most efficient use of property
assets and ensure alignment with corporate
priorities, strategies and standards. This
document moves the council from an aspiration
to adopt the Corporate Landlord model, into the
implementation phase.

This phase will help to avoid strategic delivery
risks, budgets risks, premises maintenance and
compliance risks, and reputational risks which
are evident from the current arrangements. It
will also create and improve opportunities for
more shared use assets, both internally and with
external partners and avoid the financial and land
ownership risks associated with third party use of
council premises.

22

It is important that only people trained in property can transact property matters for
the following reasons:
1 There is a myriad of property and health & safety legislation and regulation that needs to be
complied with and for which service managers are ill-equipped. It is unfair for them to be asked to
carry the burden for legal compliance, when there is expertise elsewhere within the organisation
that is better suited to take on this responsibility. This includes.
i.

Landlord and Tenant Act 1954

ii.

Various Law of Property Acts

iii. Housing Acts where there is a residential element

DR
AF
T

What is a Corporate Landlord?

iv.

Local Government Act 1972 – S123 and exemptions

v.

Other duties including best value requirements

vi.

General Health and Safety legislation, Legionella, fire safety, gas and electricity certification etc.
etc.

vii. Procurement Regulations, both statutory and internal.

viii. The implications of the State Aid and unfair competition rules.

ix. Certain property transactions must include a formal valuation undertaken by an RICS qualified
Registered Valuer. Several suitably qualified Surveyors form part of the Property Team.
x.

Similarly CIPFA require valuations for financial reporting (including asset values) to be
undertaken by an RICS qualified valuer. – The Property Team will ensure that following any
transaction, that it is properly recorded.

xi. Social Value Act – The council has to consider how property transactions can secure wider
social, economic and environmental benefits.

2. B
 y centralising the responsibility for property, it is possible to see the effect that one property move
has on the remainder of the estate and where “gaps” need or can be filled, or where opportunities
exist which can only be seen from a corporate perspective.
3. T
 he Corporate Landlord approach can deliver economies of scale in terms of capacity, procurement and
opportunities for co-location across an organisation and with other external organisations. This can
ultimately lead to rationalisation that can only be achieved by taking a holistic view of property, thus
improving value for money.
4. T
 he cost of holding empty or under used property will be greatly reduced as the property team
identifies, in close consultation with service managers, sharing opportunities and inefficient
occupation and takes steps to dispose of surplus property.
5. T
 here will be a clear focus on the use of land and buildings to deliver corporate priorities and
balancing competing demands for land and buildings.

23

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Commitment – The council will fully commit to
commence implementation of the Corporate
Landlord with effect from the beginning of the
2020/21 Financial Year.
In taking these steps the council is able:
•• To unlock the value of assets, seek efficiencies
through joint arrangements with public
sector partners and maximise private sector
investment.

Any transferred budgets will be ring fenced to
support:

Service budgets will be jointly analysed by finance
business partners and the property team during
the next budget setting round and any spending
in relation to property provision will be reallocated to the Corporate Landlord.

b) the asset management plan process.

The underlying principle of the Corporate
Landlord model will be adopted, which is that
all maintenance budgets will be transferred to
the Facilities Management service who will be
responsible for repairs and maintenance of all
council owned and occupied buildings. There
may be agreed exceptions to this principle where
circumstances make this appropriate. However,
it is anticipated that the exceptions will be few
in number, and only apply where it is more
appropriate for these to be undertaken by the
occupier, due to specific and local service delivery
needs. Service Level Agreements which clearly
define responsibilities for property maintenance
will be agreed with each service.

DR
AF
T

•• To support the delivery of the council’s
Corporate Plan and other corporate objectives
such as the local plan.

Budgets – Currently the council’s budgets that are
utilised for property transactions are distributed
across both centralised property functions and
individual service areas, which allocate money
and personnel away from “the day job” to make
decisions on property matters.

•• To integrate thinking about property
with financial, regeneration and other
considerations.

•• To manage and reduce risk around property.

Page 84

•• To be seen to act corporately (and rationally) in
relation to its property assets, being able to fully
justify decisions made involving property.
Governance – First and foremost, the
implementation of Corporate Landlord is about
Governance. This model has the full support of
top tier Executive Directors, Mayoral and Elected
Member support and will be implemented
accordingly across all services.
The Corporate Leadership team endorse
the mechanisms contained in this strategy
for transacting or changing any matters or
issues, touching upon or involving property.
These instructions will be disseminated to the
whole of the council in accordance with the
Communication Strategy below.

24

Routine issues excluded, moves, lettings,
alterations to the fabric of a property will all be the
responsibility of the Corporate Landlord, to ensure
efficiency in the use of resources and consistency
in implementation and application of premises
standards.

a) additional resource within property to
undertake management of those corporate
buildings and;

The movement of these budgets should not
impact on the council’s overall net property
expenditure. However, the resulting Corporate
Landlord budget will need to be re-based as it may
prove difficult to identify property expenditure
from individual service budgets.

The Corporate Landlord model will establish
clear internal links between each service and
an identified property business partner, so that
there is close working at the earliest stages of the
decision-making process.
The role of the property business partners will be
strengthened and reinforced to ensure that they
work as closely as possible with service managers,
to ensure that they:
•• Understand the business operating model and
key outcomes of the service area, and its overall
strategic direction
•• Are able to support service areas, so that there
is a clear articulation of their property asset
requirements, both now and going forward

DR
AF
T

Achieving Corporate Landlord

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

These proposals may result in savings in the
medium term as recommendations emanating
from the Asset Management Plan are
implemented.

Under the Corporate Landlord model individuals
and departments will not be able to sanction
premises moves, acquisitions, disposals, or repairs
and maintenance etc. without the involvement of
a member of the property team.

•• Understand where the property assets in use
by service areas are falling short of expected
performance, both financial and non-financial
•• Are able to consider and analyse possible
property solutions for service managers,
supporting them through option appraisal and
business case development.

25

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Overall Governance for the Property Strategy and
the shape and implementation of the Corporate
Landlord model is the responsibility of the Executive
Director of Growth and Regeneration.
The Member sponsor is Cllr Cheney.
Strategic Property Group is the key forum for
discussions and decisions on property related
matters and this is chaired by the Executive Director
of Growth and Regeneration and attended by
officers both from within property and from
service areas.

➔	Where necessary, to provide a steer and
direction for physical asset and land related
programmes/projects, ensuring integration
and alignment with corporative objectives.
➔	Consideration of, and to provide a steer for
matters relating to the West of England
Joint Assets Board (JAB), and One Public
Estate (OPE).

DR
AF
T

The Strategic Property Group is a Strategic Board
within Bristol City Council. The purpose of this
Group is to drive the strategic review of the council’s
Property Portfolio and a comprehensive refresh of
the Asset Management Plan, enabling effective
decision making and ensuring alignment with the
wider objectives of the council.

➔	Through the revised Property Strategy
and the Asset Management Plan (AMP),
to ensure that the development and
management of the council’s operational,
non-operational and commercial land and
buildings is secured in line with the council’s
corporate plan and that finance and delivery
risks are mitigated and managed in line with
these plans.

Page 85

As per the terms of reference for the Strategic
Property Group, its role on behalf of the Corporate
Leadership Board (CLB) includes:

➔	To act as the key forum for discussions
and decisions relating to the Corporate
Landlord function and the council’s land and
property assets, including all operational,
non-operational and commercial land and
buildings.
➔	To oversee governance and property related
strategies and policies; including the
preparation of a revised Property Strategy to
improve the overall efficiency of the estate,
deliver financial savings and to support
regeneration and growth.

➔	Ensuring linkages between strategic asset
management work and the council’s capital
and revenue medium term financial plans.
➔	Ensuring linkages between this Group and
the council’s Capital governance regime
through the Growth and Regeneration
Board and Capital Board / CLB.
➔	To oversee the preparation and delivery
of the council’s Asset Management Plan
through the effective management of a
robust corporate Asset Register.

26

➔	To take delegated decisions as required, or
refer decisions to the appropriate body.

The Strategic Property Group also governs
the Operational Property Group, which was
established to tactically manage and advise on
the planning and use of the council’s Operational
Asset Property Portfolio. The group assesses and
advises on the use of property and land for the
purposes of service delivery, back office functions
and to manage property related projects and
programmes. A key aim of the Operational
Property Group is to promote collaboration and
standardisation across service areas and the
achievement of best outcomes for the council.

“Non-Property” decisions

There are occasions when reports are prepared
that are not necessarily property decisions but
where the proposal may have an impact on the
estate. For this reason, the Head of Property will
now be included as a consultee for all reports
entered onto the decision pathway.

Asset Management Plan
Against the backdrop of continuing reductions
in Central Government funding, and as Local
Government has to make increasingly hard
decisions in respect of non-statutory functions,
such as the closure of public amenities, it is
important to understand:

In accordance with CIPFA guidance, the asset
management plan will provide clear and
measurable actions that will be implemented over
the short term, say three to five years, as part of
delivering the property strategy. It will set out:

•• The function that each individual asset plays
within the corporate agenda;

•• the specific activities or actions we will be
taking.

•• How changes within public service delivery may
impact upon the need for certain categories
of property and in turn, the impact upon the
resources required to manage it; and

•• what we need to do to deliver on the strategy

Once this strategy has been adopted it will
enable to council to move forward with the Asset
Management process to review the estate and to
implement the strategy. The process will involve.

DR
AF
T

Decision Making

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

•• Central Government prioritisation of greater
collaboration between public bodies and the
use of shared space and resources.

Issues such as the “academisation” of schools, the
regionalisation of various social services and “backoffice” functions, the transfer of service delivery
to the VCS and greater collaboration will result
in a reduction in the Corporate Estate. This may
in the short term reduce the resources required
to manage the property estate, thereby releasing
additional resources to deliver transformation of
the estate and delivery of corporate and service
outcomes.
Conversely, the need to increase the
commercialisation of remaining services, such
as Waste and Street Services, combined with
increasing direct income through ownership
(rent and service charges) and indirectly (Council
Tax, NNDR, New Homes Bonus) and delivering of
Central Government objectives such as housing,
will result in other areas of the council’s portfolio
growing and requiring new and additional
resources.

The AMP process, from strategic planning to
delivery, will need to reflect these changes going
forward and ensure that the right level of resource
and skill set is available to maximise returns, both
financial and non-financial.

•• Information Gather and Review

•• Discussion with Services and other stakeholders
•• Appraisal of data develop outline AMP
recommendations

•• Develop an action plan for implementation
•• Discuss with all interested parties including
Members and Implement recommendations.
•• Review service AMPs on an annual basis or
when changes in service delivery are proposed.

Information Gather and Review
This will involve categorising properties as
described below and prioritising the order of
review.
Review individual properties and key documents
(such as Title / leases, condition surveys, schedule
of expenditure both historic and proposed etc.)
to pull out key aims and objectives/deliverables
associated with the property for consideration
Opportunities will be sought to increase the
occupation of underutilised assets in order to
release surplus property for disposal as detailed
elsewhere.
The review will identify the following basic
information in respect of each property.
•• Brief description, size and Location – possibly
including a location plan.
27

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

•• Current use - Occupier, may be department or
third party
•• Number of users - this may be staff or service
users and will inform whether the building
is too big or too small for its existing use
(Suitability and sufficiency)
•• Market value
•• General condition – this may be replaced with
full condition survey.
•• Options for future

DR
AF
T

•• Cost (where relevant / available)

Property will engage with services at a strategic
level to ensure that AMPs are integrated with
strategic planning and budgeting. To be successful,
a protocol for close working between Asset
Strategy Managers in Property and a nominated
Service representative will need to be developed.
Service representatives will need to be at Strategic
Director or Senior Manager level for that service
and have authority to develop and support options
to enable appropriate decisions to be made. This
role will not be delegated without the authority
of the Strategic Director and any delegation will
be to an individual of equivalent seniority to the
person being replaced. This working arrangement
will involve regular meetings, minimum three
monthly, throughout the year, not just at the
start of the planning round and in particular, at
the contemplation stage of all new strategies
and initiatives so that property matters can be
considered early and at the appropriate level in the
decision-making process.

•• There may be additional matters to be
considered depending on the category of
property, see below.

Where appropriate (including where information is
currently missing) the information will be recorded
on the council’s existing database system.

Page 86

Much of this information will already be known
so in some cases, detailed inspection will not be
necessary and may be confined to a cursory visit to
assess condition. In some cases, however a more
thorough assessment will be involved and may
require the support of officers in other teams. The
information will be used to update that held on
the database and to inform the options appraisal
for each category of property.

Discussion with Services and other
stakeholders

The property review work will be integrated with
the development of service asset management
plans and will fully involve staff from service
departments in order to ensure that retained
buildings meet their needs. We will work with
services to ascertain whether the property is
suitable in terms of location, suitability and
sufficiency and where it is not we will work with
the service to find a solution. We will challenge
services as to the use of the premises that they
occupy and any solution must be acceptable in
both service and economic terms. It may involve
consolidation and / or re-provision with the
objective of obtaining the best solution for service
delivery while ensuring efficient and effective use
of assets.
28

Service led Requirements for Property
& Related Services
Requests from services for property related work
will generally arise through the AMP process and
will be subject to the decision pathway.
There will be occasions when requests are made
for ad hoc property work / advice and these
will be made via a standard request form (to
be developed / revised). These will need to be
validated by the nominated service representative
and by property representatives through the
decision pathway. The intention is for all property
requirements to be coordinated within Property so
services experience a joined up Property Service.
(Moving hard FM to within Property will assist
with this.)

Appraisal of Data and outline AMP
recommendations
By reducing the number of assets there may
be opportunities to make revenue savings or to
achieve capital receipts. The liability for backlog
maintenance may also be reduced, enabling the
re-allocation of maintenance budgets to retained
assets.
The council will use its estate to promote
regeneration either by updating old and
dilapidated buildings to make them better fit for
purpose and to encourage other nearby occupiers
to invest in their own buildings. By occupying
buildings, particularly offices, more effectively it
will not only reduce costs but also to improve the
working environment for staff.

•• Modernisation – Disposal of some buildings
will free up capital and revenue to improve
retained property. This will ensure that they
are sufficient, fit for purpose, in good repair,
and efficiently occupied whilst preserving an
environment in which staff are happy to work
and stakeholders are happy to visit.
•• Rationalisation – In its most basic form this
means reducing the overall size of the estate
so that only those buildings that meet the
above objectives are retained. To complete this
however,
a great deal of work is required to ensure that
services remain optimised.
•• Consideration will be given to opportunities
for sharing with other Public, Private and Third
Sector organisations.

DR
AF
T

•• Tenure

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Council owned land and buildings will be used as
the catalyst to begin site assembly for larger scale
regeneration.
The Asset Management Plan will be based on the
following key objectives.
•• Efficiency – To achieve an efficient estate that
is in the right place, of the right size and the
right configuration to achieve effective service
delivery.

•• Rationalising will result in reduced overall cost
of operation of the estate thereby releasing
finances to reduce backlog maintenance and
improve the condition of the retained property
estate.
•• Prioritise and implement a rolling programme of
condition surveys. These will be used to assess
the backlog maintenance budget, advise the
planned maintenance programme and assist in
the decisions around property disposal.
This table indicates the priority by which the AMP
will be undertaken

29

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Priority 1

Priority 2

Priority 3

Office Accommodation

Community Buildings /
Concessionary Tenancies

Public Conveniences

Review of CAT Policy Review
to ensure assets are delivering
benefit to the community
and are in good condition /
compliant.

Public toilets have been
reviewed with some closed in
association with an increase in
provision via the Community
Toilet Scheme.

Residential Service Tenancies

Parks and Green Spaces

Opportunities to co-locate or
share spaces will be explored as
they arise

Properties occupied by BCC staff
in connection with their duties

Significant amount of green
space. Last reviewed in 2010.

Depots

Education (non-Schools) &
Children’s Centres

DR
AF
T

Libraries

BCC has a number of depots
mainly used by a single service.

Sports/Leisure/Play

Car Parks

HRA (non-Housing)

Cemeteries/Crematoria

A number of opportunities to
use underused space in car
parks are currently being piloted
and there may be scope for
further innovation.

Consisting of a mix of assets
Including various buildings on
including shops, community
site e.g. chapels, depots, WC’s,
buildings, hostels and properties offices.
leased for various uses.

Investment Estate

ACE Buildings (social care for
adults and children)

Page 87

Nurseries, PRU’s, youth
buildings, children’s centres etc.

Some work has taken place on
transferring responsibility for
assets to local organisations
where appropriate.

Following an external review
of the investment estate a
strategy for implementing
recommendations is being
completed.

A number of changes are taking
place in the way these services
are currently delivered which
have asset implications.

Development opportunities

Museums/Culture

A clear pipeline of sites and a
strategy for how we will take
them forward???

A requirement for additional
storage facilities is a key issue
for the Museums service.

Priority 1 includes a review the Corporate Office
Buildings estate. The generally held view is that
the council currently has too much office space.
This will involve reviewing density of occupation
and, where appropriate, embedding modern and
agile working styles.
30

Heritage Assets

Many BCC heritage assets are
used for service delivery but
there are a number of heritage
assets incapable of operational
use with heritage value, e.g.
statues, monuments towers.

Some work has already been undertaken as part
of the Bristol Workplace Programme that was
completed in 2017. The current Modern Workplace
project builds on this work and will move forward
having regard to this strategy.

DR
AF
T

A new review of office space
is taking place. (Modern
Workplace) An outline business
case is currently being prepared.

Modern workplace objectives
•• Achieve new culture, behaviours and agile
working practices for all staff in scope –
capability, motivation, opportunity & support
for Managers & colleagues

•• Retained buildings to be aligned to Corporate
Landlord Model and FM Operational Model

•• Deliver improved staff office accommodation
portfolio to support service delivery

•• Enable Commercial Let where appropriate

•• Deliver improved staff office accommodation
which support BCC Branding & Values and has
a positive impact on recruitment & retention
•• Deliver modern technology solutions within
the buildings to support achieve agile working
practices (aligned to & supported by FSA)
•• Deliver financials identified in the Business
Case (revenue savings, ending leases, efficient
retained portfolio, capital receipts)
•• Enable financial/non-financial savings
identified within other Business Cases
– (vacating leased buildings, working from
Neighbourhood Locations, enabling working
synergies)
•• Achieve reductions in storage & provide one
centralised storage location

•• Deliver/enable Partnership Working where
appropriate to deliver joined up services
In prioritising this work it is important to recognise
that no category of property or service can be
looked at in isolation and there will inevitably be
synergies and opportunities to be explored for
colocation / joint working throughout the estate
and with partners citywide. It is also important
to look at assets on an area basis to identify
oversupply or undersupply of facilities and scope
for more efficient use.
In addition there are some issues that are
common to all of the estate and will be looked at
as part of the review process:

Implementation of the Asset
Management Plan
Proposals to implement the recommendations will
follow the usual decision pathway.
31

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Glossary

Appendix 1
Section 123 of Local Government Act 1972. Requirement that any disposals should be
at best consideration available. (Market Value). Any disposal at less than best value is
subject to consent of the relevant Secretary of State.
Circular 06/03: Local Government Act 1972 general disposal consent (England) 2003
- gives a Local Authority power to dispose of land at less than best value provided it
can be shown that the undervalue is less than £2m and: the disposal can be shown to
benefit the community as a whole. (General Wellbeing).
A lease for an original term in excess of 21 years.

DR
AF
T

Long Lease
CAT

Community Asset Transfer. The council has a separate policy for such disposals.

Best Value

As defined in the “Revised Best Value Statutory Guidance” issued in 2015 by DCLG.
Best Value authorities are under a general Duty of Best Value to “make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness
Asset Management Plan

R&M

Repair and Maintenance

Compliance

In this context this refers to compliance with statutory and Health and Safety
regulations as they are applied to property. E.g. Asbestos and Legionella inspections.

WLC

Whole Life Cost - Essentially whole life costing is a means of comparing options and
their associated cost and income streams over a period of time. Costs to be taken
into account include both initial capital or procurement costs, opportunity costs and
future costs.

Operational Direct
Property

Properties from which the council provides services directly to service users – see
below

Operational indirect
Property

Properties let to Third Parties who provide services to end users.

Concessions /
concessionary rent

A term for properties occupied under a licence or under a lease at a low or zero
rental

Commercial Property
Investment Portfolio

A term used for the BCC assets that are held for the purpose of providing an income
to the council as opposed to delivering services

Uniform Data-base

The database used to store BCC property information

HMLR

Her Majesty’s Land Registry

CIPFA

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

RICS

The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Page 88

AMP

32

Surplus Property Procedure / Disposal STEP 2 Circulation of Surplus Property
of Property
Unless in exceptional circumstances the SPG has
Introduction
The procedure is based on the principle that all
property is held corporately and is used by services
when required for service delivery. As soon as it is
agreed that a property will no longer be required
for its current purpose it must be declared surplus
to the requirements of that service and then be reused or disposed of in the most appropriate way.
Property in this context means sites or buildings
capable of re-use or sale.

made a decision to dispose of a property without
prior circulation, the following will apply.
As soon as it is agreed that a property will
become surplus the Property Department will
circulate details of that property together with an
indication of market value to (i) Service Director
Housing and Landlord Services to check for
suitability for Social Housing or, Housing Company
(Goram) (ii) Service Director Development of
Place and Head of Housing Delivery to check for
suitability for Registered Housing Providers and
Community Led Developments (Bristol and Bath
Regional Capital), Bristol Community Land Trust.
This initial circulation will be copied to the relevant
ward Councillors and the Executive Member.

DR
AF
T

S123 LGA

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

STEP 1 Property Declared Surplus

If a service no longer requires a property for service
delivery the Service Manager must declare it
surplus at the earliest opportunity i.e., as soon as
it is agreed that it will become surplus not when
it becomes vacant or, is in the process of being
vacated. A standard form is available to declare a
property surplus. This is available from a Property
Partner who can assist with completion.
If a property is not used, or not fully used and the
Service is not prepared to declare it surplus the
Asset Delivery Manager will report the underuse to the Strategic Property Group (SPG) with a
view to making a decision on whether or not the
property is surplus.

The SPG may deem it to be in the council’s best
interests to dispose of a property which may (or
may not) be currently used for service delivery. If
currently used, those services may be re-provided
from another suitable property.

If the building is still being used by the service,
albeit at a reduced level then it will not be
declared surplus until a suitable replacement
has been secured. However, in this instance the
service will be charged the full running cost of the
building until staff have fully relocated or until the
property team agree that it is reasonable for them
to take over running costs pending matters such
as future redevelopment etc.

At this point Property will amend its records to
show the property as ‘surplus to service’.
The Service Directors and Head of Housing
Delivery will be required to respond to the
notification within three weeks with either
confirmation of (i) suitability and available funding
to enable an immediate transfer at market value
(once agreed) or, (ii) not suitable.
If the property is considered suitable and the
above Service Directors wish to develop the
property then the ongoing holding costs will
immediately transfer to that service budget.
If the all of the above parties provide a ‘not
suitable’ return then the property details will be
circulated to all Executive and Service Directors
(and copied to the relevant ward Councillors and
the Executive Member) giving Directors three
weeks to submit a clear and funded Business
case if the property could satisfy an existing and
identified service need.

33

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

STEP 3 Consideration of Interests
Assuming suitability and available funding to
enable an immediate transfer at the agreed open
market value, priority will be given to expressions
of interest as follows (and endorsed by the SPG),

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

The Asset Delivery Manager will be responsible for
marketing and disposing of any property agreed
for sale on the open market, to the best advantage
of the council at an appropriate time.

Appendix 2

STEP 5 Reporting

Summary of the CAT process (source document:
Community Asset Transfer Policy – July 2010)

Community Asset Transfer

3. Registered Housing Providers

In addition to any reporting which may be
required by Cabinet and the Executive Member,
interests in and the status of any surplus property
will be reported to the SPG.

4. Community Led Developments / Community
Land Trusts

Key steps for flow chart

•• applies equally to existing ‘community assets’
and to land/buildings not already in use by a
third sector organisation

If there are no interests from the above areas then
any funded Business cases submitted by internal
services will be presented to the SPG for a decision
to retain and re-use the property or, to dispose of it
on the open market.

5. Property declared surplus

•• applies only to leasehold transfers

Where there are no expressions of interest for a
property this will also be reported to SPG.

7. Wait three weeks

DR
AF
T

2. Housing Company (Goram)

Page 89

Following SPG a briefing note will be taken to the
Executive Member, before the property is allocated
for re-use or, prepared for disposal on the open
market.
The overriding principle is that all receipts from
disposals go into the central reserved fund. It is
however acknowledged that from time to time
there may be an exception based on an agreed
Business case. Receipts from assets held in the
Housing Revenue Account are ring fenced to that
account.

STEP 4 Transfer, Re- Use or Disposal

If it is decided that the property will be transferred
at market value or, re-used for another service the
Property Case Officer will instigate the necessary
arrangements which may include providing
a property valuation, formal appropriation,
instructing Legal, liaising with Finance and
updating the property records. The Service
Director Finance will make any necessary finance
adjustments.

6. Details sent to Service Directors Housing &
Land Lord Services, Development of Place
& Head of Housing Delivery to check for
suitability & funding for housing.

8. Interests for housing received Y / N?

9. Yes – present bids to SPG for decision

10. No – circulate details to all Executive & Service
Directors
11. Wait three weeks

12. Business case received from internal service
Y / N?
13. Yes – Service presents Business Case to SPG for
decision
14. 10. No – Property sold on the open market

CAT

•• provides a transparent and consistent process

DR
AF
T

1. HRA Housing

•• ensures a minimum quality standard that all
CAT applicants need to meet

•• secures the social, economic or environmental
benefits generated by the transfer
•• provides an easy to administer mechanism to
control the end-use of the property
•• is discretionary; there is no legal or statutory
entitlement to CAT

Leases

•• will be granted on a fully repairing and insuring
basis

•• will be ‘contracted out’ of the security of tenure
and compensation provisions of the Landlord &
Tenant Act 1954
•• can be granted at a reduced rent, nil rent
(‘peppercorn’), or on concessionary terms
reflecting social value
•• can be granted for up to 35 years under
delegated authority

•• terms in excess of 35 years can be considered
by Cabinet
•• are linked to a Service Agreement, which is
monitored annually and reviewed every five
years

In the event that any agreed internal service re-use
has not been implemented within a six month
period, the SPG may be asked to decide if the
property should be sold.
34

35

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

Four possible CAT scenarios:
SCENARIO A

SCENARIO B

SCENARIO C

SCENARIO D

Bristol City Council advertises (as
opportunity arises) the availability of
an asset that is being considered for
CAT

Existing tenant applies for CAT

Application for CAT of a property that
is not already in ‘community use’

Meanwhile use

not an ‘open’ process and only the
current tenant/occupant can apply

2. submits expression of interest with
details of rent offered, length of term
sought, etc

2. a brief that sets out the offer, the
‘ask’ and relevant background info is
published

3. Property (Asset Strategy Team) will:
collate available information and add to
the CAT Tracker

3. expressions of interest are invited within
6 wks

4. Stage 1: Tracker entry is considered
by Panel at monthly meeting – initial
decision to refuse if unsuitable/
ineligible, or to continue to Stage 2

DR
AF
T

1. this opportunity is open to any eligible
organisation

Page 90

4. Property (Asset Strategy Team) will:
assess expressions of interest, request
comments from other services/depts.,
review additional information, and make
recommendation
5. Panel consisting of Exec Director G&R,
Service Director Economy of Place,
Representatives from Strategy Team and
Mayors Office reviews recommendation
in consultation with Portfolio holder
(Communities)
6. Decision made / referred to Cabinet

5. Stage 2: tenant submits a full business
plan; tenant provides evidence of
compliance with pre-VISIBLE; views of
Ward Members and other services/depts
are sought
6. Property (Asset Strategy Team)
will: evaluate business plan, review
additional information, and make
recommendation

7. Stage 3: Panel reviews recommendation
in consultation with Portfolio holder
(Communities)
8. Decision made / referred to Cabinet

1. speculative application, often for a
property that has not been pre-designed
for CAT
2. in theory open to anyone
3. submits expression of interest with
details of rent offered, length of term
sought, etc

1. low-key and informal process, often
without consultation
2. can be applied to any BCC asset
3. can be a precursor to a CAT application
4. is always for a temporary period
5. does not offer any security of tenure

DR
AF
T

1.

4. Property (Asset Strategy Team) will:
collate available information and add to
the CAT Tracker
5. Stage 1: Tracker entry is considered by
Panel at monthly meeting – request is
refused, unless Panel decides that CAT
may be suitable/appropriate

6. Stage 2: applicant submits a full
business plan; the views of relevant
BCC depts are sought; views of Cabinet
Member and Ward Members are sought
7. Property (Asset Strategy Team)
will: evaluate business plan, review
additional information, and make
recommendation

8. Stage 3: Panel consisting of Exec
Director G&R, Service Director Economy
of Place, Representatives from Strategy
Team and Mayors Office reviews
recommendation in consultation with
Portfolio holder (Communities)

6. is open to any applicant, but is normally
used as a ‘property solution’ in relation
to a bigger project or initiative
7. Property (Asset Strategy Team) will:
add details to the CAT Tracker, for
information
8. Tracker entry is considered by Panel at
monthly meeting – no decision required,
but any comments will be taken into
consideration by relevant team in
Property
After the final CAT decision has been made,
the prospective tenant needs to:
•• provide details of how they meet the preVISIBLE standard
•• agree Heads of Terms for the draft Lease
•• agree Service Agreement

9. Decision made / referred to Cabinet

Timescales
The target for completion of the application and decision process for options A and B is 20 weeks.

36

37

38

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

DR
AF
T

Page 91

DR
AF
T

Bristol City Council Corporate Property Strategy | 2020–2023

39

DR
AF
T
Page 92

Designed and printed on sustainably sourced material by Bristol Design, Bristol City Council 2019 BD11859

